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Hesse Rural Health acknowledges Victoria’s 
Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander communities 

and their rich culture. We pay respect to the Ancestors, Elders 
and Communities of Wathaurong people of the Kulin Nation, the 
custodians of the land on which we deliver our health care services. 
We seek to ensure the facilities, environment and services we manage 
are welcoming and inclusive for all people. 

Hesse Rural Health Service (Hesse) is a public 
hospital operating under the Health Services Act 
1988 and relevant amendments, and is governed by 
a Board of Directors appointed by the Governor 
in Council by the recommendation of the Victorian 
State Minister for Health. 

As an innovative rural health service, Hesse provides 
acute, aged and community based services across 
parts of the municipalities of Colac Otway, Golden 
Plains and the Surf Coast. Hesse partners with the 
Winchelsea Hostel and Nursing Home Society 
Inc., a not-for-profit entity and Commonwealth 
Residential Aged Care Service  (RACS) provider, 
whose charter it is to plan, provide and develop 
appropriate services for the local community.

Mission

Hesse is dedicated to providing and facilitating 
access to best practice health, aged and community 
based services that strive for rural wellbeing.

INCLUSIVENESS
Welcoming everyone

INTEGRITY
Accountable, transparent practice

EXCELLENCE
Committed to being the best we can

CREATIVITY
Leading into the future

PERSON CENTREDNESS
Finding what’s important to the individual

WHO ARE WE?
Our Annual Report is internally produced and 
designed, and reflects real stories provided 
by our staff, consumers and their families. The 
Report aims to inform Government, interested 
stakeholders and members of the public about 
the range and quality of our services and Hesse 
Rural Health’s financial performance over the year.

Pictured
Front Cover: Peg Hulonce, thriving at Hesse (p. 65)
Below Left: Shane Soutar, Adams Print (printing)
Below Right: Katherine LeFevre (photography)

To Access Hesse’s Services:
Phone: (03) 5267 1200

Mail: 8 Gosney Street

Winchelsea VIC 3241

E-mail: reception@hesse.vic.gov.au

Website: www.hesseruralhealth.org.au
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 MESSAGE 
F ROM T HE CHAIR
AND CHIEF EXECUT IVE

he strength of connection, collaboration 
and contribution of rural communities are 
qualities that are often also embodied by 

the organisations based within them. It is a fabric 
stitched together by the fundamentals of keeping 
it simple, focusing on the job and getting it done 
without fuss or fanfare. 

The past year has reinforced just how important this 
recipe is for success. It was a daunting proposition 
in May to be one of the first health services 
nationwide to undergo accreditation against 
the revised ‘National Safety and Quality Health 
Service (NSQHS) Standards Version 2’ for our 
urgent care, hospital and primary care services.  
However, we met the eight standards and 248 action 
areas without qualification or recommendation, 
with accolades in areas of comprehensive care 
and consumer partnerships. This illustrates the 
importance of the strong relationships between 
clinicians and consumers that our rural service is so 
known for. Staff, Management, Board Directors and 
Consumer Representatives gathered in anticipation 
at the conclusion of the two-day review to hear the 
announcement. The meaning that this result had for 
our workforce was evident in the tears that flowed.   

Aged care accreditation closely followed within 2 
weeks, and once again our results were impressive 
and all standards were met. The Board is extremely 
aware of the additional work that is required in 
the lead up to accreditation and external quality 
review. The Executive, Leadership Team and the 
entire workforce deserve praise for their work 
and efforts to achieve such exemplary results. We 
continue to advocate for a single accreditation 
system that covers all program areas across our 
multi-service organisation. 

These results are even more significant as, upon 
request from the DHHS, we agreed to loan our 
Chief Executive Officer to Beaufort and Skipton 
Health Service for five months who, amongst 
other priorities, assisted in their preparations for 
accreditation under the NSQHS. Peter effectively 
led that service also to a successful accreditation 
outcome. 

Peter’s reputation for commitment and service 
excellence to aged care services was also 
effectively demonstrated by his selection as the 

only CEO from public, private or not-for-profit organisations to represent 
the national residential aged care sector on a panel to review the 
Australian Aged Care Quality Agency against the ‘Regulator Performance 
Framework’. Operating from Canberra, this panel of three will soon 
provide their report directly to the Federal Minister for Aged Care. What 
an outstanding achievement for a small rural health service to have such 
capacity for influence at a national level. 

Following media reporting of public accounts of mistreatment of the 
elderly in some institutions, the Aged Care Royal Commission has put the 
national spotlight on aged services. Such industry scrutiny is welcomed by 
Hesse, an organisation who prides itself in the delivery of quality, safe and 
person centred services. Overseen by legal firm Minter Ellison, we joined 
other state public residential aged care services in responding to the 
Commission’s request to identify possible episodes of substandard care. 
We were eager to illustrate to the presiding Commissioners that there are 
also many positive initiatives and outcomes within rural aged care.  

In a mark of the Board’s respect for the immense contributions of the 2018 
outgoing Directors, Life Governorships were awarded to former Board 
President John Carr,  Rod Hanson and Donald Lang at the 2018 Annual 
General Meeting. They are deserving recipients of such recognition. 
Their incredible commitments and stewardship as inaugural Directors at 
Hesse Rural Health is detailed later in this report (p. 44).

There were five incoming Board Directors appointed by the Minister for 
Health, taking our total to eleven. They are Mikel Dean, Peter Nemtsas, 
Linda Wong, John Sutherland and Max Arnott. These Directors all hold 
formal qualifications, skills and professional experience relative to 
the needs of the Board and will strengthen our capabilities to focus on 
effective, safe clinical care and diligent business performance. Their 
combined skills include finance, governance, health and safety, information 
technology, marketing, accounting and consultancy. A Director with legal 
qualifications will complete our skills based Board into the future. From 2018 
Board Directors are remunerated for their governance responsibilities 
with  funding provided by DHHS. 

Siobhan Ni Chuinneagain completed her term during 2019 and the Board 
extends their thanks for her contribution over the past three years. Her 
focus on matters of clinical safety and data recording has proved to be 
an asset to Hesse. 

At a Board level, responding to consumer funded models of care, we  
recognise the need for contemporary modern residential living facilities 
and broader marketing to ensure we remain competitive with other 
providers within,  and adjacent to,  our traditional catchment communities. 
With less ability for governments to fund capital developments, we must 
also increasingly find innovative methods of generating income. To achieve 
this we have identified the need for two additional Board sub-committees 
to complement our current Clinical Governance & Ethics and Finance, 
Resources & Audit committees. These will be Building & Environment and 

T



332019 Annual Report  3

Peter Birkett
Chief Executive

Marketing & Fundraising. Introductions for these committees are available 
further within this report by their respective Chairs. This year the Board 
also tendered for and appointed a new architect for the purposes of 
master planning. Allen Kong has experience in metropolitan residential 
aged care developments based on humanistic principles. We look forward 
to working with Allen and building upon the legacy of former architect 
Graeme Lyons. 

The achievements of the Hospital Auxiliary Op Shop are also to be 
commended, once again raising over $85,000. Their energy and enthusiasm 
is most remarkable, and the substantial accumulated sums will be of benefit 
to our forthcoming capital development.

Although we have maintained occupancy of 95%, financially we have 
had a challenging year due in part to the need for additional resourcing 
to ensure accreditation compliance and also marked increases in public 
health sector salaries and wages. Our final result for the consolidated entity 
was a surplus of $133,531 before capital and specific items. Recruitment of 
Sonia Kaur to the Acute and Residential Care Manager role has been of 
benefit to attract appropriate resident related aged care funding and to 
drive clinical performance in aged services. We farewelled Annie Coles, 
Director of Care for the last four years and employed by Hesse over an 
18 year period. Thank you Annie for all your hard work and commitment. 
We really appreciate it. 

As local government areas review their assets and models of service 
delivery, opportunities arise for health services. One is the opportunity to 
purchase land and buildings at 53 Hesse St, the site of our current Social 
Support Program in Winchelsea. The other, and more significant, is to 
broaden service delivery of the Commonwealth Home Support Program. 
This will require detailed business analysis and decision making, but we 
are eager to further support our ageing community members to live at 
home independently. 

Our internal target to increase home care package delivery has been met 
with over 25 consumers now choosing Hesse. This program is an important 
feeder into our existing flagship residential aged care program, as well as 
supporting our principles of caring for rural people in the way that they 
need it. 

This year marks the conclusion of our existing Strategic Plan, and with so 
much broader sector reform and local service planning, it is an opportune 
time to consider our way forward. We look forward to consulting with 
our communities to better understand their needs and how we can 
accommodate them in such a changing landscape. 

Our vision, ‘Caring For Rural Communities’, is still as relevant today as 
ever. We are proud to provide this introduction to our annual report of 
operations, financial report and quality account. It provides an impressive 
overview of another successful year in the life of Hesse Rural Health. 

Kathy Taylor
Chair
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Max Arnott
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Kathy Taylor
Chair
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MAICD
Appointed: 2014

Naida Hutton
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RM, RN, GAICD
Appointed: 2015
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GOVERNANCE

BOARD 
OF DIRECTORS

ST RAT EGIC 
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GOVERNANCE
Accessible and Relevant Health Services
Throughout the Lifespan
Services provided will be available throughout the 
lifespan, based upon evidence of needs with clear 
and accessible pathways facilitating effective links 
to the services consumers require.

Partnering for Success
Collaboration, shared skills and the formation of 
strategic alliances with compatible organisations 
and stakeholders is required for the organisation to 
be efficient, effective and successful.

A Skilled and Engaged Workforce
Investing in employees and the volunteer workforce 
will ensure they remain skilled, satisfied and 
meaningfully engaged to deliver effective services, 
and enable the organisation to remain a respected 
employer of choice.

Effective Service Promotion
To be a relevant health service to our catchment 
communities, Hesse will ensure that the public are 
aware of what the organisation can offer.

Integrating Health and Wellbeing
Incorporating health promotion, prevention and 
early intervention concepts, standards and values 
into health service delivery will benefit consumers, 
our staff and the broader community.

Our Community is the Key
Hesse respects the important role it plays for our 
rural community, and individuals residing within it, to 
facilitate effective participation.

A Sustainable Business Culture
Financial practices and strategies will be based upon 
sound, ethical and innovative business principles to 
ensure future viability.

Infrastructure Growth and Development
Hesse is responsive to the changing community 
profile and demand for services, considering 
immediate, short and long term needs for 
infrastructure, growth and development.

Achieving Excellence and Innovation
Hesse will build upon a culture of safety, quality 
and continuous improvement in the drive for service 
excellence and innovation. 

An Overview

ST RAT EGIC 
 DIRECTIONS

‘ It is with a deep sense of gratitude 
that I write to thank you all again 
for your wonderful care of ... and in 
fact all your residents and families. 
I understand too that it is not just 
the work of a few which cause this 
wonderful attitude to happen, it 
is top down, bottom up and inside 
out. I watch with delight and awe 
as new people come into the units 
and are gradually embedded with the 
philosophy and spirit of the Hesse 
community.’

Family Member , 
Werruna Dementia Environment
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ntering my first year as Chair of the Clinical 
Governance & Ethics Committee, I am acutely 
aware of the strong legacy of former Hesse 

Rural Health Board Director and Life Governor 
Donald Lang.  Donald provided steady stewardship 
to the Committee for many years. It is both an 
exciting and busy year to be handed the reins. 

Our meetings delve deeply into matters of clinical 
quality and safety through data monitoring, incident 
review, audit, case study and best practice literature, 
all with the purpose of assurance that our clients, 
residents and patients receive the best possible care. 
Our Committee has been strengthened through the 
participation of a Consumer Representative who 
challenges us to ensure our governance remains 
firmly client centred.  

Hesse was among the first organisations across 
the country to undergo accreditation against the 
revised ‘National Safety and Quality Health Service 
Standards, Version 2’ in May and all required 
actions were met without recommendation. This is 
an outstanding and well deserved result after much 
hard work throughout all levels of the organisation. 
Congratulations to all. A particular mention must 
go to the extraordinary results of the Consumer 
& Community Advisory Committee for receiving a 
comment from one reviewer that they should score 
an 11/10 for their achievements. 

Our newly developed Clinical & Quality 
Governance Framework provided us a clear 
platform for success. This is a well thought out, 
comprehensive and realistic document that makes 
our continual pursuit of quality meaningful across all 
layers of the service from Board, management, staff 
and consumers and their families.

The increasing involvement of Dr Didir Imran, our 
new District Director of Medical Administration, 
through clinical review, medication advisory 
meetings, medical credentialing and VMO guidance 
and support has been most valued and appreciated.

Hesse received an unannounced contact visit 
in March and shortly after a full accreditation 
review from the newly formed Aged Care 
Quality and Safety Commission. Once again, all 

 CLINICAL 
GOVERNANCE & ET HICS
Naida Hutton (Chair), Siobhan Ni Chuinneagain, Peter Nemtsas, 
Therese O’Loughlin, Michelle Stocks, Linda Wong

E standards were met without recommendation. 
These reviews, combined with an unannounced 
quality review against the ‘National [Child Care] 
Quality Framework’ for our occasional care 
services, all occurred within a 12 week period. With 
ever increasing demands from State and Federal 
regulatory authorities in terms of data capture and 
reporting, to achieve such results is remarkable and 
a credit to all. 

This comes at a time when the eyes of the nation 
are fixed on aged care services following the 
announcement of the Aged Care Royal Commission. 
Such scrutiny is to be welcomed and we must look 
with interest as to how we can continue to be a 
quality leader in an industry under such a spotlight. 
There will, however, be learnings for us all and we 
must be open to change.

Newly implemented aged care quality standards, 
which incorporate an increasing focus on the 
consumer experience will assist us to deliver the 
services we would want for ourselves. This is both 
challenging and rewarding.  

I have enjoyed my first year as Chair of the 
Committee immensely and I wish to thank staff 
and fellow Board Directors for their ongoing 
commitment to uphold the levels of quality that we 
have become accustomed to at Hesse. 

Naida C Hutton
Chair, Clinical Governance & Ethics

GOVERNANCE
COMMIT T EES
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GOVERNANCE

ike most health services, Hesse Rural Health 
begins the financial year budget process 
before receiving details of the actual income. 

We use the previous year’s budget as a guide and 
adjust for what we believe will be the variances. Key 
influences of this are our strategic plan objectives, 
Government priorities, plus anticipated changes to 
funding and expenses. With total expenditure of just 
under $12 million, a cash surplus of around $10,000 
does not leave room for error.

It takes tireless work from a dedicated team, 
beginning with the CEO, Executive, plus every 
person within Hesse, employees and volunteers 
alike, to deliver this outcome. All whilst providing 
excellent health care services. On behalf of the 
Finance, Resources & Audit Committee I extend our 
thanks to everyone involved. You can be proud 
to say you have managed to use all the resources 
available without spending more then we have. 

To upkeep existing assets we rely on specific 
grants, and the Executive worked hard to secure 
additional funding for capital improvement works. 
These included connection to natural gas, with the 
replacement of pipelines throughout the facility 
providing improved safety and reduced reliance on 
LPG. This aims to contribute to a target of net zero 
carbon by 2050 and an anticipated 40% reduction in 
ongoing costs. Our fire alarm and safety systems are 
also being upgraded.

Most importantly we do receive community 
donations. Hesse belongs to the community 
and relies upon everyone for support to grow.  
Completion of the highway duplication signals that 
rapid population growth is expected in the region. 

Hesse must change as a result. I’m glad to report we 
are currently negotiating the purchase of significant 
assets that we already use for program delivery. 
Within the formulation of a renewed strategic 
plan will be consideration of how we may further 
improve facilities and services. This is only possible 
because of your individual generosity.  

You’ll see in the following pages the audited annual 
financial report, however the major roles of the 
Committee are more than money. In broad terms the 
Committee is chartered to ensure the organisation 
performs in a safe, efficient and sustainable manner 
and continues to fulfil targets of service delivery 
and financial outcomes. This includes financial 
performance, budgeting, auditing, donations, 
fundraising, risk identification (minimisation and 
management) and major capital expenditures 
(acquisitions or divestitures). Reporting 
accountability is to the Board, relevant authorities 
and to the public.

Thanks to the Committee members and Executive for 
their commitment each month at the meetings and to 
Stephen Wight, Davidsons accounting and business 
advisory. We also acknowledge the support of 
our local parliamentary representatives, state and 
federal health ministers and relevant departments 
for our funding, plus their willingness to help achieve 
our strategic planning objectives.

It is with pleasure I commend the report to you. 

Max Arnott
Chair, Finance, Resources & Audit

F INANCE 
RESOURCES & AUDIT

Max Arnott (Chair), Alice Bennett, 
Mikel Dean, John Sutherland

L
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he physical environment in which people 
live and work is of paramount importance to 
enable effective participation and support 

satisfying experiences. Upon my appointment as new 
Board Director in 2018 it was immediately apparent 
that the quality of the building infrastructure and 
environmental surrounds within Hesse’s acute 
and residential aged facilities had been both 
carefully and purposefully designed. Such design 
is considerate of people’s needs as they receive 
health care and as they age. I understand much 
can be attributed to the talents of former, now 
retired architect Graeme Lyons, who has seamlessly 
integrated progressively staged residential 
developments. 

However, as time progresses, the needs of people 
we care for change. If we are to remain competitive 
in business, we must address ways of keeping pace 
with contemporary consumer choice and demands. 
It is indeed a challenge to achieve a quality physical 
environment in times when financial margins are 
tight and injections of government funding limited. 
However nothing can be achieved without planning 
and so we will dedicate ourselves to this pursuit. 

In 2018 we tendered for architectural services 
from qualified professionals with experience, 
appreciation and successful outcomes in the area 
of residential aged care. A thorough selection 
process by the CEO and Board was undertaken 
with site visits and tours of previous projects. I can 
announce that the successful applicant was Allen 
Kong Architects, who have a history of successful 
human centred residential projects in Melbourne 
for aged people, including those who have been 
marginalised.   

The Board has also recognised that a renewed 
master planning and building development program 
requires additional time for effective governance 
involvement and oversight. In 2019 it was decided to 
establish a Building & Environment Committee.  

The primary purpose of the new Committee is the 
effective governance of all existing owned and 
leased property, and consideration and planning 
for future Hesse Rural Health infrastructure 
requirements. This responsibility extends to building 
renovations, extensions, acquisitions, disposals, 
construction and other significant building works, 
along with the necessary compliance to all building 
statutory and regulatory authorities. 

This is a timely development as it coincides with a 
period of renewed strategic planning which is due 
to commence later in 2019. 

I am delighted to have been elected to have 
oversight of this new Committee which aims to 
support the developments and ensure Hesse Rural 
Health is a service of choice for our clients and 
residents of the future.

John Sutherland
Chair, Building & Environment

BUILDING 
& ENVIRONMENT

John Sutherland (Chair), Mikel Dean,
Naida Hutton, Peter Nemtsas, 

Therese O’Loughlin, Linda Wong

T
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he business of today’s public health care 
leads us away from the traditional catchment 
boundary approach into consumer driven 

service competition. There is no longer room for 
complacency and the assumption that consumers 
will automatically seek our services. We must be at 
the top of our game in quality, business, customer 
experience and reputation.

However it is critical that the public must be aware 
of our services. During 2019 the Board raised the 
profile of marketing through the creation of a new 
Committee, Marketing & Fundraising. The fundraising 
aspect remains a reality for services that seek to 
raise the bar. Local history demonstrates this with 
the 1990’s community fundraising campaign that led 
to the establishment of the Winchelsea Hostel and 
Nursing Home Society (WHNHS) Inc. Our health 
service would not be what it is today without the 
WHNHS Inc. partnership. 

When required, our communities are always ready 
to jump on board and assist the health service in any 
way they can. However as a small rural organisation 
we must remain mindful of impacts to local people 
who continually extend their support to a range 
of clubs, groups and organisations. Considerate 
of this, in past years Hesse has not had an ongoing 
fundraising campaign, rather an episodic appeal for 
assistance when the need arises for major building 
projects. Community giving must yield worthwhile 
outcomes. 

The new Committee will assume the governance 
responsibility for fundraising, marketing and 
promotion of Hesse’s integrated services. It will 
support the development of initiatives that raise 
community knowledge and awareness of the range 
of services we operate, and the philanthropy to 
extend and improve them. 

The inaugural meeting drafted Terms of Reference. 
These include: the establishment of Committee 
purpose, roles and responsibilities, the development 

of a working plan that aligns to the Strategic Plan, 
the allocation of a budget and the identification of 
key performance indicators to review and evaluate 
outcomes. 

The Marketing & Fundraising Committee will be 
accountable to the Board and will work together 
with the Building & Environment Committee to 
identify fundraising purpose, the Finance, Resources 
& Audit Committee to set appropriate budgets and 
the Clinical Governance & Ethics and Consumer 
& Community Advisory Committees to ensure 
initiatives are quality driven and desired by our 
consumers. We will seek to develop appropriate 
relationships with local community initiated 
fundraising and educational and promotional 
activities. There are also obvious opportunities to 
more actively embrace the digital world.

Positivity, optimism and collaboration will further 
lead Hesse to great places. 

Michelle Stocks
Vice-Chair, Marketing & Fundraising

MARKET ING
& FUNDRAISING
Kathy Taylor (Chair), Michelle Stocks,
Alice Bennett, Siobhan Ni Chuinneagain

T

GOVERNANCE
COMMIT T EES
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Financial Accounting
Chief Executive Officer

Board of Directors

Manager Community ServicesDirector of Care

Program Areas

•	 Residential Aged 

•	 Urgent Care

•	 Inpatient Acute

•	 Dementia 

•	 Palliative 

•	 Respite

Quality Coordination

Social Support Groups

Community Services

Coordinator

Manager Acute & 

Residential Aged Care

Volunteers

Portfolios

•	 Infection Control

•	 Smart Lift

•	 Continence

•	 Nurse Education

General Services

•	 Environmental

•	 Catering

•	 Maintenance

•	 Gardening

ACFI Coordination

Volunteers

Leisure and Lifestyle

Community Nursing

•	 Hospital in the Home

•	 Post Acute Care

•	 District Nursing

•	 Domiciliary Midwifery

Visiting Medical 

Officers
District Director Medical Administration

ORGANISAT IONAL

ST RUCT URE

Josie Gebert 
RM, RN, MACN

Annie Coles
BN, GDipMid, DipComServ (Childcare), 
GDipNurs (Fam&ChildHealth), MACN

Stephen Wight (Davidsons)
BCom, CA, GAICD

Dr Didir Imran (Polwarth Partnership)
MBBS, MHlthServMt

Peter Birkett 
MBA, BCom, RM, RN,  

MCHSM, MAICD
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Manager Workforce
& Service Development

•	 Consumer Engagement

•	 Human Resources

•	 Service Projects

•	 Contracts & Property

•	 Complaints Management

•	 Service Promotion

•	 Governance Support

•	 Reception

•	 Payroll

•	 Accounts

•	 Health Information    
Management

•	 Information Technology

Infrastructure

•	 Aged Care Business Systems

•	 Management Accounting

Children’s Services

•	 Occasional Child Care

•	 Facilitated Play Program

Home Care Packages

Health Promotion

Allied Health

•	 Dietetics

•	 Physiotherapy

•	 Occupational Therapy

•	 Diabetes Education

Administration

ORGANISAT IONAL

ST RUCT URE

Andrea Dunlop
MHlthSc, GDipHlthSc, BAppSc (OT), 

MCHSM, ARI
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A YEAR
IN STORIES
14  Highlights

15  Re-establishing Community 
        Connections

17  My Garden of Inspiration

20  Improving Workforce   
        Health & Wellbeing

23  Appreciating Our Team of 
        Volunteers

24  Perhaps Small, but we Make 
         a Difference

28  Learning from the 
         Competition

31  Charlie McDonald 
            Scholarship

32  A Patient’s Admission 
        Journey

37  Supporting Student Learning

40  Filling the Void for 
        Emergency Healthcare

43  Retirees Set Their Sights on 
        the Capitals

44  The Last of the Life 
         Governors

46  Keeping Children Safe on 
        Farms

48  Life Transitions

51  A Spotlight on Family
        Violence

54  Financial Rigour Keeps our 
         Organisation Strong

56  A Place to Call Home

59  VHIA Puts the Spotlight on 
         Werruna

60  The Spirit of Giving

61  Recognition of Service

64  Better Communication
        Better Outcomes

65  Something to Belly
        Laugh About

66  Maintaining Strength & 
       Balance to Age Well

67  Our Services
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QUALITY SNAPSHOTS

‘ Bubbles ’

53  Being Inclusive for 
        People with Disabilities

58  Diversity & Our 
        Indigenous Communities

58  Language Translation at 
        the tip of our Fingers

62  Quality Indicators

62  Unplanned Weight Loss

63  Preventing Harm from 
        Falls

63  Escalaton of Care

18  Consumer Engagement 
        & Participation

26  Quality Accreditation

27  Workforce Training & 
        Development

27  Advanced Care
        Directives

30  Patient Healthcare 
        Experience

34  Integrating Clinical & 
        Quality Governance

35  Staff Safety

38  Clinical Incidents & 
        Adverse Events

38  Consumer Experience 
        Survey: Residential 
        Aged Care

39  Patient Safety 
       & Workplace Culture

42  Infection Prevention

52  Comprehensive Care

52  Medication Safety

53  Infrastructure 
        & Environment

This painting by artist Jenny Sweeny was winner of the 
2018 Health & Wellbeing Award, sponsored by Hesse Rural 

Health, at the Winchelsea Uniting Church Art & Photography 
Show. It is displayed in the Chelsea Lodge Hostel.
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•	 Hesse welcomes five new Board Directors, 
Mikel Dean, Max Arnott, John Sutherland, 
Peter Nemtsas & Linda Wong

•	  Life Governorship awarded to John Carr, Rod 
Hanson & Donald Lang, inaugural and outgoing 
Directors of Hesse Rural Health in 2018

•	 All standards met without recommendation 
under ‘National Safety & Quality 
Health Service (NSQHS) Standards V2’ 
accreditation, May 2019 

•	 All standards met without recommendation 
under ‘Aged Care Quality Standards’, May 
2019

•	 All standards met under ‘National Quality 
Standard’ for Rokewood Occasional Care, 
May 2019

•	 All standards met under the Home Care 
Quality Review, December 2018 

•	 Hesse CEO, Peter Birkett, undertook 
temporary CEO role at Beaufort & Skipton 
Health Service and led a successful NSQHS 
accreditation outcome

•	 Acute and Aged Care facility fully converts 
from LPG to natural gas with $250,000 in 
partial funding assistance from DHHS

•	 DHHS Rural Infrastructure Grant of $199,518 
to upgrade fire detection, emergency warning 
(EWIS) and sprinkler systems

•	 Presentation to the 2018 VHA Conference 
about the changing face of Hesse’s workforce 
in a consumer directed service delivery 
environment

•	 Inaugural Charlie McDonald Workforce 
Scholarship is launched following his 2017 
bequest 

•	 Surf Coast Shire approaches Hesse for 
consideration to purchase 53 Hesse Street, 
site of the Social Support Program (ADASS)

 
•	  Home Care program expansion provides 

services to 25 clients

HIGHLIGHTS
•	 Peter Birkett, CEO, invited by the 

Commonwealth Government to represent 
the sector in a review of the Australian 
Aged Care Quality Agency (AACQA) for 
compliance with the Regulator Performance 
Framework

•	 Renowned Australian Actor Alan Hopgood 
participates in a mock acute admission to 
Winchelsea Hospital, evaluating his consumer 
experience

•	 Werruna dementia environment features in 
an episode of Victorian Hospitals Industrial 
Association (VHIA) Members Spotlight 
Podcast series

•	 The development of a Clinical and Quality 
Governance Framework that effectively 
integrates quality systems across our small rural 
health service

•	 Employee Kate Allen presents the Royal 
Garden Jazz Band fundraiser at the Globe 
Theatre in October 

•	 Hesse welcomes new Acute & Residential 
Care Manager, Sonia Kaur

•	  Weekly Incident Review Meeting addresses 
matters of clinical and organisational risk and 
improves timeliness of incident closure

•	 Hesse considers proposal by Surf Coast Shire 
to increase Commonwealth Home Support 
Program services as local government 
transitions away from direct service delivery

•	 Ms Christine Craik, researcher, advocate  and 
family violence survivor, puts the spotlight on 
family violence at the 2018 AGM 

•	 Improved safe resident and patient lifting 
practices with the purchase of a HoverJack ®

•	 Tender process undertaken and architect 
appointed for aged care master planning and 
residential service expansion
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few years ago, the ‘Bus to the Hub’ originated 
as a community inspired social access project. 
Supported by volunteers, it connects local 

people without transport options to an affordable 
evening out that includes a 2-course meal of choice 
at the Eastern Reserve Community Hub in Winchelsea. 
Overlooking the floodlit footy field where the 
players are training, it regularly attracts between 
160 – 200 people and is a ‘must’ on the Winchelsea 
Thursday evening event calendar during winter.

When Activities Assistant Susie Powell first took 
a group of five residents to the Hub she was not 
prepared for the impact of the experience. She 
explains, ‘Our residents were greeted by local 
people, some including friends and family, but many 
they had not seen in a long time, who enthusiastically 
made conversation and re-established past 
connections’. 

Grandchildren and great grandchildren enjoyed 
seeing their ‘Nans’ or ‘Pops’ outside of the facility 
and sat proudly beside them. Everybody knew 
someone it seemed. There was lots going on. The 
residents experienced a rare night time outing and 
one gentleman enjoyed being able to take himself 
to the bar and order his own beer, a fond routine 
of yesterday. ‘A group of local children on the steps 
waving goodbye to the residents as our bus drove 
away was really moving’, Susie said. 

The intergenerational nature of the gathering is 
reflective of the fabric of communities. The residents 
talked about it so much for days afterwards, it is now 
a fortnightly regular outing and there is no shortage 
of interest.

RE -ESTABLISHING
COMMUNIT Y 

CONNECT IONS

A
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past year, tripling the 2018 numbers and successfully 
reaching the target set by the Board.

Registered Nurse, Fiona Vizard, oversees the 
successful program in which Hesse’s care delivery 
workforce has increased to 11. These staff support 
clients with tasks such as personal care, medication 
administration, domestic chores, cleaning, meal 
preparation, shopping and transportation to 
personal and medical appointments.

External contractors provide window cleaning, 
gardening, home maintenance, pharmacy, social 
support and installation of ramps and rails. Packages 
are accessed through the Commonwealth’s My 
Aged Care portal where funds allocated can range 
from $8,750 per year to over $50,000 per year, 
depending on assessment of care needs. 

The biggest challenge Fiona finds is assisting 
older people with the digital based platform and  
demystifying the jargon necessary to register with 
My Aged Care.  She says, ‘Many rural older people 
have no experience navigating the internet so they  
must find someone to help with this important first 
step. That person is often me’. 

‘Explaining how they can benefit is the starting point, 
and once they understand it, I help them to register.’ 
Commonwealth wait times for a package approval 
can range from a few months to a whole year. Care 
needs for older people can significantly change 
in that time. She recommends for older people to 
register early.

The Home Care program integrates neatly into 
Hesse’s range of other community based services. 
Community nursing, allied health and social support 
programs may also be purchased via the package 
funds. And of course, when home living is no longer 
an option, Hesse’s residential aged services often 
become the next step.   

Home Care Packages can support basic personal 
needs, but also can provide meaningful opportunities 
to engage and improve a person’s quality of life. 

Darryl’s identified needs allowed him to use his 
package to enlist the support of Trent and Matt to 
landscape his front garden. Gardening had been 
a long held passion and despite no longer being 
physically able to undertake the manual labour 
required, he was actively involved in directing the 
re-design project. The joy and quality of life that 
this has brought Darryl is remarkable. 

he Commonwealth Government’s 2016 Aged 
Care Road Map seeks to outline the pathway 
for older Australians to access competent, 

affordable and timely care and support services 
in their preferred setting through a system that 
respects consumers’ rights for choice, safety and 
dignity.

The expansion of Hesse’s Home Care program 
plays a key role in this national vision by ensuring 
our ageing rural consumers can access the supports 
they need to live well and independently at home. 
The program currently provides services to 25 
clients and coordinated care to almost 30 over the 

A YEAR
IN STORIES

‘ Just another day in the garden you 
may say, but this garden is special. It 
is a place for me to think, to use my 
imagination, to ponder over my past, 
my future, my family. I started with a 
blank canvas. My son Joel came to me 
one afternoon and asked about some 
plants. This simple question became an 
inspiration. It gives me purpose. I was 
straight onto the computer to find and 
learn about designing a native garden. 
One that would attract birds that I 
love. With my plans layed down, plants 
chosen carefully, it was time to start. 
Into my life came Trent. He was my legs, 
my hands and the person who together 
with Matt and Joel brought my dreams 
to fruition. It is a garden for the future. 
It all takes time. The front area is made 
up of mainly grasses and creepers with 
different Acacias that will form a mat 
with different colours and shapes. The 
back started with a frame for wisteria 
and a winding path for my two grandkids 
to use their imagination. A bench will 
be placed at the end amongst a forest 
of silver birch interspersed with various 
forms of Japanese maples. Bird feeders 
and a bath will be placed amongst the 
foliage for any feathered friend who 
wants a stopover. This is a garden that 
requires little maintenance for the people 
that I love. Only enjoyment and there 
will be plenty of that. Special thanks 
must go to the beautiful people from 
Hesse who care for me every day and to 
my family who gave me the inspiration 
to use my mind and imagination. ‘

Darryl , Bannockburn

MY GARDEN OF
INSPIRAT ION

T
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Outcomes are improved when health 
services and the staff within them 
engage in ways that facilitate effective 
partnerships with patients, residents, 
clients, carers, families and communities. 

Consumer Engagement and Partnerships 
is recognised as one of the six domains 
of Hesse’s approach to Clinical and 
Quality Governance and is guided by a 
comprehensive Consumer Engagement 
and Participation Framework and a 
Consumer Partnerships Domain Action 
Plan. The action plan is focussed within 
the six areas of: Effective Governance, 
Consumer Experience, Health Literacy, 
Consumer Participation in Clinical Safety 
& Quality, Improving Service Access and 
Consumer Centred and Rights Focussed 
Care.

We aspire to engage consumers across the 
participation spectrum, from information 
provision to active collaboration and 
empowerment. A Consumer Information 
Statement, developed with the input 
of consumers, is provided to all clients, 
patients and residents. A dedicated 
Workforce Information Statement assists 
staff to understand effective consumer 
partnerships.  

Governance for Effective Consumer 
Partnerships
Effective governance is achieved through 
an active Consumer & Community 
Advisory Committee (C&CAC) with 
integrated reporting to the Board Clinical 
Governance & Ethics Committee (CG&E). 
Volunteer Consumer Representatives 
have active links to different service and 

formal resolution process. Themes of 
compliments were gratitude for quality of 
services provided to oneself or a loved 
one. Complaint trends were related to  the 
quality of menu items and work practices. 
All formal complaints related to matters 
of staff conduct. All complaints were 
resolved satisfactorily. No complaints 
were received by external regulatory 
bodies.

A suggestion by the Resident & Carers 
Meeting was to commence informal 
morning coffee catch ups with the Director 
of Care and the Acute & Residential 
Care Manager to improve access to 
management and facilitate information 
exchange. This has developed into a well 
attended event on the fortnightly resident 
program calendar, and can address 
matters before they become concerns.

program areas. The CEO and a Board 
Director attend the C&CAC. In 2019 
the C&CAC welcomed Maria Tolley, 
Volunteer in the Residential Aged Care 
Program and Donald Lang, Life Governor 
and former Board Director representing 
the Beeac & District health programs, 
taking total Consumer Representatives to 
six.

The inaugural Charlie McDonald 
Workforce Scholarship (p. 31) was a 
consumer driven initiative to support 
workforce development.

Consumer Experience 
Consumer feedback on the services they 
receive is achieved through widespread 
distribution of brochures inviting 
suggestions, complaints and compliments. 
The brochure was redesigned in 2018 and 
is accompanied by a reply paid envelope 
to increase confidential responses. A 
dedicated email address feedback@
hesse.vic.gov.au was also initiated to 
facilitate increased pathways for sharing 
feedback.

Surveys are also undertaken annually 
within each program area, in addition 
to the ‘Victorian Healthcare Experience 
Survey’ and outcomes and action plans 
are reviewed by the C&CAC and CG&E 
Committees. 

Sixty-three (63) discrete pieces of 
consumer and carer initiated feedback 
were received. This comprised 
47 compliments, 5 suggestions for 
improvement and 11 complaints. Of 
the complaints 4 were escalated to a 

CONSUMER 
 ENGAGEMENT & PART ICIPAT ION
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Consumer Participation in Clinical 
Safety & Quality
One Consumer Representative undertook 
a three day Consumer Leadership Course 
facilitated by the Health Issues Centre 
and Consumer Partnership Training 
by Safer Care Victoria. Consumer 
Representatives also undertook training 
in co-design and human centred design. 
These skills were effectively implemented 
when co-designing prototypes for the 
‘Patient Information Boards’ in acute care 
and  nursing leadership boards. 

Consumers also participated in focus 
groups regarding the comprehensive 
health planning tools and format.

A highlight was ‘A Patient’s Admission 
Journey’ mock inpatient exercise 
with renowned Australian Actor Alan 
Hopgood (p. 16).

Improving Service Access
Community development approaches 
and promotion of local events can also 
assist consumer engagement and health 
outcomes. For a fourth consecutive year, 
the C&CAC sponsored a Health and 
Wellbeing Award at the 2019 Uniting 
Church Winchelsea Art and Photography 
Show. A resident from Chelsea Lodge and 
Consumer Representative participated in 
the judging panel and the health service 
purchased the winning piece entitled, 
‘Bubbles’ by artist Jenny Sweeney (p. 13). 
The runner up pieces were also purchased 
and are now displayed throughout the 
residential facilities. 

Adult Patient Consent?’ which covers 
situations where a substitute decision 
maker has been appointed. 

Health Literacy
Health literacy is a key focus of the 
C&CAC. Internally developed service 
brochures and patient information are 
reviewed to ensure they are appropriately 
targeted and possess suitable readability 
for health messaging. Readability tools 
such as SMOG, Flesch-Kincaid, SAM and 
Inclusive Language Guide assist in health 
literacy reviews. The health literacy 
logo is applied following C&CAC 
endorsement.

The C&CAC has also been involved in 
the language and formatting processes 
for new admission forms and the 
comprehensive care plan for patients. 

Consumer Representatives have provided 
editorial for the Annual Report of 
Operations for the past 13 years.

Consumer Centred and Rights Focussed 
Care
The ‘Australian Charter of Health Care 
Rights’, and separate ‘Charters of Care 
Recipients Rights and Responsibilities’ 
in Home Care and Residential Care 
have guided rights focussed care across 
program areas and services that are 
in keeping with broader human rights 
obligations. 

A new ‘Charter of Aged Care Rights’ 
comes into effect on 1st July 2019 providing 
the same rights to consumers regardless of 
the type of care they receive. This charter 
will be displayed where relevant and is 
required to be signed by all consumers 
receiving aged services. 

Ensuring consumers are able to consent to 
care and treatment is an important part of 
rights focussed care. Staff understanding 
has been supported through the provision 
of a decision making tool from the Office 
of the Public Advocate entitled, ‘Can Your 

QUALIT Y
SNAPSHOT

CONSUMER 
 ENGAGEMENT & PART ICIPAT ION

‘Thank you from the bottom of our hearts 
to the wonderful staff. When Dad passed 
away you all cocooned Mum with all your 
love and support and it never wavered up to 
the end. As I have seen on many occasions 
and now being on the receiving end with 
both Mum and Dad, Hesse does a great job 
looking after not only the resident but the 
family as well. ’

Family Member , Residential Aged Care

Blue Echium (Echium vulgare L.)
Location: Hesse Lodge gardens.
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esse Rural Health has joined 120 
organisations and 35,000 employees 
across a range of industries in the G21 

network by registering for the Workplace 
Achievement Program. 

Recognised by the Victorian Government, 
the Workplace Achievement Program 
provides an evidence based framework 
and practical steps, tools and templates 
to promote health and wellbeing in the 
workplace. The program was developed 
in conjunction with the Department of 
Health and Human Services, and is currently 
overseen by the Cancer Council Victoria. 
It aims to embed health and wellbeing into 
workplace culture, and positively impact on 
morale, safety and productivity. 

Hesse’s Health & Safety Representatives 
through the Occupational Health & Safety 
Committee have completed a snapshot 
survey to evaluate how well the organisation 
is doing on a number of measures across the 
five key priority areas of Smoking, Physical 
Activity, Mental Health & Wellbeing, 
Healthy Eating and Alcohol. This will form a 
dashboard report to inform a way forward.

There is a strong platform to build on. 
The Allied Health, Community Nursing 
and Health Promotion team, along with 
workplace champions have already 
promoted a range of initiatives this year. 
These include: 

Try for Five -  an annual campaign led by 
Nutrition Australia and launched across the 
G21 last year aims to increase the number of 
vegetable servings to five each day.

Choose Water This Summer - another 
initiative of the G21 encourages water 
as the drink of choice. All staff received 
a refillable water bottle to promote the 
campaign.

Vegie Nudge - a dedicated Hesse inspired 
initiative by dietitian Pip Keatinge aims 
to increase fibre intake for improved gut 
health, encouraging staff to consume 30 
plant based dietary sources over a week. 
Registered Nurse, Jess Wright, has been a 
champion of gut health sharing newsletter 
items of her weight loss journey.

STEPtember - a team based event promoted 
increased monitoring of daily activity levels 
during the month of September, raising funds 
for cerebral palsy awareness.

Lunch Time Nordic Walking - Michael 
Troup, physiotherapist, leads a weekly 
group using walking poles. This is said to 
activate 90% of the bodies muscles and burn 
more calories than regular walking.

2018 Jean Hailes Women’s Health - an 
event sharing messages and information 
that support prevention and management of 
women’s health conditions and encourages 
wellbeing. 

Health Promotion Officer Jen McLean is a 
key facilitator of these various campaigns 
ensuring linkages with regional population 
health priorities. She is an active member of 
two important G21 Health and Wellbeing 
Pillar working groups: ‘Decreasing 
Sugary Beverages and Increasing Water 
Consumption’; and ‘Increasing Vegetable 
Consumption’.

Adoption has been widespread and extends 
to the Board of Directors, who requested to 
decrease the size of platters prepared for 
meetings and replace some sweets with a 
selection of fruits. 

It seems everyone is on Board!

H

IMPROVING 
WORKFORCE
HEALT H & 
WELLBEING
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The Workplace Achievement Program aims to embed health 
and wellbeing into workplace culture, and positively impact on 

morale, safety and productivity. 

A YEAR
IN STORIES
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ural communities are well known for the 
extraordinary contributions and commitment 
of people who often do not recognise 

themselves as doing anything out of the ordinary. 
Hesse’s team of 40 program and service volunteers 
provide support in various ways across the 
organisation including: group activities and outings 
in residential care; social support program; Farm 
Safety Program; Breakfast Club; friendly client 
visiting; provision of transport and pastoral care; 
and as members of the Consumer and Community 
Advisory Committee (C&CAC).

Volunteering is not a one way street. Volunteers 
must be provided with support to undertake their 
roles. With such significant numbers of Volunteers 
and without dedicated resourcing for extensive 
coordination, formalised support can be a 
challenge. 

In a new approach in 2018, an information and 
networking event was combined with the usual 
Christmas celebration.  It included guest speakers, 
information about quality and safety, shared 
messages of appreciation from staff and clients, 
and an opportunity for Volunteers to give feedback 
and suggest improvements. Nearly 50% of Hesse’s 
volunteers were in attendance. 

Gary Ferguson from Seniors Rights Victoria 
addressed the important topic of Elder Abuse 
and broadened traditional frames of reference, 
highlighting the continuum of abuse, and its 
sometimes subtle nature, affecting older persons. 

Peter Kelly, sub-regional Project Officer from 
the ‘Strengthening Hospital Response to Family 
Violence’ project led by Barwon Health, provided 
an insight into the growing social issue of family 
violence and referral sources of support. 
Information was also provided on how Volunteers 
can assist when recognising patient deterioration, 
and topics of confidentiality, incident reporting, 
open disclosure and advanced care directives were 
also covered. 

Staff member Erika Nardozzi, who had just returned 
from an international volunteering experience, 
gave a fascinating visual presentation about her 

R

‘Over my 15 years of working at 
Hesse Rural Health I have had the 
pleasure of getting to know many of 
our fabulous volunteers. 

Their contribution to the lives of our 
residents is immense and I am sure 
they probably don ’t fully realise the 
value of their contribution. 

Whether it be the volunteer on 
an outing, driving residents to 
appointments, room visits or a chat 
with the ladies at the OP Shop whilst 
having a browse, their conversation 
and connection with our residents is 
important to put a little something 
extra into their day. 

Thankyou one and all. ’ 

Barb Stephenson, 
Registered Nurse

visits to Finland and Kenya. Volunteers were also 
offered an insight into what ‘consumer engagement 
and partnerships’ really means and invitations 
were extended to join the Consumer & Community 
Advisory Committee. Heather Butler, Volunteer for 
14 years at the Rokewood Breakfast Club, outlined 
the delight she receives by helping out.

Joan Rowlands of Chelsea Lodge, on behalf of all 
Hesse Rural Health aged care residents, personally 
thanked the Volunteers for their support and 
contribution, giving a special mention to Maria who 
regularly takes her to an Art Group in Colac.

It was a fabulous event with positive feedback 
from our Volunteers who all received a 2019 Hesse 
Rural Health calendar and card with messages of 
appreciation as a Christmas gift. 

Done in true rural style.

APPRECIAT ING 
OUR T EAM OF 

VOLUNT EERS

A YEAR
IN STORIES
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A YEAR
IN STORIES

Pictured: Claudio with Kristen, 
Occupational Therapist; Jess, 
Registered Nurse; Raelene, Diabetes 
Educator; Kathy, District Nurse; and 
Fiona, Home Care Coordinator, all of 
whom have played a role during his 
healthcare journey.

‘ I am a lucky man, the people at Hesse they are  
 very good, they have helped me a lot. ‘
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PERHAPS SMALL 
BUT WE MAKE A
DIFFERENCE

s a Small Rural Health Service, Hesse 
provides a modest range of health 
care services in comparison with 

the larger public health players, but those 
that we do provide can make an enormous 
difference to the lives of the people who 
live within our rural catchment communities. 

Claudio is one of a number of people 
who is well qualified to provide feedback, 
having experienced a number of Hesse’s 
services over the years. He has lived in the 
Winchelsea area since arriving in Australia 
from Italy in the 1950’s.  He was employed by 
the Conservation Department and travelled 
the area in his truck spraying noxious weeds. 
He was largely his own boss and he liked it 
that way.

Now aged 88 years, his first connection 
with Hesse was with the District Nursing 
team who provided wound care following 
a fall. He has also had regular outpatient 
appointments with the Diabetes Educator 
and Dietitian to monitor his diabetic 
condition. Referrals for Physiotherapy 
and Occupational Therapy supported his 
independence and mobility needs resulting 
in the acquisition of a new scooter. Claudio 
also attended the Winchelsea Social 
Support Program (ADASS) for a brief time 
enjoying a midday meal and the company of 
others after his wife had passed away.

In 2017 Claudio became one of Hesse’s 
early recipients of a Home Care Package 
which supported him with regular domestic 
chores, shopping and transportation to 
appointments. This year some cardiac 
troubles along with unstable blood sugar 

A levels resulted in a visit to Urgent Care at 
Winchelsea Hospital. The outcome was a 
Hospital inpatient admission.

Claudio admits he had been eating all the 
wrong stuff and the admission sorted out 
his blood sugar levels. He has learnt to live 
without the multiple sweet creamy coffees 
he used to crave. Now eating regular and 
healthy meals, he is amazed he doesn’t feel 
hungry all the time. Some health lessons are 
a lifetime in the making.

Although keen to return to his much loved 
home, after a period in Hesse’s Respite 
program, he realised it was time to move 
to Residential Aged Care permanently. 
His room has a lovely garden view and he 
is happily surrounded by his books. There is 
no shortage of visitors for Claudio, who is 
well known throughout the service and most 
grateful for the care he has received. ‘I am 
a lucky man, the people at Hesse they are 
very good, they have helped me a lot.’ 

Small services can make a world of 
difference. 



26 Annual Report 2019

It has been a busy year for quality and 
safety with three major accreditations 
occurring across our services, one 
unannounced contact visit in residential 
care and one occasional child care 
quality review. We met all required 
actions for each quality standard without 
recommendation for improvement.

In December Hesse’s Commonwealth 
Home Support services were evaluated 
against the ‘Home Care Standards’. 
Assessors were complimentary noting 
particularly strong partnerships, excellent 
community engagement and quality 
improvement initiatives. Consumers met 
with assessors via telephone and in person 
and described positive experiences with 
our community based District Nursing, 
Occupational Therapy and Physiotherapy, 
as well as our expanding Home Care 
Package program. 

We were one of the first health services 
nationally to be accredited under the 
second version of the ‘National Safety 
and Quality Health Service’ (NSQHS) 
standards. This evaluated quality 
requirements in Urgent Care, Hospital, 
Community Nursing and Allied Health 
programs. The eight standards, and 248 

2018 establishes the new Commission 
and enables the Minister to make rules 
to carry out the intentions of the Act. 
The ‘Aged Care Quality and Safety 
Commission Rules 2018’ give operational 
effect to the processes of the Commission. 
The Rules replace the ‘Quality and Safety 
Principles 2013’.  

From 1st July 2019 our aged services will be 
assessed under new ‘Aged Care Quality 
Standards’. This will include Home Care 
Services, Commonwealth Home Support 
Program and Residential Aged Care. 

While no recommendations for 
improvement were received from our 
external accreditation and quality 
review processes, we have self identified 
some future areas for focus including; 
monitoring recurring infections, staffing 
profile, medication storage manual 
handling procedures, introduction of 
urgent care clinical care pathways 
and systems to recognise mental state 
deterioration.

required actions were met.  We were 
commended for our advanced work in 
implementing the new ‘Comprehensive 
Care’ standard (p. 52) along with high 
levels of consumer and community 
engagement under the ‘Partnering with 
Consumers’ standard.  Of significance was 
the support provided by Dr Didir Imran, 
District Director Medical Administration 
for Visiting Medical Officer credentialing, 
clinical support and engagement.

Our residential aged care program 
was reviewed against the four former 
‘Residential Aged Care Standards’ and 
met the 44 outcome areas, in an approach 
where assessors initiated the site review 
by speaking directly with consumers about 
their experiences of care. 

On the 1st January 2019 a new Aged Care 
Quality and Safety Commission began 
operations replacing the Australian Aged 
Care Quality Agency and the Aged Care 
Complaints Commissioner. By combining 
their functions in one independent 
authority, it aims to streamline regulations, 
improve support and engagement with 
consumers and providers and promote 
improved transparency. The Aged Care 
Quality and Safety Commission Act 

Regulatory Quality 
Accreditation Framework

Relevant Hesse
Program Area

Accreditation 
Date Achieved Expiry

Home	Care	Standards Home	Care	Packages,	Social	Support	Program,	
District	Nursing,	Allied	Health Dec	2018 9	Aug	2022

National	Safety	and	Quality	
Health	Service	Standards,	

Version	2

Acute	Inpatient,	Urgent	Care,	Community	
Nursing,	Allied	Health,	and	Medical May	2019 25	June	2022

Residential	Aged	Care	
Standards

Hesse	Rural	Health	Hesse	Lodge	Nursing	Home
Winchelsea	Hostel	&	Nursing	Home	Society	Inc. May	2019 9-10	Aug	2022

QUALIT Y ACCREDITAT ION
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Staff undertook a total of 167 separate 
training courses during the year. 

A comprehensive annual mandatory 
training program is a requirement of 
employment and ensures staff awareness 
in key learning areas. Compliance was 
incentivised in 2018 with staff awarded 
a $30 gift voucher when all education 
required of their respective workgroups 
was completed. Compliance rates across 
the 13 topics ranged from 92% – 100%. 

The annual program has been revised. 
The frequency of some learning programs 
has been reduced to allow opportunity 
for education in other areas.  A dedicated 

Nurse Education Portfolio has also been 
introduced for 8 hours per fortnight. 

Hesse, along with Colac Area Health, 
Lorne Community Hospital, Otway Health, 
Terang and Mortlake Health Service 
and Timboon Health was successful in 
securing 0.5 EFT for a Workplace Trainer 
and Careers Advisor for staff employed 
under the ‘Health and Allied, Managers 
and Administrative Officers Enterprise 
Bargaining Agreement’. Recruitment for 
this sub-regional position will commence 
later in the year. 

 WORKFORCE 
T RAINING & DEVELOPMENT

An Advanced Care Directive allows an 
adult to document their preferences for 
future medical treatment should they 
lose their decision making capacity. A 
person can record general statements 
about their values and preferences to 
guide future medical treatment decisions 
or record instructions consenting to or 
refusing specific types of treatment. The 

Medical Treatment and Decisions Act 
2016 enshrines advanced care directives 
in Victorian law and creates clear 
obligations for health practitioners caring 
for people who don’t have decision 
making capacity. All Hesse residents are 
offered opportunities to complete an 
Advanced Care Directive.

ADVANCED CARE

DIRECT IVES
0102030405060

57%

Residents with Advanced 
Care Directives

51% 2018-19

2017-18

QUALIT Y
SNAPSHOT

Separate staff 
training courses 

undertaken.

167

Rosemary (Rosmarinus officinalis)
Location: Chelsea Lodge gardens - entrance.
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t is well known throughout the district and beyond 
that the Winchelsea Hospital Auxiliary Op Shop 
is hard to beat on matters of pricing. The theory 

goes that low prices equal stock turnover, which 
turns sales into profits. But keeping prices affordable 
is also a matter of integrity for these fundraising 
volunteers who get significant enjoyment from 
seeing their customers snag a bargain. After all 
these women love a bargain too.

Now in its eighth year, the Op Shop operating from 
the former Masonic Lodge at 2 Gosney Street,  
has averaged annual earnings of approximately 
$75,000. With such a proven formula for success it’s 
hard to believe they are in any need of inspiration. 
Yet this year they decided to take a day to check 
out their competition.

Arranged by Junior Vice President Pam Kelly, 
eighteen Auxiliary members boarded a bus to visit 
five Op Shops across Geelong to evaluate aspects 
such as store layout, storage, design and access. 
The day got off to a slow start with the first lesson 
of the day being not to rely on the CEO to book 
the bus. Hesse Volunteer driver Don Smith, however, 
managed to make up ground. 

It was as much a group social outing and shopping 
tour as it was an information gathering exercise, with 
the members enjoying a rare chance to get together 
beyond their bi-monthly Auxiliary meetings. The 
Belmont RSL Club hosted a lovely lunch, there was 
the inevitable raffle and plenty of individual bargain 
hunting.  

The outcome included design ideas for a purpose 
built shop, complete with drive through donation 
drop off facilities and the conclusion that every 
other Op Shop in the district is too neatly arranged 
and overpriced. 

Who needs a loyalty card when you can grab a 
bargain for 50 cents anyway? 

After another outstanding year’s work the Auxiliary 
handed CEO Peter Birkett a cheque at their 2019 
AGM for $10,000 to contribute to resident amenity. 
The king-single bed replacement program also 
remains an ongoing Auxiliary funded intiative. 

Auxiliary Executive 2019 
Cheryl Mawson - President

Maureen King - Vice President
Pam Kelly - Jnr. Vice President

Ingrid Rowe - Secretary
Merle Rigby - Treasurer

A YEAR
IN STORIES

I
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PAT IENT HEALT HCARE 
EXPERIENCE

Consumers receiving community based 
services were also invited to complete 
a 64 item 2018 ‘Victorian Healthcare 
Experience Survey’. Thirty-three surveys 
were submitted, representing a 34% 
response rate. The overall consumer 
service satisfaction rating was 97%. The 
CEO individually wrote to all community 
based staff congratulating them on this 
outstanding result. Minimizing the need 

HOSPITAL

Victorian Healthcare Experience 
Survey: Patient Experience (Hospital) Target Result

Data submission
Full

Compliance
Achieved

% of positive patient experience responses - Qtr 1 95%
Full

Compliance*

% of positive patient experience responses - Qtr 2 95%
Full

Compliance*

 % of positive patient experience responses - Qtr 3 95%
Full

Compliance*

% of very positive responses to questions on 
discharge care - Qtr 1 75%

Full
Compliance*

% of very positive responses to questions on 
discharge care - Qtr 2 75%

Full
Compliance*

% of very positive responses to questions on 
discharge care - Qtr 3 75%

Full
Compliance*

Patients perception of cleanliness - Qtr 1 70%
Full

Compliance*

Patients perception of cleanliness - Qtr 2 70%
Full

Compliance*

Patients perception of cleanliness - Qtr 3 70%
Full

Compliance*

QUALIT Y
SNAPSHOT

for consumers to repeat information 
provided to health professionals was an 
identified area for improvement. The 
clinical nursing assessment tool utilised 
upon admission was reviewed to avoid 
duplication with information collected by 
the Regional Assessment Service and My 
Aged Care.

To meet service access needs for 
registered clients, business cards were 
re-designed and issued to allied health 
practitioners, district nursing clinicians 
and program coordinators.

COMMUNIT Y PROGRAMS

*Less than 30 responses were received for the period due to the relative size of the health service.

 97% 

Consumer community
service satisfaction
scorecard.

Silver Cotyledon (Cotyledon orbiculata)
Location: Winchelsea Community Health gardens.

A random selection of patients who 
have been discharged from Victorian 
public hospitals received an invitation to 
participate in the ‘Victorian Healthcare 
Experience Survey’. Results allow 
benchmarking with other health services. 
Due to low patient throughput, Hesse’s 
results are not statistically significant 
to generate a report. Therefore local 
patient surveys are also undertaken. 



312019 Annual Report  

CHARLIE MCDONALD 
SCHOLARSHIP

n 2017 Hesse Rural Health received its largest 
ever bequest to the value of $169,000 from the 
estate of Charlie McDonald. Charlie was a 

former client at Hesse’s Social Support Program 
(ADASS), lived in one of Hesse’s recently acquired 
independent living units, and in the latter part of his 
life was a resident of Hesse Lodge Nursing Home.

A bequest of this size can offer many program and 
capital development opportunities. The Board 
agreed to set aside Charlie’s generous bequest until 
a significant capital project was available to honor 
his memory. 

In keeping with their charter to advance consumer 
engagement and partnership opportunities, the 
Consumer & Community Advisory Committee 
suggested to the Board that until such time that a 
capital project was forthcoming, the investment 
earnings from the principle donation be used to 
strengthen workforce learning and development. 

It was agreed a sum be set aside to establish the 
Charlie McDonald Scholarship Fund. Staff were 
invited to submit an application for scholarship 
funding to support their learning and development 
in an area of extension to their current work role or 
for career enhancement. Applicants were asked to 
outline how their intended education would support 
consumer centred care. 

The Consumer & Community Advisory Committee 
considered nine applications and Ingrid Rowe, 
Consumer Representative, together with Charlie’s 

executor Mr Danny Ehmer, announced the successful 
applicants at the 2018 AGM. 

Danny provided a response of thanks, outlined 
Charlie’s fondness for living at Hesse Rural Health, 
and shared an amusing story or two. He told the 
audience how happy Charlie would have been to 
make a difference to the working careers of staff 
that he so fondly regarded.   

Consumer participation at its best. 

The recipients were:
•	 Ms Louise McMaster                                                                                 

Personal Care Conference

•	 Ms Elise Kennard                                                                                    
Certificate IV in Ageing Support/Disability

•	 Ms Mel Lewis (not pictured)                                                                                       
Certificate IV in Ageing Support/Disability

•	 Ms Geraldine Handley                                                          
Certificate IV in Ageing Support/Disability

•	 Ms Belinda Stones                                                                                    
Certificate IV in Human Resources

•	 Ms Caisha Tanis                                                                                             
Single unit module, as a part of Graduate 
Certificate in Health Informatics

I
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orming partnerships with consumers is regarded 
as central to effective health service system 
design. Yet at the critical moments of health 

care delivery, when consumers are at their most 
vulnerable, they are at a distinct disadvantage by 
their limited knowledge of clinical practice and how 
the health system operates. They place their trust in 
health professionals as the experts. 

Asking for the input of consumers to re-evaluate 
or re-design services is not easy, nor is it even 
appropriate on some occasions when patients are 
acutely unwell.

Whilst we can evaluate some aspects of our care, 
there is only so much we can learn from patient 
surveys. In rural areas it may be that feedback 
becomes positively skewed, by patients fearful 
of losing a valuable community asset – their local 
hospital.  

To find out whether or not we were really meeting 
the needs of our acute inpatients, Hesse approached 
renowned Australian Actor Alan Hopgood 
who agreed to participate in a mock admission 
to Winchelsea Hospital. Alan is well known to 

Winchelsea where he has previously performed 
many of his ‘health plays’. A ‘no surprises’ scenario 
was devised with input of Nursing staff, Medical 
personnel and Consumer Representatives.

Alan played the role of 84 year old ‘George’, 
enroute from Melbourne to Lorne for a weekend 
away when he became unwell. His concerned wife 
‘Rosie’ [played by Alan’s wife Gay Hopgood] took 
him to the Winchelsea Medical Clinic to see General 
Practitioner Dr Mani Kutti, who recommended an 
admission to hospital. George, who had recently 
completed a course of radiotherapy, still had some 
pain, was fatigued and suffering nausea. George 
spent a full day at the hospital, was assessed by the 
doctor, nursing and allied health staff and evaluated 
hospital meals. For the purposes of the exercise, he 
underwent a ‘fast forwarded’ discharge experience 
which included a skype review with the Pharmacist 
to ensure he understood the medication that had 
been prescribed.  

The exercise concluded with a facilitated feedback 
session for Staff, Management, Consumer 
Representatives and Board Directors to hear 
George and Rosie’s views about their experience 

 A PAT IENT’ S ADMISSION
JOURNEY

F
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of admission to Winchelsea Hospital.  What worked 
well and what could be improved? George’s alter 
ego ‘Alan’ was generous with his compliments, 
favourably comparing Winchelsea Hospital to a 
recent metropolitan hospital admission, but did 
point out the lack of soap in the ensuite. He also 
gave some constructive feedback about the new 
comprehensive care planning processes and the 
overwhelming nature of professional jargon.

The exercise allowed a focus on key elements of 
the ‘National Safety and Quality Health Service 
(NSQHS) Standards V2’ including; ‘communicating 
for safety’, ‘comprehensive care’, and ‘medication 
safety’, and demonstrated how these requirements 
must intersect for a satisfactory consumer 
experience.

The exercise also demonstrated that exploring 
alternative avenues for consumer input into system 
design can be both fun and informative. 

A YEAR
IN STORIES
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QUALIT Y
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Much has been recently written about 
clinical governance. It is the new buzz 
word that suggests clinical health practices 
have the required level of stewardship for 
safe and effective consumer outcomes.  

But what if a considerable quantity of 
your health service delivery was not 
driven clinically, but instead by the 
needs of our rural consumers to live a 
safe, happy, dignified and 
meaningful life. Many of 
Hesse’s flag ship services 
across our integrated suite 
including residential aged 
care, home care, social 
support programs, health 
promotion programs and 
children’s services, are 
exactly that. 

When it came time to 
rebrand our existing 
Quality Framework that 
described our systems for 
quality assurance into the 
contemporary ‘clinical 
governance’ approach, we 
had to think long and hard 
about whether this really 
suited our integrated 
organisation and the needs 
of our rural consumers. 

The Board, Executive 
Leadership Team and Consumer & 
Community Advisory Committee 
reviewed the ‘Victorian Community 
Services Quality Governance Framework’ 
(Victorian Department of Health & 

consumer dignity and choice. As a small 
integrated provider of rural acute and 
community based services this resonated 
and it seemed appropriate that Hesse’s 
governance approach incorporate a 
focus on both clinical and organisational 
quality governance. 

A new Clinical and Quality Governance 
Framework was introduced in April and is 

illustrated.

In summary the model 
comprises:
4 Pillars                                                                                                                                             
Consumers, Workforce, 
Board and the Community. 

Each of these ‘Pillars’ 
undertake roles and 
functions that keep the 
organisation accountable.

6 Domains                                                                                                                                           
•		Leadership	for	Quality				
    Improvement                                                                         
•		Care	&	Clinical	Practice																																																																														
•		Human	Resources																																																											
•		Consumer				
    Engagement &    
    Partnerships                                                            
•		Risk	Management																																																																																		
•		The	Business	of	
    Operations

Each of these domains are expressed in 
their own separate frameworks with core 
platforms, responsible committees and 
continuous quality improvement action 
plans.
 

Human Services, 2018), the ‘Victorian 
Clinical Governance Framework’ (Safer 
Care Victoria, 2017), and the ‘National 
Model Clinical Governance Framework’ 
(ACSQHC, 2017), mapped the elements 
against our existing functional systems 
and processes,  and examined whether 
the required governance assurance could 
be applied to all our program areas. 

The Commonwealth’s ‘Single Aged Care 
Quality Framework’ in place from July 
2019 introduces the term ‘organisational 
governance’ and a new set of standards 
have been established which centralise 

INT EGRAT ING CLINICAL
 & QUALIT Y GOVERNANCE
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3 Activity Principles of ‘Privacy, Dignity 
and Choice’, ‘Enabling Environments’ and 
‘Communication’ positively facilitate the 
model, which is centred around our Values 
of Inclusiveness, Person Centredness, 
Integrity, Excellence and Creativity. 

Hesse’s Clinical & Quality Governance 
Framework is uniquely based on the 
premise that effective business operations 
are also essential to clinical and quality 
governance and therefore cannot be 
excluded from the model. Hesse considers 
that effective business operations are 
necessary for organisational viability 
and sustainability and as such are a 
key component of our obligations and 
responsibilities for effective governance. 

STAF F SAF ET Y
A total of 28 Occupational Health & Safety 
incidents were recorded, a reduction 
of 22 from the prior year. Almost  40% 
were matters of smart lift resident care or 
manual handling practices, and 32% were 
related to aggression or behaviors of 
concern by a resident with dementia. There 
were no serious injuries. All matters were 
appropriately investigated and action plans 
implemented. A focus this year has been to 
ensure line managers are conducting and 
recording welfare checks with employees 
within 24 hours post incident. 

The uniform guide has been updated to 
include recommendation for non-slip shoes 
for staff working in wet areas.

National aged care funding models are 
inextricably related to care through 
dependency and needs based formulas, 
demonstrating that effective business 
operations are soundly linked with clinical 
care and quality.  

Hesse’s Clinical and Quality Governance 
Framework is available on request or may 
be downloaded from the Prompt Policy 
database.

Worksafe conducted a proactive 
intervention site visit as a part of their 
Workplace Bullying Referrals project. 
Bullying and Harassment policies and 
procedures were reviewed along with 
the Responsible Workplace Behavior 
online education program, compulsory 
training table, OH&S committee structure 
and confirmation of Health & Safety 
Representatives. Board governance 
reporting process on allegations and 
resolution processes for matters of bullying 
and harassment in the workplace has been 
implemented. 

‘ We thank you from the bottom of our hearts for your loving care. 
It brought us great comfort knowing my husband was well cared 
for. Thank you for always making us feel welcome and giving us 
great support and kindness along the way. We have come to feel 
as though some of you are more than support workers, you are our 
friends. Keep doing the amazing work you do. Thank you is not 
enough. ‘

Family Member , Residential Aged Care

OH&S Incidents
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SUPPORT ING 
 ST UDENT LEARNING

‘My name is Beau and I am in Year 
11 studying VCAL at Belmont High 
School. I am also doing a VET program, 
Certificate II in Agriculture.

For my studies I am required to undertake 
community service throughout the year. 
I chose to come to Hesse Rural Health 
and help out in residential aged care.  
It’s close to home and I come here every 
Wednesday during school term.

I have learnt about how an organisation 
functions and all the separate tasks that 
people do to make it work. There ’ s lots 
going on. I really enjoy coming and I have 
noticed how happy the residents are to 
have a young person like me around. They 
remember me and say, ‘You ’ ve come back’. 
I bring the ‘Stock and Land’ newspaper 
to one man and we read it together. It 
makes him really happy. I do the exercise 
groups, have called bingo, help set up for 
crafts, and recently have participated in 
the new Men ’ s Group. 

The classroom is not my thing, so I really 
look forward to coming to Hesse.  

I wish every day was Wednesday. ‘

A YEAR
IN STORIES

esse supports student learning wherever 
possible and incredible things can be 
achieved. Just like Beau, staff member Jamie 

Tenebel also began her relationship with Hesse 
as a secondary school work experience student, 
initially as part of citizenship activities for the Duke 
of Edinburgh Award in 2008. 

Then, after leaving school, Jamie successfully 
applied for a casual food and domestic services 
assistant role in 2011, became permanent and then 
began to set her sights higher. She took to the books 
in 2012 and after completing a Certificate III in 
Aged Care, Jamie became a Personal Care Worker 
before putting her head down again. This year she 
completed a Diploma of Nursing, gained AHPRA 

registration and was successful in her application 
for an Enrolled Nurse position. 

Jamie is the second person to successfully transition 
from Personal Care Worker to Enrolled Nurse 
in 2019, proving that even in small health services 
career pathways can exist if you are prepared to 
work hard.

Hesse also supports relevant student placements 
from registered training organisations and 
professional entry student nursing and occupational 
therapy.

This year Jamie also raised $1,300 for the Leukemia 
Foundation braving the razor for the World’s 
Greatest Shave. 

H

Pictured: Jamie, Enrolled 
Nurse, braves the razor 
for leukemia research.

372019 Annual Report  
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CLINICAL INCIDENTS 
 & ADVERSE EVENTS
Staff across all program areas are 
required to report clinical and safety 
related incidents. Incidents are rated 
according to severity; no harm/near miss, 
mild, moderate or severe. 

All incidents are reported to the Victorian 
Agency for Health Information (VAHI).

Of the total 322 reported clinical 
incidents, 99 were rated as ‘no harm/near 
miss’, 218 were ‘mild’ and there were six 
(6) incidents with an incident severity 
rating (ISR) of ‘moderate’ (ISR 2). None 
were rated as ‘severe’.  Four of these 
ISR 2 incidents were a fracture following 
a fall. Multi-disciplinary in-depth case 
reviews are undertaken for incidents 
rated as ‘moderate’ to evaluate systemic 
causation and are reported to the Quality 
Leadership, Clinical Review and Clinical 

Governance & Ethics committees with 
involvement of the District Director of 
Medical Administration. 

Following analysis, improvements included 
the introduction of a screening tool to 
assist in the identification of delirium and 
stroke care pathways and acquisition 
of HoverJack ® equipment to facilitate 
safe, comfortable and dignified resident 
transfers. 

Clinical Incident Types

61%10%

11%

8%

7%

Other

Falls
Pressure
Injury (1%)

Medication

Skin Tear

Behavioural

Diet (2%)

Aged care residents and their nominated 
representatives are invited to complete 
an annual satisfaction survey. Forty-
five (45) surveys were received in 
2018, representing an 80% response 
rate for all occupied beds. The overall 
satisfaction score of a 37 item survey was 
93%. Identified areas for improvement 
were increased resident and family 

participation in medication review, 
increased variety of culturally relevant 
menu items and further promotion of 
advocacy services. 

Outcomes and action plans of all consumer 
experience surveys are reviewed by the 
C&CAC and CG&E Committees. 

CONSUMER EXPERIENCE SURVEY

RESIDENT IAL AGED CARE

 93% 
Level of satisfaction 

expressed by 
residents or their 
representatives.
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CLINICAL INCIDENTS 
 & ADVERSE EVENTS

PAT IENT SAF ET Y
 & WORKPLACE CULT URE

Falls

QUALIT Y
SNAPSHOT

Public sector organisations across 
Victoria are invited by the Victorian Public 
Sector Commission (VPSC) to participate 
in the annual ‘People Matter Survey’. 
This survey provides a measurement 
of the perceptions of staff regarding a 
range of matters including public sector 
values, quality and employment principles. 
State funded health services must opt 
into the survey but individual employee 
participation is voluntary. Fifty percent 
(50%) of staff completed the survey 
in 2018. Organisational reports are 
benchmarked with 40 comparable health 
agencies. 

Hesse’s highest performing areas 
relative to comparable agencies in the 

2018 ‘People Matter Survey’ included; 
access to opportunities for learning and 
development, effective orientation and 
supervision of staff and a positive culture 
for people who work part-time and who 
identify as LGBTI.

An action plan was developed to address 
lower performing areas: involving staff 
in workplace decisions and keeping 
them informed, perceived objectivity in 
management decision making and support 
for work life balance and psychological 
health. Three of the six internally set 
outcome areas were achieved with one 
in progress.  

DHHS 
Target Actual

Percentage of staff with an overall positive response to safety and culture questions. 80% 95%
Responses to individual questions:

‘I am encouraged by my colleagues to report any patient safety concerns I may have.’ 80% 98%
‘Patient care errors are handled appropriately in my work area.’ 80% 98%
‘My suggestions about patient safety would be acted upon if I expressed them to my manager.’ 80% 94%
‘The culture in my work area makes it easy to learn from the errors of others.’ 80% 98%
‘Management is driving us to be a safety-centred organisation.’ 80% 93%
‘This health service does a good job of training new and existing staff.’ 80% 90%
‘Trainees in my discipline are adequately supervised.’ 80% 96%
‘I would recommend a friend or relative to be treated as a patient here.’ 80% 91%

People Matter Survey - Governance, Leadership & Culture

Nicola’s Blush (Plantaginaceae hebe)
 Location: Chelsea Lodge rear gardens.
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F ILLING T HE VOID FOR 
EMERGENCY 

HEALT HCARE
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Currently 000 emergencies throughout Winchelsea and district 
are responded to by ambulances from either the Colac, Geelong, 
Bannockburn, Torquay or Anglesea stations.
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n an effort to reduce waiting times for 
residents of the Surfcoast Shire needing 
emergency care, Ambulance Victoria in 

2016 earmarked Winchelsea for its first ever 
ambulance station. That vision has come 
to fruition in 2019 with the Willis Street 
complex completed and services now ready 
to commence.

Hesse’s Leadership Team recently toured 
the new amenities, hosted by Ambulance 
Victoria’s Jerome Peyton, Area Manager, 
and colleague Warren Cato, Surfcoast 
Senior Team Manager. The gesture was 
reciprocated and the emergency officers 
were familiarised with Hesse’s  urgent care, 
acute inpatient and residential facilities. 
The meeting allowed discussion of the 
anticipated impact for urgent care patient 
throughput at Winchelsea Hospital. Patient 
attendance reached 194 in 2019, up from 144 
in 2018. 

Hesse Rural Health CEO Peter Birkett 
says it has long been an objective of the 
health service to secure a local ambulance 
service and welcomes this exciting new 
development. ‘While Winchelsea Hospital’s 
Urgent Care, with available nursing and on-
call medical services, plays an important 
role for our local community, a gap has 

existed on the service spectrum for patients 
requiring emergency response. This will fill 
that void.’ 

Currently 000 emergencies for residents 
of Winchelsea and district, are responded 
to by ambulances from either the Colac, 
Geelong, Bannockburn, Torquay or 
Anglesea stations. All of these townships 
are still a life threatening 30 minutes from 
Winchelsea and further from outlying rural 
areas.

Winchelsea Hospital is currently a transfer 
and stop over point for ambulances 
travelling between Warrnambool and 
Geelong. Patient bathroom breaks will 
become a thing of the past with accessible 
toilet amenities now available in the new 
Ambulance Station. Other features of the 
new ambulance facilities include a drive-in 
and drive-out garage bay for vehicles, rest 
and recline areas, an office, training room, 
bedrooms and a fully fitted out kitchen.

In a community with predicted population 
growth this is a timely service development.

Pictured: Sonia, Manager 
Acute & Residential Care; 
Karen, Community Services 
Coordinator; Shirley, Acting 
Director of Care; with Warren 
Cato and Jerome Peyton, 
Ambulance Victoria.

I

F ILLING T HE VOID FOR 
EMERGENCY 

HEALT HCARE
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Over prescription of antibiotics is a public 
health issue and health services have a 
role in providing effective antimicrobial 
stewardship (AMS). AMS is a collective 
set of strategies that aims to improve 
the appropriateness, and minimise the 
adverse effects, of antibiotic use including 
resistance, toxicity and costs. Stewardship 
is achieved by promoting optimal antibiotic 
regimen, dose, duration and route of 
administration. McGeer Guidelines lead 
best practice AMS for the prescription of 
antibiotics. Audits against the Guidelines 
are undertaken monthly with an average 
compliance rate of 85%.

Hesse is a participant in the South West 
Antimicrobial Stewardship (SWABS) 
Committee auditing program. An infection 
control consultant from the Victorian 
Infection Prevention Services (VICIPS) 
completes a SWABS audit annually. 
SWABS also provides Hesse with access 
to a pharmacist and clinical microbiologist. 
Hesse resources an Infection Control 
Registered Nurse portfolio for 24 hours 
per month. 

New recommendations have been 
developed for immunisations across 
workgroups in accordance with the 
Australian Government Department of 
Health ‘Australian Immunisation Handbook’. 
It follows a risk exposure model. The 
Nurse Immuniser can provide required 
vaccinations or pathology.  Ninety-two 
percent (92%) of the workforce, 100% 
of aged residents and 48% of volunteers 
received the influenza vaccination in 2019. 

The October National Hand Hygiene 
Initiative audit results (78%) fell below 
the accepted national level (80%) for 

cleaning audits also reveal high levels of 
compliance.

Hand Hygiene Australia learning modules 
are also compulsory for all staff (100% 
compliance) and relevant staff also 
undertake food safety training at regular 
intervals. 

There were no  influenza or gastroenteritis 
outbreaks during the past year.

INF ECT ION PREVENT ION

QUALIT Y
SNAPSHOT

Grevillea (grevillea rosmarinifolia)
Location: Hesse Lodge front gardens.

Rates represent whole 
of workforce, not only 
frontline workers.
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Healthcare Worker FluVax Uptake

the first time since 2013. Microshield hand 
sanitiser was placed on all food trolleys, 
additional workforce and GP education 
was undertaken and pre and post hand 
hygiene agar plate microorganism 
initiatives assisted in educating staff on 
the importance of hand hygiene. Results 
rebounded to 98% in March, higher than 
the 85% national average. Relevant staff 
also undertake food safety training at 
regular intervals. Touch point and other 
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our years ago there were few social outlets 
for a man retiring within the Beeac district. 
Men’s sheds were growing in popularity as a 

solution for other communities. Local men were 
consulted about what they thought could suit their 
social needs and improve health and wellbeing. 
Their answer was surprising. One gentleman stated, 
‘I ran an engineering business all my life, I certainly 
don’t want to spend any more time in a shed.  I am 
supposed to be retired now’. And it seemed the 
local farmers felt much the same. 

What they did want was exactly what had been 
available to a group of local women as a part 
of Hesse Rural Health’s ‘Nesters’ Program. They 
wanted to catch up for coffee and a meal once a 
fortnight, and to do things of interest to them. For 
these blokes it was to get out and about to places 
they had not been to before.

And they have certainly done that, cutting their 
teeth on a day trip to Sydney in 2016, to Hobart in 
2017 and this year spending two nights in Adelaide. 

The focus of ‘destination Adelaide’ was the 
Birdwood Motor Museum, showcasing a collection 
of vehicles that describe Australia’s social history 
through the world of transportation. The men also 
visited a Barossa winery, explored the village of 
Handorf and tasted culinary delights at Maggie 
Beer’s property at Nuriootpa.

Program Coordinator Jeanette Welsh recognises 
the importance of groups like the Beeac Men’s 
Group for ageing rural men. She says, ‘It’s ironic 
that when people retire from the workforce they 
have plenty of time on their hands, but their social 
outlet has diminished and once highly anticipated 
trips to places of interest don’t seem quite so inviting 
anymore.’ 

It can be very stressful to drive and simultaneously 
negotiate maps, petrol stations, traffic and parking in 
unfamiliar places. The coordination and facilitation 
along with a group of very supportive Volunteer 
drivers takes all the stress away, leaving the men to 
simply enjoy themselves.

The Beeac Men’s Program is partially funded through 
the Commonwealth Home Support Program, with 
significant destination outings subsidised by the 
participants themselves. There are 24 men from the 
Beeac district registered with the program. 

They enjoy thinking up future destinations, and are 
currently planning an outing to Victoria’s Parliament 
House, following an invitation from local Polwarth 
MP Richard Riordan. It’s not always interstate, 
there are plenty of local trips too, and certainly no 
shortage of suggestions from this eager group. 

RET IREES SET  
 T HEIR SIGHTS 

ON T HE
CAPITALS

F



T HE LAST OF T HE LIF E    
GOVERNORS

ne of the provisions within the recent Health 
Legislation Amendment (Quality and Safety) 
Act 2017 was to limit the number of terms to 

three that a single Director could serve on a public 
health Board in Victoria. From 2018 a Director 
may not serve more than nine years, and sessional 
payments were simultaneously introduced.

Historically it has been commonplace for rural 
health Boards to be comprised of community 
minded individuals who commit significant years 
to healthcare governance. Hesse Rural Health and 
its predecessors Winchelsea & District Hospital, 
Beeac Hospital and Leigh Community Care Centre 
were beneficiaries of such extraordinary levels of 
commitment. 

Concluding their terms with the Hesse Rural Health 
Board in 2018 were three outstanding individuals. 
As such, the current Board saw it fitting to award 
Life Governorships, for what may be the last time 
in the history of Hesse Rural Health, to John Carr, 
Rod Hanson and Donald Lang at the 2018 Annual 
General Meeting. There are now a total of 39 Life 
Governors appointed to Hesse Rural Health and 
former entities.

John Carr
John joined the Hesse Rural Health Board at the time 
of the 1994 amalgamation of Leigh Community Care 
with Beeac Community Hospital and Winchelsea 
Hospital to form Hesse Rural Health. John had 
previously served on the Board of Leigh Community 
Care Centre and along with others advocated with 
foresight for the amalgamation to ensure continued 
service delivery in the local rural community.

In addition to the 18 years at Leigh Community 
Health, John served on the Hesse Board for 24 years 
including two short terms as Senior Vice President,  
as President for 14 years, and as Treasurer during 
his final year. He was a member of the Finance, 
Resources & Audit Committee since 2002.

John was a driving force for many Board initiated 
strategic developments to advance a business 

culture while simultaneously maintaining a focus on 
quality care. In 2017 John was awarded an Order 
of Australia Medal for his leadership achievements 
in community and rural healthcare. A former Board 
Director once discussed John’s stewardship as being 
delivered with the ‘gravitas’ required of the role.

42 years of service to the amalgamated and former 
entity. 

Donald Lang
When Donald joined the Hesse Rural Health Board 
at the time of amalgamation in 1994 he was the 
Junior Vice President of the Beeac and District 
Hospital. He served as Senior Vice President of the 
new entity for a short period, and has since served 
on Committees including Physical Resources & 
Planning and Fundraising. Since 2009 he has served 
on the Clinical Governance & Ethics Committee and 
was Chair for the last two years. 

Donald was a staunch advocate for his local Beeac 
community and undertook his clinical governance 
stewardship role with a quiet formality and 
dedication. He is now a member of the Consumer & 
Community Advisory Committee. 

Over 43 years of service to the amalgamated and 
former entity. 

Rod Hanson
Rod joined the Board of Hesse Rural Health in 1996 
and has participated as a member of the Finance, 
Resources & Audit committee for 16 years. He was 
a Company Director with the Winchelsea Medical 
Clinic Pty Ltd during the period of Hesse’s joint 
ownership of the GP practice. 

Rod was an active voice to maintain the Board’s 
grounded focus on consumer and community needs 
while blending this with essential business acumen. 
He had a knack for summing up the heart of any 
matter with humor and accuracy. 

22 years of service to the amalgamated entity. 

O
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Historically it has been commonplace for rural health Boards 
to be comprised of community minded individuals who commit 

significant years to healthcare governance.



LIFE GOVERNORS

BEEAC & DISTRICT HOSPITAL

LEIGH COMMUNITY CARE CENTRE

•	 Cr D Wallace
•	 Mrs M C Bingley

•	 Dr Cave
•	 Mrs A M Hitt
•	 Mrs S T Missen
•	 Miss E Woods
•	 Mrs A Hanlon
•	 Mrs E W McDonald
•	 Mrs W Foster
•	 Mr C A Boyd

•	 Mrs K A Morrison
•	 Mrs A Fagg

•	 Mrs G Lang
•	 Mrs R Parker
•	 Mrs A F Lang
•	 Mr W Johnstone
•	 Mr E Hanlon Jnr
•	 Mr F J Riley
•	 Miss C Woods
•	 Mr C Swan

•	 Mrs D Fagg
•	 Mrs P Jacka

•	 Mr G Cops
•	 Mr W H Missen
•	 Mrs O Missen
•	 Mr B M Lang
•	 Mrs A D Parrott
•	 Mrs M H Stinchcombe
•	 Mrs M H Wright
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WINCHELSEA HOSPITAL

•	 Mr W Boddington
•	 Mr J S Caldow JP
•	 Dr F X Connell
•	 Dr A G M Tymms

•	 Mrs J L Wilson
•	 Mr J H Kelly

HESSE RURAL HEALTH

•	 Mr K C Leigh
•	 Mr J Carr
•	 Mr R Hanson
•	 Mr D Lang
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KEEPING CHILDREN 

SAF E ON FARMS
round 20 children under 15 years are fatally 
injured on Australian farms every year. At 
Hesse Rural Health we are doing our bit 

to ensure children living within the catchment 
communities are not included in these tragic 
statistics.

The locally developed and long running Farm Safety 
Program, originally titled ‘Childless Tractors’, 
focusses on keeping children safe from a variety of 
farming hazards. However these days it’s not just 
tractors, with dangerous power take off apparatus, 
it’s also quad and motor bikes along with drowning 
which represents farming’s top killers. These topics 
are also now included in Hesse’s program. 

Aimed at year five and six students, the program is 
delivered at eight local primary schools including 
Rokewood, Teesdale, Inverleigh, Meredith, 
Lethbridge, Winchelsea, Beeac and Alvie over 
a seven week period. It concludes with a walk on 
a local farm testing the children’s awareness and 
learning through the identification of hazards. 
Approximately 340 students have been educated 
over a two year period. 

Brooke Grieg, Community Health Nurse, has been 
delivering the program over the past few years and 
she has now extended it into local kindergartens. 
All kindergartens in the Golden Plains Shire receive 
a modified form of the program which focusses 
on water safety, animal awareness and climbing 
hazards. Brooke says, ‘It’s only about 20 - 30 minutes 
in duration depending on children’s concentration 
spans, but it’s  important to gain interest in safety 
from a young age when kids are trusting and 
receptive‘.

Brooke was awarded a scholarship by the National 
Centre for Farmer Health to undertake a unit 
on ‘Agricultural Health and Medicine’ through 
Deakin University. This inspired her to make some 
key changes to the main program, including the 
development of a Farm Walk Safety Checklist. 

An illustrated copyrighted workbook depicting rural 
scenes is a component of the program, but Brooke 
says these days the children prefer the video 
based content. One clip warning of the dangers 
of electrocution from overhead powerlines really 
grabs the kids attention. 

Although the long term impact of the program is 
difficult to measure in terms of injuries prevented or 
lives saved, Brooke considers so long as children 
are thinking about safety, it’s got to be a good thing. 
Now in its 25th year, the program has reached 
across generations with some of the children’s 
parents having also undertaken the program. 

No stranger to rural life, in her spare time Brooke 
volunteers as a Community Ambulance Officer, a first 
responder to local health and medical emergencies. 
Drawing on her own emergency nursing skills and 
networks, in June Brooke coordinated an information 
session delivered by a MICA paramedic to 13 
people at Rokewood Community Health Centre to 
improve their knowledge across a range of topics 
including First Aid, Emergency Response, CPR and 
demystifying the use of defibrillators. 

Whether it be kids on farms or adults learning how 
to do CPR, safety is an important part of rural living. 

A
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spell in hospital in 2018 due to an 
unstable heart condition was the 
signal for Joan’s family that her health 

was vulnerable. After being discharged 
without a care plan and with long wait times 
for GP appointments in her local Colac 
area, Joan’s children sat her down and 
shared their collective feelings about the 
need for her to move to residential aged 
care.   

It was not something that Joan had 
envisaged although she understood how 
terrified her family were of one day finding 
her collapsed at home. So after a ring 
around for available care options she quite 
reluctantly packed some belongings, initially 
for a trial period of respite care, and came 
to Hesse.

‘I recall being quite sad, and a little angry 
and certainly frightened. Sue, one of the 
nurses said to me, ‘it’s OK, you will be 
alright, we will take care of you’’. Joan says 
those brief words were so very reassuring. 
‘Everyone has been so lovely’. 

Joan had always been a busy person. She 
was about to be the incoming President of 
her Probus group, spent at least 3 days per 
week volunteering at the Colac History 
Centre, attended a weekly art group and 
was a regular at church. She explains that 
identifying as a ‘volunteer’ assisted her own 
transition to new living arrangements. Joan 
would help by having conversations with 
other residents in care in Hesse Lodge and 
providing them with some support.

Joan explains that the hardest thing about 
coming into residential aged care is the loss 
of independence. The essential structures 
and routines lead to the feeling that you are 
being directed in what to do, even if nobody 
actually says it. She says the loss of friends 
you make also takes its toll, explaining that 
her dining room companion recently passed 
away. 

It’s been fourteen months now since she 
moved to Chelsea Lodge, and Joan has 
become accustomed to her new life. She 
spends her time reading, knitting, painting 
and going for walks into town. She speaks 
favorably of her new General Practitioner 
‘Dr Rob’  [McDonald] who has provided her 
excellent medical care, and she has a special 
relationship with Maria, a Hesse Volunteer 
who drives her to Colac each week so she 
can continue her weekly art group. 

Her art appreciation certainly comes in 
handy. Joan was a member of the judging 
panel for the 2018 Hesse sponsored Health 
& Wellbeing Award at the Winchelsea 
Uniting Church Art & Photography show, 
and the CEO was so impressed with her 
selections he bought them all. 

LIF E
TRANSIT IONS

A
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Pictured: Joan discussing 
art techniques with 
volunteer Maria.

‘Sue, one of the nurses said to me, ‘it’s OK, you will be all 
right, we will take care of you ‘. Those brief words were so 

very reassuring. Everyone has been so lovely.’

A YEAR
IN STORIES
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A SPOT LIGHT
ON FAMILY VIOLENCE

ixty-three Australian women in 2018 died as a 
result of family violence. Researcher and family 
violence advocate Christine Craik told Hesse’s 

community that female deaths resulting from family 
violence are now tallied to raise awareness of this 
alarming public health issue, just like road toll. She 
is pleased about that, ‘if we continue to hide it, we 
cannot fix it’, she says.

Christine Craik is a PhD candidate researching 
routine screening for women in domestic violence 
situations who present to public emergency 
departments. She is also a social worker and a 
personal advocate with lived experience of family 
violence. Her own experience is testimony that 
family violence does not discriminate according to 
academic qualification or social stratification. 

She holds a special place in her heart for rural 
health services as, after presentations to other 
metropolitan hospitals, it was within a rural urgent 
care centre that she finally felt supported and safe 
enough to disclose her own harrowing experience 
of family violence. 

For many women experiencing violence their only 
option for support will be the public health system 
due to its accessibility, affordability, anonymity and 
in rural areas, lack of other options. Research has 
found women experiencing domestic and family 
violence are three times more likely to attend 
public hospitals than women who are not, and yet 
76% of Australian health professionals have no 
education in identifying family violence as part of 
their qualifying degree. 

Hesse Rural Health is joined by Colac Area Health, 
Lorne Community Hospital, Otway Health & 
Community Services and Barwon Health as the lead 
health service, in implementing the ‘Strengthening 
Hospital Response to Family Violence’ model 
within our sub region. Similar funded projects are 
underway within all public health services across 
Victoria, as a response to a recommendation from 
the 2016 Royal Commission into Family Violence. 

In 2018 the Hesse Rural Health Board of Directors 
signed a Statement of Commitment to recognise 
the impact of family violence and agreed on 
their governance responsibilities, to respond to 
this important public health issue. After receiving 
education highlighting the widespread nature of 
family violence across the lifespan, the Board 
invited Christine to present at the 2018 Annual 
General Meeting to allow the local community to 
understand this significant public health matter. 

Board Junior Vice-Chair Michelle Stocks thanked 
Christine for sharing her professional and personal 
insights and told the audience, ‘We know that 
tonight’s presentation may have been a challenging 
topic for an AGM, but as Directors we also believe 
we have a responsibility to advocate for this 
important public health issue’.

Christine’s message for all health professionals is to 
be better equipped and prepared to ask the hard 
questions. It may not have an immediate impact, 
some people can take a long time to accept help, 
but one question might make a world of difference 
and perhaps save someone’s life. 

Understanding family violence is a compulsory 
training module for all Hesse staff in 2019. 
Recommended training also exists for Hesse’s front 
line workers including nurses and allied health 
professionals to identify and sensitively respond to 
disclosures of family violence. 

S

‘You have certainly done so much 
work in Family Violence for the 
Barwon area in the past 12 months - 
talk about social change - I feel really 
privileged to know you and to have 
played a small part in the terrific 
work you are doing.’ 

Christine Craik
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COMPREHENSIVE CARE
A number of health disciplines contribute 
to care outcomes for patients at Hesse 
including Nursing, Medical, Occupational 
Therapy, Physiotherapy, Pharmacy, 
Dietetics and Diabetes Education. The 
aim is to ensure all clinicians are working 
to meet consumer needs. Comprehensive 
Care has been introduced into the revised 
‘National Safety and Quality Health 
Service (NSQHS) Standards V2’ and 
champions coordinated care delivery. 
This requires partnering with consumers to 
identify their agreed goals and planning 
care around assessed physical, mental and 
cognitive needs in a manner that minimises 
the risks of harm. 

It sounds straight forward, but for too long 
health disciplines have been working in 
isolation, leaving the consumer to make 
sense of it all. If advice is conflicting, patients 
can become confused. Comprehensive 
care means that there is only one plan and 
that the multi-disciplinary team must now 
really work together. 

To implement this change, a gap analysis 
and mapping exercise was undertaken 
examining admission, screening and 
documentation processes. Health 
disciplines participated in a focus group to 
workshop and develop a single consumer 
focussed Comprehensive Care Plan. 

This was refined by Hesse’s Consumer 
Representatives. 

The result was a consumer based care 
planning template that incorporates 
the assessments of individual health 
practitioners and the expressed consumer 
goals of care. A key lesson has been 
to avoid making assumptions and ask 
consumers what they actually want. 
Ground breakingly simple. 

Hesse was highly regarded for the work 
undertaken in advancing comprehensive 
care at the recent NSQHS accreditation 
site audit. 

MEDICAT ION SAF ET Y
When a patient leaves hospital it is of 
critical importance that they understand 
the medications that have been prescribed 
by their doctor. Many tablets appear 
similar, and when taken incorrectly the 
outcomes can be serious. Pharmacists are 
an important part of the multi-disciplinary 
team, but in a small health service they 
are not readily available. A new initiative 
has commenced which ensures that prior 
to discharge, a conversation is held with 
our local Winchelsea Pharmacist over 
Skype video conferencing. Nursing 
staff facilitate the discussion and the 
Pharmacist can meet the patient and 
provide important information about their 
medicines. The Pharmacist does not have 
to leave their business premises. 
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Pictured: Anant, local pharmacist.

Dutch Iris (Iris × hollandica)
Location: Hesse Lodge front gardens.
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QUALIT Y
SNAPSHOT

INF RAST RUCT URE

& ENVIRONMENT
The hospital, residential facility and 
administration areas are now fully 
connected to natural gas following 
supply to the Winchelsea township. 
This will lead to greater fuel efficiency, 
carbon reduction, improved equipment 
lifespan, financial savings and reduced 
risks associated with onsite storage of 
LPG. During installation elevated pressure 
levels in the ceiling space were identified 
and required replacement of outdated 
ageing public hospital pipework and 
infrastructure. DHHS provided additional 
funding to address this risk issue. 

The monitoring and detection fire panel 
system at the main Winchelsea campus has 
also been replaced following irreparable 
damage from storm related electrical 
surging. External security monitoring 
personnel supported a safe transition. 

A new ‘chook’ house has been built in 
the Werruna farm yard. The internal 
environment has benefited from new 
rural artwork and extended LED lighting 
replacement in Chelsea Lodge. 

BEING INCLUSIVE 
FOR PEOPLE WIT H DISABILIT IES

policy and workforce disability awareness 
and advocacy education. A whole of staff 
survey will canvas other opportunities for 
implementation.

Disability Action Plans form part of the 
Government’s broader social justice 
policy to reduce barriers faced by 
disadvantaged groups. Under federal 
legislation (the Disability Discrimination 
Act, 1992) and under Victorian legislation 
(the Equal Opportunity Act, 1995) it is 
against the law to discriminate on the 
grounds of disability. 

It is widely reported that one in five 
Australians have an existing disability that 
may include physical, sensory, cognitive 
or mental health impairments.  People with 
a disability can face many barriers when 
accessing services and participating in 
community life. These may be physical, 
attitudinal or barriers that hinder effective 
communication. 

Hesse has drafted its first Disability 
Action Plan spanning a 3 year timeframe. 
Strategies include; renovations for a 
wheelchair accessible public toilet in 
Winchelsea Hospital, the installation of 
a hearing loop in the training room, the 
development of a reasonable adjustment 
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sk most people who is the longest 
serving member of Hesse’s Executive 
Management team, and they will 

usually answer incorrectly. Stephen Wight is 
regarded as Hesse’s Chief Financial Officer 
and provides a crucial, yet much less visible, 
role to the organisation.  

A current Director of Davidsons accounting, 
Stephen and his team prepare monthly 
financial reporting to the Board of 
Directors and to funding bodies, including 
but not limited to the Victorian Department 
of Health and Human Services. They also 
have responsibility for meeting financial 
management compliance obligations, 
monitoring expenditure to budget and 
acquital of grant based income streams. 
The organisation has contracted Davidsons 
for nearly 29 years, prior to amalgamation 
in 1994 when Hesse was established as a 
separate entity.

This makes Stephen very familiar with Hesse’s 
range of programs and he has professionally 
assisted in the development of Hesse’s 
internal business and operational reporting 
systems. He is well versed in government 
accounting standards, has previously been 
an individual agent for the Victorian Auditor 
General’s Office (VAGO) and as a former 
Board Director at Barwon Health and the 
Chair of their Audit Committee for 6 years, 
understands the governance requirements 
and responsibilities of Boards. 

Peter Birkett, Chief Executive Officer, 
is a strong supporter of externally 
contracted accounting services because it 
provides both himself and the Board with 
a level of independence and objectivity 
enabling  greater confidence that financial 
management is effective and possesses 

integrity. Stephen and his colleague Esther 
Heikkila also provide education to Board 
Directors through regular presentations 
that are tailored to Hesse’s unique business 
circumstances, such as in understanding 
financial statements.  

Davidsons also undertakes financial 
reporting for several other Victorian public 
health and aged care services and not for 
profit organisations who also operate 
aged and residential services. This leads to 
efficiencies in knowledge development and 
Stephen himself values the mutuality of this 
relationship.

A dairy farmer’s son who grew up in rural 
Victoria, Stephen is able to understand 
smaller services and respects the role they 
play within communities. He holds a special 
connection with the area having played for 
the Winchelsea Football Club in the late 80’s 
including the Premiership team of 1987.

In the years that Stephen has been at 
the helm he has overseen a surplus in the 
majority of those years and has successfully 
navigated the accounting requirements of 
all internally funded capital developments. 

Stable financial management is a key 
ingredient for effective organisations. 

 F INANCIAL RIGOUR KEEPS 
OUR ORGANISAT ION 
ST RONG

A
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A YEAR
IN STORIES

Stable financial management is a key ingredient 
for effective organisations. 

Pictured: Stephen and Ester 
of Davidsons accounting with 
Peter Birkett, Chief Executive 
Officer.
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101

2014-15 2015-16

Registrations by Year 
Combined Winchelsea 
and Beeac Social 
Support Programs 

2016-17 2017-18 2018-19

143

130 132 131

‘ Whilst we see the value of the connections made during the program, what is 
less visible is the role that it plays in assisting the development of connections 
and networks outside of opening times. The bond the clients develop further 
strengthens their overall wellbeing.’ 
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elly dancing, ten pin bowling, fashion 
parades, morning melodies, shopping, 
bus outings, crafts, games, cultural 

theme days, guest speakers and celebratory 
events. All these activities and more have 
been enjoyed by 131 clients attending both 
the Beeac and Winchelsea based Social 
Support Program this year.

Funded through the Commonwealth Home 
Support and the Victorian HACC Program 
for Younger People, the Winchelsea program 
is still colloquially regarded as ‘ADASS’, a 
hangover from days when it was operated 
by a separate Committee of Management. 
Since Hesse assumed management in 2005 
it has gone from strength to strength, and 
there is increasing integration between 
the Beeac and Winchelsea Social Support 
Programs. Following a reablement model, 
and delivered by staff who are trained in 
supporting adults as they age, for four days 
per week it provides a range of opportunities 
for people to interact, explore interests and 
to maintain independence. It also offers 
respite for families in caring roles. 

ADASS will celebrate its 30th birthday in 
August this year. Program Coordinator 
Jeanette Welsh sees a range of benefits of 
the program. ‘Whilst we see the value of 
the connections made during the program, 
what is less visible is the role that it plays in 
assisting the development of connections 
and networks outside of opening times. The 
bond the clients develop further strengthens 
their overall wellbeing’.

She continues, ‘it’s just like a second home 
for many of the clients. Some simply come 
for the home style midday meal and feel 
safe and comfortable enough after lunch to 
sit in the corner and doze off, knowing there 
is someone to look out for them. Others get 
right into everything’.

Last year as a part of an asset review across 
a range of portfolios and locations, the 
Surf Coast Shire approached Hesse Rural 
Health to canvas interest in purchasing 
the land and buildings at 53 Hesse Street 
where the program has been situated for 
the past 19 years. Currently an in-kind 
lease arrangement is in place with the local 
government authority.

The building layout comprises a large 
communal space, dining area, kitchen with 
servery, an office area, a break-out space, 
and ample storage area and has disability 
accessible toilets and bathroom facilities. 
‘There is simply no alternative space 
available in Winchelsea that can support 
a program of this variety and magnitude’, 
says Peter Birkett, Hesse Rural Health CEO. 
‘To lose the space would mean loss of the 
program. It is perfectly located adjacent 
to the Winchelsea Men’s Shed who have 
established a firm relationship with the 
program for mutual rewards’. 

On this basis the Board sought an 
independent valuation, undertook a 
business analysis and confirmed interest in 
the acquisition. In June the Surf Coast Shire 
Council resolved to proceed with the sale 
solely to Hesse Rural Health relying upon 
a provision within the Local Government 
Act, 1989 allowing the transfer of assets to 
another government entity following public 
notice without the need to go to the open 
market. 

This is a very exciting development and 
means that, for Hesse and the clients served, 
the program will now literally be a place to 
call home.

A PLACE 
 TO CALL 

 HOME

B
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Hesse’s programs and services are 
located and delivered on the land of the 
Wathaurong People of the Kulin Nation. 
We recognise the significant difference 
in life expectancy and health outcomes 
between Indigenous and non-Indigenous 
persons and are committed to playing a 
role to address this. 

The 2016 Australian Bureau of Statistics 
report identifies there are 86 persons who 
identify as being of Aboriginal and Torres 
Strait Islander descent residing within 
our catchment communities of Beeac 
(3) [Colac Otway Shire]; Winchelsea 
(25) [Surf Coast Shire]; Rokewood (0), 
Central West – Corindhap, Dereel, Cape 
Clear (18), Bannockburn (40) [Golden 
Plans Shire].

An Aboriginal Cultural Safety policy 
has been developed which outlines our 
approach towards inclusive, equitable, 
relevant and culturally sensitive services 
for Indigenous people who visit, seek 
or receive Hesse’s health care services. 
Aboriginal and Australian flags are 
flown together outside the Winchelsea 

While population statistics show our 
catchment communities are predominantly 
comprised of people who are Australian 
born and English speaking, we must 
also be equipped to respond to the 
needs of consumers from Culturally 
and Linguistically Diverse (CALD) 
backgrounds. To involve them in decisions 
about their care, effective communication 
in languages other than English is vital. 

employment and collect data to measure 
progress. We look forward to continued 
participation.

QUALIT Y
SNAPSHOT

Handpainted stones inspired by indigenous art during 
NAIDOC week at the Social Support Program.

Hospital and aged care facilities and 
Wathaurong textured glasswork is 
featured throughout. The Aboriginal flag 
is also displayed at the entrance to each 
campus site. A cultural safety E-Learning 
package is made available to staff. 

We are committed to working with 
local area health services together 
with Aboriginal Elders and their 
representatives to ensure our approach 
appropriately reflects cultural safety 
needs. An Executive representative 
attended a Round Table meeting at 
Narana Aboriginal Cultural Centre in 
March as an initial step towards the 
establishment of a Barwon Aboriginal 
Governance Committee. The Committee 
aims to develop an area Indigenous 
action plan to identify emerging issues 
and opportunities, set priorities for 
increased inclusion through Indigenous 

A voice language translation device 
has been acquired that can translate 52 
languages and is easy to use. This will 
support communication without the need 
to engage formal translation services 
and limit the need to acquire brochures 
in multiple languages. There were nil 
occasions of face-to-face interpreter use 
during 2018-2019. 

DIVERSIT Y & OUR

INDIGENOUS COMMUNIT IES

LANGUAGE 
T RANSLAT ION AT T HE 

T IP OF OUR F INGERS

VHIA PUTS T HE SPOT LIGHT 
ON WERRUNA
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Hesse’s reputation for the provision of evidence 
based aged dementia specialist residential services 
has infiltrated into unexpected quarters. Whilst 
it’s not unusual to receive requests for visits from 
other health services, to spark the interest of a peak 
employment industrial body is a little outside of 
usual business. 

In March we were approached by Stuart McCulloch, 
Chief Executive Officer of the Victorian Hospitals 
Industrial Association (VHIA) to participate in a 
Members Spotlight Episode of a podcast series 
designed to inform others of positive initiatives 
undertaken by member agencies. 

VHIA is a specialist registered organisation who 
represents public employers across the hospital, 
community health, aged care and welfare sector 
on industrial, enterprise bargaining and human 
resource employment related matters. Their new 
podcast series on topics of interest has now forayed 
into showcasing health service achievements. After 
Hesse hosted a Regional Members Forum, VHIA 
staff stayed on to learn more about our residential 
and dementia facilities.

The Werruna dementia environment was the 
drawcard and a camera crew toured and filmed 
the internal and external surrounds before filming a 
Q & A style interview, hosted by Stuart McCulloch 
with Peter Birkett, Hesse’s Chief Executive Officer 
and Andrea Dunlop, Manager Workforce & Service 
Development.

VHIA PUTS T HE SPOT LIGHT 
ON WERRUNA

‘ I think HESSE is doing some very 
impressive and important work, and 
I’ m glad we could feature this in our 
video podcast! Thank you very much 
for being part of VHIA ’ s member 
spotlight. We appreciated your 
enthusiasm! ‘

Susanna, VHIA Digital & 
Online Marketing Coordinator
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The program covered the design concepts behind 
Werruna that promote an enabling environment, 
philosophies on meaningful engagement, 
internationally led research undertaken on thriving 
and person centred care, multi-disciplinary 
approaches, workforce education models and 
resident and family outcomes. 

While it was the 102nd Podcast of the VHIA series, 
it was only the 5th Members Spotlight, and the 
first rural episode. Previous episodes had been 
conducted with the Royal Women’s Hospital on 
Family Violence, Maryborough Health’s Centre 
of Inspired Learning, Barwon Health’s Aboriginal 
Health Unit and North Richmond Community 
Health’s Safe Injecting Room.  

It was a privilege that VHIA elevated Hesse to 
company of such high esteem. The podcast may 
be viewed by searching for ‘Hesse VHIA Member 
Spotlight’ on You Tube. 
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orkplaces mean different things to different 
people. Gardener, Kate Allen, explains 
that her connection with Hesse Rural 

Health extends beyond employment. As a local 
to the Winchelsea area she sees firsthand what a 
difference Hesse has made to the lives of many. She 
is always looking for ways to personally support the 
activities of the health service. 

Inspired by her mother who recently passed away, 
Kate coordinated a fundraising event at the Globe 
Theatre in Winchelsea in October 2018, featuring 
the Royal Garden Jazz Band. Tickets offered great 
value at $35 per head and total proceeds raised 
was $1,845. Generous sponsorship from local 
business included a computer from Harvey Norman, 
Waurn Ponds, a car service voucher from Blood 
Toyota, landscape supplies voucher from RAK Davis 
and an ostrich feather handbag from the Vault. 

Most importantly for Kate, it was a terrific night 
out and she combined her love of jazz with her 
commitment to Hesse Rural Health. 

T HE SPIRIT
OF GIVING
W

DONATIONS
Donations of ≥ $40,000
•	 Kelly Family (defined purpose: building)

Donations of ≥ $20,000
•	 Winchelsea Hospital Auxiliary

Donations of ≥ $5,000
•	 Cochrane, V (Bequest)
•	 Taylor, K

Donations of ≥ $1,000
•	 Winchelsea Lions Club
•	 Graham, K
•	 Allen, K
•	 Anderson, B

Donations of ≤ $1,000
•	 Carr, J
•	 Hendry, A
•	 Hulonce, P & D
•	 Murfitt, L
•	 Patten, J
•	 Rokewood & District Newsletter
•	 Southern Grain Storage Pty Ltd

$81,357 
donated in

2018-19

The Winchelsea Lions Club 
supported the ongoing 
Winchelsea Hospital 
Auxiliary residential king-
single bed replacement 
program with a $3,000 
donation.



ast President for 11 years and member of the 
Winchelsea Hospital Auxilary for a total of 
16, Lynette Henderson passed away in Chelsea 

Lodge on 30th December aged 76 years. Lynette 
was a committed volunteer for the Winchelsea 
community and was instrumental in the establishment 
of the Hospital Auxiliary Op Shop venture in 2012. 

Fondly regarded, Lynette was wise, straightforward, 
hilariously funny and unafraid to speak her mind. 
Beneath her direct manner and dry sense of wit 
was a generous and forgiving woman with a big 
heart. One of the few who could keep our CEO and 
maintenance officers on their toes, she was a tireless 
supporter of Hesse Rural Health and worked hard 
to ensure the Op Shop was such a success. We 
have been fortunate for having her as part of our 
organisation and community.  

Farewell our dear friend.

Congratulations to the following staff members 
who reached fifteen years of service in 2018

•	 Kim Allen, Health Care Worker, residential 
(pictured right)

•	 Nicole Rogers, District Nurse (pictured below)

•	 Barb Stephenson, Registered Nurse, Acute & 
Residential Care Manager

Congratulations to the following volunteers who 
reached ten years of service in 2018

•	 Pauline NG, Winchelsea Social Support 
Program (ADASS) 

P
VALE - LYNETTE HENDERSON

YEARS OF SERVICE

RECOGNIT ION
OF SERVICE
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   QUALIT Y 

INDICATORS 
Public Sector Residential Aged Care
Quality Indicators (per	1,000	bed	days)

Overall 
Statewide Rates 2018-19 2017-18 2016-17

Pressure	Injuries	Stage	1 0.32 0.00 0.26 0.00
Pressure	Injuries	Stage	2 0.35 0.12 0.53 0.00
Pressure	Injuries	Stage	3 0.04 0.00 0.00 0.00
Pressure	Injuries	Stage	4 0.01 0.00 0.00 0.00
Falls 7.67 13.04 9.19 6.92
Fall-related	Fractures 0.15 0.25 0.00 0.12
Use	of	Physical	Restraint	Devices 0.27 0.00 0.00 0.00
Multiple	Medications	-	9	or	More 4.37 3.97 3.68 2.46
Significant	Weight	Loss	(	>	3	Kgs) 0.80 1.37 0.79 0.47
Unplanned	Weight	Loss	(Consecutive) 0.81 1.12 0.53 0.47

Other DHHS Reportable Indicators Target 2018-19
Compliance	with	Hand	Hygiene	Australia	Program 80% 91%
Healthcare	Worker	Immunisation	-	2018	Flu	Season 80% 84%
Sentinel	Events All	RCA	reports	

submitted	within	30	
business	days

NA

 UNPLANNED 
WEIGHT LOSS
Weight loss in older people is a sign 
of deteriorating health and can occur 
for reasons including; health related 
conditions, chronic disease, depression 
and behavioural disturbances related 
to dementia. Residents are weighed 
regularly. The newly introduced Mini 
Nutritional Assessment (MNA) can assist 
to identify risks of malnourishment and 
provide an action pathway until dietetic 
review. 

Hesse is below 
state average 
for multiple 
medications per 
1,000 bed days.
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ESCALAT ION OF CARE
Early recognition of patient health 
deterioration enables the best possible 
outcomes.  Education on how to recognise 
and manage when a patient’s health 
condition is deteriorating is compulsory 
for Hesse’s registered nurses. Monitoring 
and documenting vital signs, as well as 
neurological and cognitive assessments 
can help to recognise change and 
facilitate urgent action.

Hesse’s Family Initiated Response Seek & 
Tell (FIRST) initiative reminds patients and 

oxygen saturation levels had fallen 
dangerously low, requiring further 
investigation. The on call doctor was 
notified and Mr T was transferred back to 
the Emergency Department at University 
Hospital Geelong for immediate 
assessment and treatment. 

their significant others that they are an 
important part of the care team and are 
also able to escalate care if necessary. 

Case in Practice:
Mr T is a 78 year old man with Parkinson’s 
disease, diabetes, and dementia and had 
been living well at Hesse Lodge Nursing 
Home for over a year. After discharge  
from University Hospital Geelong 
following a planned surgical procedure 
he returned to Hesse for recouperation. 
Nurses monitoring his vital signs identified 

PREVENT ING HARM 

F ROM FALLS
People aged 80 and older are at the 
highest risk of falls and fractures. Mobility 
and overall health condition are other 
risk factors. Reported falls increased this 
year. Increased use of sighting charts 
for residents who are at high risk or are 
repeatedly falling is a proactive strategy 
to maximise opportunities for staff 
assistance. A correlation between falls 
and use of sensor mats, a falls detection 
strategy, has been noted as residents make 
self-attempts to minimise the disturbance 
caused by the alarm. Noise free detection 
alternatives are being examined. Ceiling 
motion sensors installed in bedrooms in 
Werruna are beneficial. 

However, falls rates must not be viewed in 
isolation. Dignity of choice, unnecessary 
restraint and maintaining mobility 
opportunities for healthy participation are 
important principles to consider.
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Candelabra aloe  (Aloe arborescens)
Location: Winchelsea Community Health gardens.



BET T ER COMMUNICAT ION
BET T ER OUTCOMES

e often talk about good communication 
being at the heart of effective health care, 
but this does not just happen, it needs 

to be supported by effective internal systems and 
processes. 

Three new initiatives to facilitate improved clinical 
communication have been implemented during the 
year and all can be directly linked to improved 
patient engagement and safety outcomes. The 
initiatives have relevance to hospital and residential 
program areas.

To support consumer engagement in acute care 
service delivery, whiteboards were installed near 
the bedside in all acute bedrooms and aim to share 
information between inpatients, families and care 
staff. The boards include the patient’s name, their 
assigned nurse on each shift, treating doctor and 
risk alerts, and provide a mechanism for reminder 
messages or questions from patient and families. 
They have become a visual reminder of the patient’s 
goals of care, and enable exchange of information 
during handover and opportunities for patients to 
be an active part of their care. 

Shirley Koch, Acting Director of Care, says, ‘It’s 
incredible that something as simple as a whiteboard 
can make such a difference but it really does work, 
it stimulates questions which become conversations 
and a better understanding of what our patients 
want’. A co-design approach was undertaken with 

Consumer Representatives who workshopped 
inclusions for the board layout. 

A patient journey board was also installed in the 
Multi-Purpose Room. This lists summarised critical 
information, alerts, investigations, appointments 
and plans to enable discharge for all current 
acute inpatients and aged residents who may be 
receiving a period of more intensive nursing care.  
The whiteboard provides a pivotal focus during 
handover to ensure all staff are aware of clinical  
matters of priority. As end users, staff evaluated 
journey boards from other health services 
and tailored a design unique to Hesse’s own 
requirements. 

Finally, a significant system wide improvement 
was the introduction of a weekly incident review 
meeting. Members of the senior leadership team, 
shift leaders, allied health professionals and other 
available staff are invited to join the weekly 
meeting. It provides a timely review mechanism for 
all reported incidents that have occurred in the 
preceding week. It ensures implemented actions 
are appropriate and allows workshopping of more 
complex situations. The meetings have increased 
rates of reporting, transparency of review and staff 
engagement and lead to timely incident closure.

Three important, yet simple and practical system 
changes that help us to improve the quality of the 
work we do. 

W
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he funny thing about belly dancing is that it 
looks easy. Slow percussive music without the 
need for extreme body movements. How hard 

can it be to go barefoot, sway those hips, wobble 
your flabby bits, float your arms gently through the 
air and shimmy to the beat?

Our wise residents mostly preferred to watch on in 
amusement when Lisa, the belly dancer, attempted 
to teach two staff and a volunteer this subtle 
Arabic dance art on the parquetry floor in Chelsea 
Lodge. Fortunately the flowing colourful sequined 
costumes covered a multitude of misunderstanding. 
Wisdom now tells us this is something that should 
be left to the experts. However it provided plenty 
of entertainment and a Middle Eastern inspired 
afternoon tea of Chai beverages, baklava and 
Turkish delight. 

Not sure about belly dancing, but there was plenty 
of belly laughing. 

T

SOMET HING 
TO BELLY LAUGH ABOUT
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loss has turned into an opportunity for a local 
group of older adults who now receive an 
integrated strength and balance program 

delivered under Hesse’s allied health and health 
promotion banner. 

Originally meeting at the Eastern Reserve 
gymnasium, the Winchelsea group were left to 
their own devices when their personal trainer was 
unable to continue. They looked to Hesse to fill the 
gap. The group now meets each Wednesday at the 
Winchelsea Community Health Centre and word is 
getting around. Facilitated by Hesse Occupational 
Therapist Kristen Howard, the group practice a 
range of exercises designed to improve their core 
strength and balance and reduce their risk of falls. 
Lifting weights, stretching, balancing and reaching 
are just some of the physical activities undertaken, 
often to the rhythm of their favorite tunes playing on 
Spotify.

Kristen says the group is steadily growing and 
attendance has peaked at fifteen, many of whom she 
says would not otherwise attend a traditional fitness 
program but have been encouraged by Hesse’s 
allied health and nursing professionals. It is actively 
supported by Michael Troup, physiotherapist, who 
pops in to keep an eye on things. Diabetes Educator 
Raelene Alexander provides a short healthy eating 
discussion on a range of topics of interest and 
Health Promotion Officer Jen McLean incentivises 
with healthy fruit platters as a reward at the end of 
the session. 

Raelene suggests that health information received in 
a social setting, supported by informal conversation 
is a strong stimulus for positive behavior change. ‘It’s 
unlikely some people would seek out this information, 
so for us to go to where they gather is a great way to 
reach them’. The program also identifies the need for 
other types of health assessments and interventions. 

The feedback has been very positive and group 
members can already see the personal benefits. Two 
men car pool from Jan Juc to Winchelsea, a 35 km 
journey, just to attend each week. A program clearly 
going from strength to strength.

Hesse’s allied health practitioners are funded by the 
Commonwealth Home Support, Victorian small rural 
health and Victorian HACC for Younger People 
programs. 

MAINTAINING 
ST RENGT H & BALANCE 
TO AGE WELL

Raelene Alexander: 
Diabetes Educator
Raelene is a specialist nursing 
educator in the management 
of diabetes. Using health 
coaching techniques she 
assists people with diabetes 
to actively monitor blood 
sugar levels and effectively 
self manage their condition 
to minimize complications. 
She undertakes centred based 
appointments in Winchelsea, 
Beeac and Rokewood.  

Kristen Howard: Occupational Therapist
Occupational therapy services support clients to live at home 
independently through assessments for mobility aids, assistive devices 
and building modifications such as the installation of ramps and rails. 
Kristen facilitates a popular weekly strength based exercise program to 
improve balance and prevent falls in older persons.

A
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OUR
SERVICES

Hospital Care

Breakfast Club

Bus to the Hub

Community Nursing

Dementia Care

Diabetes Education

Dietetics

District Nursing

Exercise Groups

Facilitated Play Group

Farm Safety Program

Greet, Eat & Meet

Health Promotion

Hospital in the Home

Immunisation Program

Men’s Group

Men’s Shed Program

Nesters Group

‘No Falls’ Exercise Program

Occasional Care

Occupational Therapy

Palliative Care

Personal Development

Physiotherapy

Podiatry

Post Acute Care

Post Natal Care

Pre-School Health 

Social Support Groups

Urgent Care

Volunteering

Walking Groups

Well Women’s Clinic

Yoga

Elli Bartlett: Occupational Therapist
Elli provides occupational therapy, 
individual and group based 
interventions in the acute and 
residential aged care program, 
including exercise programs and pain 
management. She also prescribes 
mobility aids and sources personal 
equipment to support independence 
in daily living. Within the dementia 
specific environment, the programs 
she facilitates are based on the 
principles of meaningful engagement.

Pip Keatinge: Dietitian
Hesse welcomed Pip in January 2019. 
She provides advice to clients on 
a range of dietary related matters. 
She has recently extended dietetic 
services to home based consultations 
for those who are unable to travel. 
She has a strong interest in health 
promotion and has commenced 
discussions with the Winchelsea 
Primary School to deliver healthy 
lunchbox sessions. Pip actively 
monitors nutritional requirements of 
residents in the aged care facility.

Michael Troup: Physiotherapist
Hesse provides the only publicly 
funded physiotherapy service in 
the catchment between Ballarat, 
Colac and Geelong. Michael 
offers centre based outpatient 
consultations in Winchelsea, Beeac, 
Bannockburn and Rokewood and 
also undertakes physical assessments 
and implements treatment programs 
in acute and residential aged care. 
He provides specialist advice to the 
multidisciplinary team regarding falls 
prevention and management. 
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COMPLIANCE

Kathy Taylor, Chair
11 September 2019

In accordance with the Financial Management Act 1994, I am pleased to present the 
Report of Operations for Hesse Rural Health Service for the year ending 30 June 2019.

RESPONSIBLE BODIES DECLARAT ION

Compliance with Health Purchasing Victoria (HPV) Health Purchasing Policies
I, Peter Birkett, certify that Hesse Rural Health Service has put in place appropriate internal controls and processes to ensure that it 
has complied with all requirements set out in the HPV Health Purchasing Policies including mandatory HPV collective agreements as 
required by the Health Services Act 1988 (Vic) and has critically reviewed these controls and processes during the year. 

Peter Birkett, Chief Executive Officer
11 September 2019

Integrity, Fraud & Corruption
I, Peter Birkett, certify that Hesse Rural Health Service has put in place appropriate internal controls and processes to ensure that 
integrity, fraud and corruption risks have been reviewed and addressed at Hesse Rural Health Service during the year.

Peter Birkett, Chief Executive Officer
11 September 2019

Data Integrity
I, Peter Birkett, certify that Hesse Rural Health Service has put in place appropriate internal controls and processes to ensure that 
reported data accurately reflects actual performance. Hesse Rural Health has critically reviewed these controls and processes 
during the year. 

Kathy Taylor, Chair
11 September 2019

Financial Management Compliance Attestation
I, Kathy Taylor, on behalf of the Responsible Body, certify that Hesse Rural Health Service has complied with the applicable 
Standing Directions 2018 under the Financial Management Act 1994 and Instructions.

AT T ESTAT IONS

Peter Birkett, Chief Executive Officer
11 September 2019

Peter Birkett, Chief Executive Officer
11 September 2019

Conflict of Interest
I, Peter Birkett, certify that Hesse Rural Health Service has put in place appropriate internal controls and processes to ensure that 
it has complied with the requirements of hospital circular 07/2017 Compliance reporting in health portfolio entities (Revised) and 
has implemented a ‘Conflict of Interest’ policy consistent with the minimum accountabilities required by the VPSC. Declaration of 
private interest forms have been completed by all executive staff within Hesse Rural Health Service and members of the Board, 
and all declared conflicts have been addressed and are being managed. Conflict of interest is a standard agenda item for 
declaration and documenting at each executive board meeting.
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Financial Information
FRD 22H Summary of the Financial Results for the Year 74
FRD 22H Significant Changes in Financial Position During the Year 2 & 74
FRD 22H Operational and Budgetary Objectives and Performance Against Objectives 2 & 74
FRD 22H Subsequent Events 73
FRD 22H Details of Consultancies Over $10,000 73
FRD 22H Details of Consultancies Under $10,000 73
FRD 22H Disclosure of ICT Expenditure 73

Legislation
FRD 22H Application and Operation of Freedom of Information Act 1982 72
FRD 22H Compliance With Building and Maintenance Provisions of Building Act 1993 72
FRD 22H Application and Operation of Protected Disclosure Act 2012 72
FRD 22H Statement on National Competition Policy 72
FRD 22H Application and Operation of Carers Recognition Act 2012 72
FRD 22H Summary of the Entity’s Environmental Performance 73
FRD 22H Additional Information Available on Request 72

Other Relevant Reporting Directives

FRD 25D Local Jobs First Act Disclosures 72
SD 5.1.4 Financial Management Compliance Attestation 70
SD 5.2.3 Declaration in Report of Operations 70

ATTESTATIONS
Attestation on Data Integrity 70
Attestation on Managing Conflicts of Interest 70
Attestation on Integrity, Fraud and Corruption 70

OTHER REPORTING REQUIREMENTS
Reporting on Outcomes from the Statement of Priorities 2018-19 74 & 76
Occupational Violence Reporting 73
Reporting of Compliance Health Purchasing Victoria Policy 70
Reporting Obligations under the Safe Patient Care Act 2015 72
Disclosure Index 71

MINISTERIAL DIRECTIONS

Charter and Purpose

LEGISLATION REQUIREMENT PAGE
FRD 22H Manner of Establishment and the Relevant Ministers 1
FRD 22H Purpose, Functions, Powers and Duties Inside front & 2
FRD 22H Nature and Range of Services Provided 67
FRD 22H Activities, Programs and Achievements for the Reporting Period 2 & 12
FRD 22H Significant Changes in Key Initiatives and Expectations for the Future 2

Management and Structure
FRD 22H Organisational Structure 10
FRD 22H Workforce Data / Employment and Conduct Principles 74 & 73
FRD 22H Occupational Health & Safety 73

DISCLOSURE INDEX
The Annual Report of Operations of Hesse Rural Health is prepared in accordance with all relevant Victorian legislation. This 
index has been prepared to facilitate identification of the Department’s compliance with statutory disclosure requirements.
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Freedom of Information (FOI) Act 1982
The Service operates within the guidelines defined within the 
Freedom of Information Act 1982 and its subsequent amendments.

For access to medical records there is a mandatory application 
fee of $29.60 that must accompany the written charges for 
searching, photocopying and postage.

A member of the public wishing to access information should 
make a written request to the Chief Executive Officer, Hesse 
Rural Health, 8 Gosney Street, Winchelsea, Vic 3241 on 5267 
1200. Further information may be sought from www.foi.vic.gov.
au.

Two FOI requests were received from the general public.

Buildings and Maintenance
Hesse complies with the Building Act 1993, and relevant 
provisions of the ‘National Construction Code’ for publicly 
owned buildings during maintenance and redevelopment. An 
essential fire safety service maintenance program is in place.

Protected Disclosure Act 2012
Hesse is compliant with obligations under the Protected 
Disclosure Act 2012. Protected disclosures may be made to 
the CEO or the Protected Disclosures Coordinator DHHS on 
1300 131 431 or protected.disclosure@dhhs.vic.gov.au. No 
disclosures were made.

Competitive Neutrality
Hesse is compliant with the requirements of the government 
statement ‘Competitive Neutrality Policy Victoria’. The purpose 
is to account for advantages arising out of public ownership. 

Carers Recognition Act 2012
The Carers Recognition Act 2012 recognises, promotes 
and values the role of people in care relationships. Hesse 
understands the benefits care relationships bring to patients, 
residents, their carers and the community. Hesse is compliant 
with Section 11 of the Act, and takes all practicable measures to 
ensure that its employees, agents and carers have an awareness 
and understanding of the care relationship principles. This is 
reflected in our commitment to a model of patient and family 
centred care, and the involvement of carers in the development 
and delivery of our services.

Safe Patient Care Act 2015 
Hesse has no matters to report in relation to its obligations 
under Section 40 of the Safe Patient Care Act 2015.

Occupational Health & Safety Act 2004
Policies and procedures provide guidance for safety in the 
workplace. Designated workgroups have been established and 
health and safety representatives are elected. OH&S incidents 

are recorded and monitored and site audits are undertaken. 
OH&S Meetings occur quarterly.  No major industrial accidents 
were reported during the year. 

Local Jobs First Act 2003
In 2018-2019 there were no contracts requiring disclosure under 
the ‘Local Jobs First Policy’.

Privacy 
Hesse complies with legislation relating to confidentiality and 
privacy including the Health Services Act 1988 (Vic.), Health 
Records Act 2001 (Vic.), Privacy Act 1988 (Commonwealth) and 
Privacy & Data Protection Act 2014 (Vic.). Policies ensure that 
personal health information remains confidential, secure and 
accessible under FOI guidelines.

Hesse Rural Health confirms that details in respect of the items 
listed below have been retained by the health service and are 
available to the relevant Ministers, Members of Parliament and 
the public on request, subject to the freedom of information 
requirements, if applicable:

Board
The Board hold monthly meetings eleven times per year. 
Sub-committees include Finance, Resources & Audit, Clinical 
Governance & Ethics and from 2019 Marketing & Fundraising 
and Buildings & Environment. Board representation exists on 
the Consumer & Community Advisory Committee. Each of these 
committees have guiding terms of reference. From 2018 Board 
Directors receive a sessional payment for undertaking their 
governance functions. This is funded by DHHS.

Pecuniary Interests
Declarations of pecuniary interests have been duly completed 
by all relevant officers.

Details of Shares Held
Senior officers hold no shares as nominees or beneficially in 
statutory authorities or subsidiaries.

Publications and Information
A range of service brochures are freely available for consumers, 
carers and the general public. Media clips on selected programs 
are also available via www.hesseruralhealth.org.au. This 
Annual Report is available upon request at Hesse Rural Health 
and uploaded onto the website.

Fees and Charges
All fees charged are in accordance with the ‘Hospitals and 

DISCLOSURES REQUIRED
UNDER LEGISLAT ION

FURT HER INFORMAT ION
AVAILABLE

COMPLIANCE
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2019 2018 2017

Number of reported hazards / incidents for the year 
per 100 full time equivalent staff members.

35.38 34.12 28.27

The number of lost time standard Worksafe claims for the 
year per 100 full time equivalent staff members.

5.06 3.17 2.36

The average cost per claim for the year.* $245,293 $24,786 $237,196

1. Workcover accepted claims with an occupational violence cause per 100 FTE. 0.00

2. Number of accepted workcover claims with lost time injury with an occupational violence cause per 1,000,000 
hours worked.

0.00

3. Number of occupational violence incidents reported. 11

4. Number of occupational violence incidents reported per 100 FTE. 13.90

5. Percentage of occupational violence incidents resulting in a staff injury, illness or condition. 27%

DEFINITIONS: for the purposes of the above statistics the following definitions apply. Occupational violence: any incident where an 
employee is abused, threatened or assaulted in circumstances arising out of, or in the course of their employment. Incident: an event or 
circumstance that could have resulted in, or did result in, harm to an employee. Incidents of all severity rating must be included. 
Injury, Illness or Condition: This includes all reported harm as a result of the incident, regardless of whether the employee required time off 
work or submitted a claim.

Occupational Violence Statistics 2018-19

Occupational Health & Safety

Charities (Fees) Regulations 1986’ and otherwise determined by 
the Victorian Department of Health and Human Services, the 
Commonwealth Department of Health or determined by the 
Health Service as appropriate.

External Reviews
There were no external reviews conducted by the health 
service.

Research and Development Activities
There has been no major research and development activities 
undertaken by the Health Service during the year.

Overseas Visits
No international visits were conducted by the health service 
this year. 

Promotions, Marketing and Public Relations
No significant community awareness campaigns were conducted 
for promotional, public relations or marketing purposes.

Consultancies
There were no consultancies where the total fees payable 
were $10,000 or greater, and 3 where the total fees payable 
were less than $10,000. Total expenditure incurred during 2018-
2019 in relation to these is $5,381 (excl. GST).

Information and Communication Technology
The total ICT expenditure incurred during the 2018-2019 is 
$432,193 (excluding GST) with the details shown below. 

Business as Usual Expense (exc GST) $432,193

Non-Business as Usual Expense (exc GST)

    Operational Expenditure $0

    Capital Expenditure $0

    Total: $0

Complaints
Consumer feedback is valued as a guide to the quality of 
care delivered. Complaints, suggestions and compliments are 
welcome and may be directed to relevant program managers 
or the Chief Executive Officer on 03 5267 1200 or feedback@
hesse.vic.gov.au. External avenues are available to escalate 
unresolved complaints. The Health Complaints Commissioner 
can be contacted on 1800 136 066 for complaints related to 
Victorian health programs and services. Complaints related to 
aged care services can be made to the Aged Care Quality and 
Safety Commission on 1800 951 822 or agedcarequality.gov.au/
making-complaint.

Industrial Relations
Conditions of employment are in accordance with the relevant 
public sector enterprise bargaining agreements. Hesse is a 
member of Victorian Hospital Industrial Association (VHIA) 
which negotiates on Hesse’s behalf in the formation of new 
agreements and provides advice as requested.

Employment and Conduct Principles
Hesse is committed to the principles of merit and equity in the 
workplace with respect to employment, promotion and equal 
opportunity. An Employee Code of Conduct guides responsible 
behaviour in the workplace. Employees have been correctly 
classified in workforce data collections.

Environmental Impacts
Hesse is committed to minimising environmental impacts and 
has in place effective systems including water harvesting, paper 
waste recycling, reduced energy consumption and improved 
reporting & monitoring.

Subsequent Events
There were no events subsequent to 30th June 2019 that would 
significantly effect Hesse’s operations in subsequent years.

*Variation from 2018 reported figures is attributable to one additional claim from prior year and change in the statistical estimate of remaining open claims.



74 Annual Report 2019

2019

Net Operating Result * $133,531

Capital and Specific Items

Capital Purpose Income $394,542

Specific Income

Assets Provided Free of Charge $0

Assets Received Free of Charge $0

Expenditure for Capital Purpose ($33,302)

Depreciation and Amortisation ($865,120)

Impairment of Non-Financial Assets $0

Finance Costs (Other) ($6,803)

Net Result from Transactions ($377,152)

FINANCIAL RECONCILIATION
of the ‘Net Result from Transactions’ 
to the ‘Net Operating Result’

CASH MANAGEMENT Actuals Target

Creditors 29 < 60 days

Debtors 41 < 60 days

ASSET MANAGEMENT Actuals Target

Adjusted Current Asset Ratio 0.64 0.70

Days of Available Cash 58.70 14.00

 PERFORMANCE
DATA

2019 2018 2019 2018 2017 2016

Nursing 29.35 29.67 29.71 29.28 29.26 29.28

Administration & Clerical 10.50 10.21 10.49 10.06 9.62 9.88

Medical Support 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Hotel & Allied Services 31.59 31.38 30.33 31.58 32.17 35.43

Medical Officers 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Hospital Medical Officers 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Ancillary Staff (Allied Health) 9.98 8.30 9.99 8.20 7.47 4.99

TOTAL 81.42 79.56 80.51 79.12 78.52 79.58

WORKFORCE STATISTICS - Full Time Equivalent (FTE)
June Current Month June Year to Date

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015

Operating Result $133,531 ($106,003) $247,749 $328,764 $776,633

Total Revenue $11,429,448 $10,222,487 $11,013,259 $10,208,900 $10,451,751

Total Expenses ($11,806,600) ($11,151,695) ($11,618,766) ($10,814,203) ($10,501,071)

Net Result from Transactions ($377,152) ($929,208) ($605,506) ($605,303) ($49,320)

Total Other Economic Flows ($129,151) $278,004 $16,291 $5,040 ($13,849)

Net Result ($506,303) ($651,204) ($589,216) ($600,263) ($63,169)

Total Assets $22,317,803 $19,792,109 $18,638,397 $18,420,672 $17,205,956

Total Liabilities $10,255,654 $9,643,107 $9,223,785 $8,416,845 $6,601,866

Net Assets / Total Equity $12,062,149 $10,149,002 $9,414,612 $10,003,827 $10,604,090

(Refer	to	consolidated	Financial	Statements	for	details.)

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

193,029
Total hours worked by Hesse 
employees in 2018-19.

* The Net Operating 
Result is the result which 
the health service is 
monitored against in its 
Statement of Priorities.
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2019 2018 2017 2016 2015

Emergency Medical Treatment 194 144 149 138 167

Community Contact Hours (Home and Community Care, 
Commonwealth Home Support and Small Rural Health Service funded)

29,644 26,985 29,310 30,686 26,636

NON-ADMITTED PATIENTS - Contact Hours

SEPARATIONS 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015

Acute 52 63 63 78 75

Non-Acute 0 0 0 0 0

Same Day 0 1 2 2 3

Total Hospital Separations 52 64 65 80 78

WIES  (Weighted Inlier Equivalent Separations)

WIES Public 88 108 73 99 84

WIES Private, DVA & TAC 18 5 90 55 48

PATIENT BED DAYS

Acute 601 662 1,010 918 948

Non-Acute 0 0 0 0 0

Same Day 0 1 2 2 3

Total Hospital Patient Days 601 663 1,012 920 951

ADMITTED PATIENTS

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015

Bed Days (Consolidated) 19,352 18,287 19,515 19,431 19,609

Separations (Consolidated) 25 25 13 21 19

AGED CARE OCCUPANCY

District Nursing 6,220 5,381

Domicilary Midwifery 160 139

Community Nursing 2,025 1,801

Health Promotion 776 687

Physiotherapy 609 633

Occupational Therapy 1,294 1,431

Dietitian 105 104

Diabetes Education 114 96

Social Support Program 18,234 16,642

Other 107 71

0
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6000

9000
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Individual Contacts

2019 13,943

2018 12,428

2017 11,549

2016 11,967

2015 10,903
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The Statement of Priorities is a key document of accountability between the Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) 
and Hesse Rural Health as a small rural public health service.  This agreement defines the government’s key priorities and required 
actions, and identifies Hesse’s 2018-2019 deliverables and outcomes.

Goals Strategies
Health Service 

Deliverables
Outcomes

Better Health

A system geared to prevention as 
much as treatment

Everyone understands their own 
health and risks

Illness is detected and managed 
early

Healthy neighbourhoods and 
communities encourage healthy 
lifestyles 

Reduce state-wide 
risks

Build healthy 
neighbourhoods

Help people to stay 
healthy

Target health gaps

Establish linkages and partner with 
Deakin University and Colac Area 
Health to engage the communities 
of Winchelsea and district in the 
development and implementation 
of a health promotion program 
targeting obesity.

In Progress
Linkages have been 
established with Winchelsea 
Pharmacy to reduce obesity 
via a community walking 
wellness program. 

Workplace healthy eating 
initiatives have been 
conducted in line with G21 
Health and Wellbeing 
Priorities. (p. 20)

Implement the actions from the 
Strengthening Hospitals Response 
to Family Violence Project including 
program launch and workforce 
education modules.

Achieved
Hesse remains an active 
participant in the regional 
SHRFV project led by Barwon 
Health. (p. 51)

Better Access

Care is always there when people 
need it

More access to care in the home 
and community

People are connected to the full 
range of care and support they 
need

There is equal access to care

Plan and invest

Unlock innovation

Provide easier 
access

Ensure fair access

Deliver targeted information 
sessions and support older persons 
throughout the community to 
improve their understanding of, and 
access to, the home care package 
program via Commonwealth My 
Aged Care.

Achieved
Eight targeted information 
sessions have been delivered 
throughout the catchment 
to support community 
understanding and access to 
home care packages.  

Better Care

Target zero avoidable harm

Healthcare that focusses on 
outcomes

Patients and carers are active 
partners in care

Care fits together around people’s 
needs

Put quality first

Join up care

Partner with patients

Strengthen the 
workforce

Embed evidence

Ensure equal care

Implement outcomes from the 
Intervene Phase 2 Best Practice Pain 
Management Project, undertaken in 
collaboration with HammondCare 
and University of Sydney including 
workforce education modules.

Achieved
Research program is 
completed and workforce 
education modules 
implemented. NHMRC 
research project publication 
distributed by HammondCare 
acknowledges Hesse’s 
participation.

STAT EMENT OF 
PRIORIT IES
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Goals Strategies
Health Service 

Deliverables
Outcomes

Specific 2018-19 Priorities (mandatory)

Disability Action Plans
Draft disability action plans are completed 
in 2018-19.  

Submit a draft disability action plan to 
the department by 30 June 2019. The 
draft plan will outline the approach to 
full implementation within three years 
of publication.

Achieved
(p. 53)

Volunteer Engagement
Ensure that the health service executives 
have appropriate measures to engage and 
recognise volunteers.

Formalise application and orientation 
aspects of the volunteer recruitment 
process and hold a dedicated 
networking forum which includes 
education of the volunteer workforce 
in key areas of quality and safety

Achieved
Volunteer application 
processes have been 
revised and a networking 
education forum was held 
in December 2018.  (p. 23)

Bullying & Harassment
Actively promote positive workplace 
behaviours and encourage reporting. 
Utilise staff surveys, incident reporting 
data, outcomes of investigations and 
claims to regularly monitor and identify 
risks related to bullying and harassment, in 
particular include as a regular item in Board 
and Executive meetings. Appropriately 
investigate all reports of bullying and 
harassment and ensure there is a feedback 
mechanism to staff involved and the broader 
health service staff.

Include key performance indicators 
of formal allegations of bullying and 
harassment and status update within 
the governance workforce report.

Achieved
Bullying and harassment 
governance reporting has 
been implemented.

Occupational Violence
Ensure all staff who have contact with 
patients and visitors have undertaken core 
occupational violence training, annually. 
Ensure the department’s occupational 
violence and aggression training principles 
are implemented.

Establish joint arrangements with 
Polwarth Alliance to develop an 
electronic tutorial to assist the 
workforce to employ effective 
strategies in managing incidents of 
occupational violence and aggression 
in the workplace.  

Not Achieved
Partnership in this area was 
not advanced.  

Environmental Sustainability
Actively contribute to the development 
of the Victorian Government’s: policy to 
be net zero carbon by 2050 and improve 
environmental sustainability by identifying 
and implementing projects, including 
workforce education, to reduce material 
environmental impacts with
particular consideration of procurement and 
waste management, and publicly reporting 
environmental performance data, including
measureable targets related to reduction of 
clinical, sharps and landfill waste, water and 
energy use and improved recycling.

Progress the capital works and 
installation required to link into 
the Winchelsea natural gas line 
creating a reduction in the use of 
LPG and associated 40% cost saving 
contributing to a net zero carbon by 
2050.

Achieved
Capital works undertaken 
and natural gas successfully 
connected.

LGBTI
Develop and promulgate service level 
policies and protocols, in partnership with 
LGBTI communities, to avoid discrimination 
against LGBTI patients, ensure appropriate 
data collection, and actively promote rights 
to free expression of gender and sexuality 
in healthcare settings.  Where relevant, 
services should offer leading practice 
approaches to trans and intersex related 
interventions. 

In association with the Polwarth 
Alliance and the LGBTI community 
create a workforce awareness training 
program to ensure LGBTI service users 
rights are acknowledged, welcomed 
and their wishes respected.

In Progress
Colac Area Health 
and Hesse Rural Health 
Executive have commenced 
this training initiative. 
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Independent Auditor’s Report 
To the Board of Hesse Rural Health Service 

Opinion I have audited the consolidated financial report of Hesse Rural Health Service (the health service) and its 
controlled entities (together the consolidated entity), which comprises the: 

• consolidated entity and health service balance sheets as at 30 June 2019 
• consolidated entity and health service comprehensive operating statements for the year then 

ended 
• consolidated entity and health service statements of changes in equity for the year then ended 
• consolidated entity and health service cash flow statements for the year then ended 
• notes to the financial statements, including significant accounting policies 
• board member’s, accountable officer's and chief finance & accounting officer’s declaration. 

In my opinion, the financial report presents fairly, in all material respects, the financial positions of the 
consolidated entity and the health service as at 30 June 2019 and their financial performance and cash 
flows for the year then ended in accordance with the financial reporting requirements of Part 7 of the 
Financial Management Act 1994 and applicable Australian Accounting Standards. 

Basis for 
Opinion 

I have conducted my audit in accordance with the Audit Act 1994 which incorporates the Australian 
Auditing Standards. I further describe my responsibilities under that Act and those standards in the 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report section of my report.  

My independence is established by the Constitution Act 1975. My staff and I are independent of the 
health service and the consolidated entity in accordance with the ethical requirements of the Accounting 
Professional and Ethical Standards Board’s APES 110 Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the 
Code) that are relevant to my audit of the financial report in Victoria. My staff and I have also fulfilled our 
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.  

I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my 
opinion. 

Board’s 
responsibilities 
for the financial 
report 

The Board of the health service is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial 
report in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and the Financial Management Act 1994, and 
for such internal control as the Board determines is necessary to enable the preparation and fair 
presentation of a financial report that is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial report, the Board is responsible for assessing the health service and the 
consolidated entity’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to 
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless it is inappropriate to do so. 

HESSE RURAL HEALTH SERVICE
INDEPENDENT AUDIT REPORT
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HESSE RURAL HEALTH SERVICE
INDEPENDENT AUDIT REPORT
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Auditor’s 
responsibilities 
for the audit of 
the financial 
report 

As required by the Audit Act 1994, my responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial report based 
on the audit. My objectives for the audit are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 
report as a whole is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an 
auditor’s report that includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a 
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards will always 
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence 
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of this financial report.  

As part of an audit in accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards, I exercise professional 
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. I also:  

• identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether due to 
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit 
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion. The risk of not 
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, 
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override 
of internal control. 

• obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the health service and the consolidated entity’s internal control 

• evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by the Board 

• conclude on the appropriateness of the Board's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, 
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or 
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the health service and the consolidated entity’s 
ability to continue as a going concern. If I conclude that a material uncertainty exists, I am 
required to draw attention in my auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial report 
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion. My conclusions are based on the 
audit evidence obtained up to the date of my auditor’s report. However, future events or 
conditions may cause the health service and the consolidated entity to cease to continue as a 
going concern.  

• evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial report, including the 
disclosures, and whether the financial report represents the underlying transactions and events in 
a manner that achieves fair presentation 

• obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or 
business activities within the health service and consolidated entity to express an opinion on the 
financial report. I remain responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit 
of the health service and the consolidated entity. I remain solely responsible for my audit opinion. 

I communicate with the Board regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the 
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that I identify 
during my audit. 

 

MELBOURNE 
16 September 2019 

Travis Derricott 
as delegate for the Auditor-General of Victoria 
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Hesse Rural Health Service
BOARD MEMBER’S, ACCOUNTABLE OFFICER’S AND

CHIEF FINANCE & ACCOUNTING OFFICER’S DECLARATION

Page 2

We authorise the attached financial statements for issue on this day. 

MS K. TAYLOR MR P. BIRKETT MR S. WIGHT
Chairperson (on behalf of the Board) Chief Executive Officer Chief Finance & Accounting Officer

Winchelsea Winchelsea Winchelsea
Dated: 11th September 2019 Dated: 11th September 2019 Dated: 11th September 2019

HESSE RURAL HEALTH SERVICE

We further state that, in our opinion the information set out in the comprehensive operating statement, balance sheet, statement of changes in equity, cash flow statement 
and accompanying notes, presents fairly the financial transactions during the year ended 30 June 2019 and the financial position of Hesse Rural Health Service and the 
Consolidated Entity at 30 June 2019.

At the time of signing, we are not aware of any circumstances which would render any particulars included in the financial statements to be misleading or inaccurate.

The attached financial statements for Hesse Rural Health Service and the Consolidated Entity have been prepared in accordance with Direction 5.2 of the Standing 
Directions of the Assistant Treasurer under the Financial Management Act 1994 , applicable Financial Reporting Directions, Australian Accounting Standards including 
Interpretations, and other mandatory professional reporting requirements.

Board member's, accountable officer's and chief finance & accounting officer's declaration
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Parent Parent Consolidated Consolidated
Note 2019 2018 2019 2018

$ $ $ $
Income from Transactions
Operating activities 2.1 8,449,850          7,442,435        11,325,183      10,122,146       
Non-operating activities 2.1 20,512               15,032             104,265           100,341            
Total Income from Transactions 8,470,362          7,457,467        11,429,448      10,222,487       

Expenses from Transactions
Employee expenses 3.1 (6,752,891)        (5,264,457)       (8,280,218)      (7,668,282)        
Supplies & consumables 3.1 (94,799)             (251,888)          (415,043)          (431,860)           
Depreciation 4.3 (560,095)           (561,494)          (865,120)          (866,360)           
Other operating expenses 3.1 (1,459,303)        (1,807,660)       (2,246,219)      (2,185,193)        
Total Expenses from Transactions (8,867,088)        (7,885,499)       (11,806,600)    (11,151,695)      

(396,726)           (428,032)          (377,152)          (929,208)           

3.2 (56,555)             291,221           (56,555)            291,221            
3.2 -                         -                       (25,470)            (24,915)             
3.2 (47,126)             11,698             (47,126)            11,698              

(103,681)           302,919           (129,151)          278,004            

(500,407)           (125,113)          (506,303)          (651,204)           

Other Comprehensive Income
Items that will not be reclassified to Net Result
Changes in physical asset revaluation surplus 4.2 (f) 1,132,590          995,061           2,419,450        1,385,594         

Total Other Comprehensive Income 1,132,590          995,061           2,419,450        1,385,594         
Comprehensive result for the year 632,183             869,948           1,913,147        734,390            

This statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes

COMPREHENSIVE OPERATING STATEMENT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019

HESSE RURAL HEALTH 

Other Economic Flows included in Net Result

Net Gain/(Loss) on financial instruments at fair value

Total Other Economic Flows included in Net Result

Net Result for the year

Net Gain/(Loss) on non-financial assets

Net result from Transactions - Net Operating Balance

Other Gains/(Losses) from Other Economic Flows

Page 2

Hesse Rural Health Service
COMPREHENSIVE OPERATING STATEMENT 

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019
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Parent Entity Parent Entity Consolidated Consolidated
Note 2019 2018 2019 2018

$ $ $ $

Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 6.2 1,413,096          1,222,358        5,308,769        1,914,056         
Receivables 5.1 316,061             166,090           346,564           189,289            
Investments and other financial assets 4.1 -                         1,261,948        -                       3,061,948         
Prepayments and other assets 30,033               35,888             30,034             35,888              

Total Current Assets 1,759,190          2,686,284        5,685,367        5,201,181         

Non-Current Assets
Receivables 5.1 454,910             376,623           454,910           376,623            
Investment Properties 4.4 920,000             1,050,000        920,000           1,050,000         
Property, plant & equipment 4.2 9,886,094          8,893,420        15,257,526      13,164,305       

Total Non-Current Assets 11,261,004        10,320,043      16,632,436      14,590,928       

TOTAL ASSETS 13,020,194        13,006,327      22,317,803      19,792,109       

Current Liabilities
Payables 5.2 632,077             563,002           714,490           632,495            
Borrowings 6.1 29,408               74,975             29,408             74,975              
Provisions 3.3 1,259,450          1,151,622        2,002,828        1,782,071         
Other liabilities 5.3 2,893,499          3,693,700        7,000,854        6,750,131         

Total Current Liabilities 4,814,434          5,759,513        9,747,580        9,239,672         

Non-Current Liabilities
Borrowings 6.1 44,729               -                       44,729             -                         
Provisions 3.3 287,804             281,984           463,345           403,435            

Total Non-Current Liabilities 332,533             5,770               508,074           403,435            
TOTAL LIABILITIES 5,146,967          5,765,283        10,255,654      9,643,107         
NET ASSETS 7,873,227          7,241,044        12,062,149      10,149,002       

EQUITY
Property, plant & equipment revaluation surplus 3,777,194          2,644,604        7,371,810        4,952,360         
Restricted specific purpose surplus
Contributed capital 3,527,113          3,527,113        4,514,616        4,514,616         
Accumulated surpluses 568,920             1,069,327        175,723           682,026            

TOTAL EQUITY 7,873,227          7,241,044        12,062,149      10,149,002       

(1)                       0                      
This statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

HESSE RURAL HEALTH 

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 30 JUNE 2019

Page 3

Hesse Rural Health Service
BALANCE SHEET AS AT 30 JUNE 2019
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Note

 Property, Plant 
& Equipment 
Revaluation 

Surplus 
 Contributed 

Capital 
 Accumulated 

Surpluses Total
Consolidated $ $ $ $

Balance at 1 July 2017 3,566,766          4,514,616        1,333,229        9,414,611         

Net Result for the year -                         -                       (651,203)          (651,203)           
Other Comprehensive Income for the year 1,385,594          -                       -                       1,385,594         

Balance at 30 June 2018 8.1 4,952,360          4,514,616        682,026           10,149,002       

-                         -                       (506,303)          (506,303)           
Other Comprehensive Income for the year 2,419,450          -                       -                       2,419,450         

Balance at 30 June 2019 8.1 7,371,810          4,514,616        175,723           12,062,149       

 Property, Plant  Contributed  Accumulated Total
Parent $ $ $ $

Balance at 1 July 2017 1,649,543          3,527,113        1,194,439        6,371,095         

Net Result for the year -                         -                       (125,112)          (125,112)           
Other Comprehensive Income for the year 995,061             -                       -                       995,061            

Balance at 30 June 2018 2,644,604          3,527,113        1,069,327        7,241,044         

-                         -                       (500,407)          (500,407)           
Other Comprehensive Income for the year 1,132,590          -                       -                       1,132,590         

Balance at 30 June 2019 3,777,194          3,527,113        568,920           7,873,227         

This statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Net Result for the year

HESSE RURAL HEALTH 

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019

Net Result for the year

Page 4

Hesse Rural Health Service
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019
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HESSE RURAL HEALTH

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019

Parent Entity Parent Entity Consolidated Consolidated
Note 2019 2018 2019 2018

$ $ $ $
Cash Flows from Operating Activities 
Operating grants from government 6,505,141          5,889,184        8,559,025        7,787,111         
Capital grants from government 376,091             10,302             376,091           10,302              
Patient and resident fees received 721,182             543,446           1,358,487        1,310,699         
Donations and bequests received 64,982               198,753           79,732             198,753            
GST received from/(paid to) ATO 154,780             133,233           154,780           154,780            
Interest received 20,512               19,134             113,631           105,576            
Other receipts 546,021             1,045,176        603,027           1,050,607         
Total receipts 8,388,709          7,839,228        11,244,773      10,617,828       

Employee expenses paid (6,686,369)        (5,068,410)       (8,046,677)      (7,535,402)        
Payments for supplies & consumables (398,483)           (269,906)          (400,022)          (449,878)           
Finance costs (6,803)                (4,249)              (6,803)              (4,249)               
Other payments (1,220,491)        (2,511,022)       (2,242,945)      (2,990,636)        
Total payments (8,312,146)        (7,853,586)       (10,696,447)    (10,980,164)      

Net Cash Flows from/(used in) Operating Activities 8.1 76,563               (14,358)            548,326           (362,337)           

Cash Flows from Investing Activities 
Purchase of non-financial assets (448,530)           (499,535)          (567,242)          (555,583)           
Proceeds from sale of non-financial assets 25,455               1,000               25,455             1,000                 
Purchase of Investments -                         -                       -                       (78,185)             
Proceeds from Disposal of Investments 1,261,948          321,815           3,061,948        -                         

838,873             (176,720)          2,520,161        (632,768)           

Cash Flows from Financing Activities 
Repayment of Borrowings (838)                   -                       (838)                 -                         
Receipt / repayment of monies held in trust 42,156               600,886           42,156             600,886            
Receipt of accommodation bonds 580,000             961,133           2,228,600        2,201,133         
Repayment of accommodation bonds & loan obligations (1,346,016)        (198,937)          (1,943,692)      (1,588,432)        
Net Cash Flows from /(used in) Financing Activities (724,698)           1,363,082        326,226           1,213,587         

190,738             1,172,003        3,394,713        218,482            

1,222,358          50,355             1,914,056        1,695,574         

6.2 1,413,096          1,222,358        5,308,769        1,914,056         

This statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year

Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year 

Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Held 

Net Cash Flows from/(used in) Investing Activities 
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HESSE RURAL HEALTH SERVICE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

 30 JUNE 2019

Basis of presentation

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Statement of Compliance

(b)  Reporting Entity
The financial statements include all the controlled activities of Hesse Rural Health.

Its principal address is:
8 Gosney Street
WINCHELSEA VIC 3241

(c) Basis of accounting preparation and measurement

The financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis (refer to Note 8.9 Economic Dependency).

● The fair value of land, buildings and plant and equipment (refer to Note 4.1 Property, Plant and Equipment); investment property; and

● Employee benefit provisions are based on likely tenure of existing staff, patterns of leave claims, future salary movements and future 
discount rates (refer to Note 3.3 Employee Benefits).

These financial statements are presented in Australian dollars and the historical cost convention is used unless a different measurement 
basis is specifically disclosed in the note associated with the item measured on a different basis.

The accrual basis of accounting has been applied in the preparation of these financial statements whereby assets, liabilities, equity, income 
and expenses are recognised in the reporting period to which they relate, regardless of when cash is received or paid.

The Health Service is a not-for profit entity and therefore applies the additional Aus paragraphs applicable to “not-for-profit” Health 
Services under the AAS's.

Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised and also in future periods that are 
affected by the revision. Judgements and assumptions made by management in the application of AABSs that have significant effects 
on the financial statements and estimates relate to: 

The financial statements, except for cash flow information, have been prepared using the accrual basis of accounting. Under the 
accrual basis, items are recognised as assets, liabilities, equity, income or expenses when they satisfy the definitions and recognition 
criteria for those items, that is, they are recognised in the reporting period to which they relate, regardless of when cash is received or 
paid.

These annual financial statements represent the audited general purpose financial statements for Hesse Rural Health for the period ending 
30 June 2019.  The purpose of the report is to provide users with information about the Health Service's stewardship of resources entrusted 
to it.

Hesse Rural Health Service operates on a fund accounting basis and maintains three funds: Operating, Specific Purpose and Capital 
Funds. The Hesse Rural Health Service's Capital and Specific Purpose Funds include unspent donations and receipts from fund-raising 
activities conducted solely in respect of these funds.

These financial statements are general purpose financial statements which have been prepared on in accordance with the Financial 
Management Act 1994 and applicable AASBs, which include interpretations issued by the Australian Accounting Standards Board 
(AASB).  They are presented in a manner consistent with the requirements of AASB 101 Presentation of Financial Statements.

The financial statements also comply with relevant Financial Reporting Directions (FRDs) issued by the Department of Treasury and 
Finance, and relevant Standing Directions (SDs) authorised by the Assistant Treasurer.

Accounting policies are selected and applied in a manner which ensures that the resulting financial information satisfies the concepts of 
relevance and reliability, thereby ensuring that the substance of the underlying transactions or other events is reported.

Judgements, estimates and assumptions are required to be made about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily 
apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on professional judgements derived from historical 
experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Actual results may differ from these 
estimates.

A description of the nature of Hesse Rural Health's operations and its principal activities is included in the report of operations, which 
does not form part of these financial statements.

The accounting policies set out below have been applied in preparing the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2019, and 
the comparative information presented in these financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2018. 

These financial statements are presented in Australian dollars, the functional and presentation currency of the Health Service.

All amounts shown in the financial statements have been rounded to the nearest dollar, unless otherwise stated. Minor discrepancies in 
tables between totals and sum of components are due to rounding.
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HESSE RURAL HEALTH SERVICE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

 30 JUNE 2019

(d) Jointly Controlled Operation

(e) Principles Of Consolidation

These statements are presented on a consolidated basis in accordance with AASB 10 Consolidated Financial Statements :

The parent entity is not shown separately in the notes.

(f) Comparatives

• its expenses, including its share of any expenses incurred jointly.

Hesse Rural Health Service is a Member of the South West Alliance of Rural Health (SWARH) and retains joint control over the 
arrangement, which it has classified as a joint operation (refer to Note 8.8 Jointly Controlled Operations).

Where applicable, the comparative figures have been restated to align with presentation in the current year.  Figures have been 
restated at Note 2.1: Income from transactions, Note 3.1: Expenses from transactions, Note 3.2: Other Economic flows included in net 
result, Note 3.3: Employee benefits in the balance sheet, Note 5.2: Payables, Note 6.2: Cash and cash equivalents, Note 7.1: Financial 
Instruments.

Commitments and contingent assets and liabilities are presented on a gross basis.

Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the relevant 
activities require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

In respect of any interest in joint operations, Hesse Rural Health recognises in the financial statements: 

Cash flows are presented on a gross basis. The GST components of cash flows arising from investing or financing activities which are 
recoverable from, or payable to the ATO, are presented as operating cash flow.

Goods and Services Tax (GST)
Income, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of associated GST, unless the GST incurred is not recoverable from 
the Australian Taxation Office (ATO). In this case the GST payable is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as 
part of the expense.

Receivables and payables are stated inclusive of the amount of GST receivable or payable. The net amount of GST recoverable from, 
or payable to, the ATO is included with other receivables or payables in the Balance Sheet. 

• its assets, including its share of any assets held jointly; 
• any liabilities including its share of liabilities that it had incurred; 

The consolidated financial statements of Hesse Rural Health Service include Winchelsea Hostel and Nursing Home Society Inc. as at 
30 June 2019.

• its revenue from the sale of its share of the output from the joint operation;
• its share of the revenue from the sale of the output by the operation; and
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HESSE RURAL HEALTH SERVICE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019

Note 2:   Funding delivery of our services

Structure
2.1 Income from Transactions

Note 2.1:   Income from Transactions Consolidated Consolidated
2019 2018

$ $

Government Grants - Operating 8,715,735            7,768,335            
Government Grants - Capital 376,091               10,302                 
Other Capital purpose income (including capital donations) 18,451                 12,187                 
Patient and Resident Fees 1,442,082            1,410,901            
SWARH revenue from jointly controlled assets 411,004               465,092               
Other Revenue from Operating Activities (including non-capital donations) 361,820               455,329               

11,325,183          10,122,146          

Interest 104,265               100,341               
Total revenue from Non-Operating Activies 104,265               100,341               

Total Revenue 11,429,448          10,222,487          

Revenue Recognition

Amounts disclosed as revenue are where applicable, net of returns, allowances and duties and taxes.

Government Grants and Other Transfers of Income (other than contributions by owners)

Hesse Rural Health's overall objective is to deliver programs and services that support and enhance the wellbeing of all Victorians.

To enable the health service to fulfill its objective it receives income based on parliamentary appropriations.  The health service also receives income from 
the supply of services.

Income is recognised in accordance with AASB 118 Revenue and is recognised as to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to 
Hesse Rural Health and the income can be reliably measured at fair value. Unearned income at reporting date is reported as income received in advance.

In accordance with AASB 1004 Contributions, government grants and other transfers of income (other than contributions by owners) are recognised as 
income when the Health Service gains control of the underlying assets irrespective of whether conditions are imposed on the Health Service’s use of the 
contributions.  

Contributions are deferred as income in advance when the Health Service has a present obligation to repay them and the present obligation can be reliably 
measured.

Total revenue from Operating Activities

The Department of Health and Human Services makes certain payments on behalf of Hesse Rural Health Service. These amounts have been brought to 
account as grants in determining the operating result for the year by recording them as revenue.

Other Income
Other income includes rental income, childcare, post acute care, community health programs, expense recoveries and reimbursements and are recognised 
when received or earned, whichever is earlier.

Non-cash contributions from the Department of Health and Human Services
The Department of Health and Human Services makes some payments on behalf of health services as follows:
• The Victorian Managed Insurance Authority non-medical indemnity insurance payments are recognised as revenue following advice from the Department 
of Health and Human Services

Patient and Resident Fees
Patient fees are recognised as revenue at the time invoices are raised.

Donations and Other Bequests
Donations and bequests are recognised as revenue when received. If donations are for a special purpose, they may be appropriated to a surplus, such as 
the specific restricted purpose surplus.

Interest Revenue
Interest revenue is recognised on a time proportionate basis that takes in account the effective yield of the financial asset, which allocates interest over the 
relevant period.

• Long Service Leave (LSL) revenue is recognised upon finalisation of movements in LSL liability in line with the long service leave funding arrangements 
set out in the relevant Department of Health and Human Services Hospital Circular
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HESSE RURAL HEALTH SERVICE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019

Note 3: The Cost of delivering services

Structure
3.1 Expenses from transactions
3.2 Other Economic Flows
3.3 Employee benefits in the balance sheet
3.4 Superannuation

Note 3.1: Expenses from transactions Consolidated Consolidated
2019 2018

$ $
Salaries and Wages 7,278,520        6,735,431        
On-costs 625,666           618,419           
Agency Expenses 204,553           144,074           
Fee for Service Medical Officer Expenses 90,691             98,855             
Workcover Premium 80,788             71,503             

Total Employee Expenses 8,280,218        7,668,282        
Drug Supplies 14,241             14,077             
Medical and Surgical Supplies (including Prostheses) 95,947             102,690           
Other Supplies and Consumables 304,855           315,092           

Total Supplies and Consumables 415,043           431,859           
Finance Costs 6,803               4,249               
Fuel, Light, Power and Water 215,281           239,226           
Repairs and Maintenance 174,944           270,296           
Maintenance Contracts 45,498             -                       
Medical Indemnity Insurance 8,175               8,175               
Other Administrative Expenses 1,762,216        1,663,247        
Expenditure for Capital Purposes 33,302             -                       

Total Other Operating Expenses 2,246,219        2,185,193        
Depreciation (refer Note 4.3) 865,120           866,360           

Total Other Non-Operating Expenses 865,120           866,360           

Total Expenses from Transactions 11,806,600      11,151,694      

Expense Recognition
Expenses are recognised as they are incurred and reported in the financial year to which they relate.

Employee expenses
Employee expenses include:
• wages and salaries (including fringe benefits tax, leave entitlements, termination payments);
• On-costs;
• Agency expenses;
• Fee for service medical officer expenses;
• workcover premium.

Supplies and consumables

Finance costs

Other Operating Expenses

•      Fuel, light and power
•      Repairs and maintenance
•      Other administrative expenses

Non-operating expenses

This section provides an account of the expenses incurred by the Hesse Rural Health in delivering services and outputs.  In Section 2, the funds that enable the provision of 
services were disclosed and in this note the costs associated with provision of services are recorded. 

Supplies and services costs which are recognised as an expense in the reporting period in which they are incurred. The carrying amounts of any inventories held for distribution 
are expensed when distributed.

Finance costs include:
• finance charges in respect of finance leases which are recognised in accordance with AASB 117 Leases.

Other operating expenses generally represent the day-to-day running costs incurred in normal operations and include such things as: 

•      Expenditure for capital purposes (represents expenditure related to the purchase of assets that are below the capitalisation threshold). 

The Department of Health and Human Services also makes certain payments on behalf of Hesse Rural Health Service. These amounts have been brought to account as 
grants in determining the operating result for the year by recording them as revenue and also recording the related expense.

Other non-operating expenses generally represent expenditure for outside the normal operations such as depreciation and amortisation, and assets and services provided free 
of charge or for nominal consideration.
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HESSE RURAL HEALTH SERVICE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019

Note 3.2:   Other economic flows included in net result Consol'd Consol'd
2019 2018

$ $
Net gain/(loss) on non‑financial assets
Revaluation of investment property and associated liability. (53,659)            290,221           
Net gain/(loss) on disposal of property plant and equipment (2,896)              1,000               
Total net gain/(loss) on non‑‑‑‑financial assets (56,555)            291,221           
Net gain/(loss) on financial instruments 
Allowance for impairment losses of contractual receivables (25,470)            (24,915)            
Total net gain/(loss) on financial instruments (25,470)            (24,915)            
Other gains/(losses) from other economic flows
Net gain/(loss) arising from revaluation of long service liability (47,126)            11,698             
Total other gains/(losses) from other economic flows (47,126)            11,698             

Total other gains/(losses) from economic flows (129,151)          278,004           

Net gain/ (loss) on non-financial assets
Net gain/ (loss) on non-financial assets and liabilities includes realised and unrealised gains and losses as follows:
•      Revaluation gains/ (losses) of non-financial physical assets (Refer to Note 4.2 Property plant and equipment.)
•      Revaluation gains/ (losses) of non-financial physical assets (Refer to Note 4.4 Investment Properties and associated liability Note 5.3).
•      Net gain/ (loss) on disposal of non-financial assets
•      Any gain or loss on the disposal of non-financial assets is recognised at the date of disposal.

Net gain/ (loss) on financial instruments 
Net gain/ (loss) on financial instruments includes:

Other gains/ (losses) from other economic flows
Other gains/ (losses) include:

Note 3.3:   Employee benefits in the balance sheet Consol'd Consol'd
2019 2018

$ $
Current Provisions
Employee Benefits
Annual Leave

845,240           614,218           
134,849           96,663             

Long Service Leave
153,841           118,729           
658,617           594,931           

Accrued Days Off
26,316             16,335             

1,818,863        1,440,876        
Provisions related to Employee Benefit On-costs
   - Unconditional and expected to be utilised within 12 months (nominal value) 101,448           243,868           
   - Unconditional and expected to be utilised after 12 months (present value) 82,517             97,327             

183,965           341,195           

Total Current Provisions 2,002,828        1,782,071        

Non-Current Provisions
Long Service Leave (present value) 421,318           368,342           
Provisions related to Employee Benefit On-costs 42,027             35,093             
Total Non-Current Provisions 463,345           403,435           

Total Provisions 2,466,173        2,185,506        

(a) Employee Benefits and Related On-Costs

Current Employee Benefits and related on-costs
Unconditional Long Service Leave Entitlements 894,525           782,746           
Annual Leave 1,081,987        982,990           
Accrued Days Off 26,316             16,335             
Non-Current Employee Benefits and related on-costs
Conditional Long Service Leave Entitlements 463,345           403,435           
Total Employee Benefits and Related On-Costs 2,466,173        2,185,506        

-Unconditional and expected to be settled wholly within 12 months (nominal value)

-Unconditional and expected to be settled wholly within 12 months (nominal value)
-Unconditional and expected to be settled wholly after 12 months (present value)

-Unconditional and expected to be settled wholly within 12 months (nominal value)
-Unconditional and expected to be settled wholly after 12 months (present value)

Other economic flows are changes in the volume or value of an asset or liability that do not result from transactions. Other gains/(losses) from other economic flows include the 
gains or losses from:

•      the revaluation of the present value of the long service leave liability due to changes in the bond rate movements, inflation rate movements and the impact of changes in 
probability factors.

• impairment and reversal of impairment for financial instruments at amortised cost refer to Note 5.1 Receivables.
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HESSE RURAL HEALTH SERVICE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019

(b) Movements in On-Costs Provisions: Consol'd Consol'd
2019 2018

$ $
Balance at start of year 376,288           314,120           
Additional provisions recognised (131,721)          84,492             
Unwinding of discount and effect of changes in discount rate (4,948)              (1,228)              
Reduction due to transfer out (13,627)            (21,095)            
Balance at end of year 225,992           376,288           

Employee Benefit Recognition

Provisions

Annual leave and Accrued Days off

Nominal value – if Hesse Rural Health Service expects to wholly settle within 12 months; or
Present value – if Hesse Rural Health Service does not expect to wholly settle within 12 months.

Long service leave (LSL)
Liability for LSL is recognised in the provision for employee benefits. 

The components of this current LSL liability are measured at:
Nominal value – if Hesse Rural Health Service expects to wholly settle within 12 months; or
Present value – if Hesse Rural Health Service does not expect to wholly settle within 12 months.

Termination benefits

On-costs related to employee expense

Note 3.4:   Superannuation
Consol'd Consol'd Consol'd Consol'd

2019 2018 2019 2018
Defined contribution plans: $ $ $ $
First State Super 498,959          618,419        126,707           -                       
Total 498,959          618,419        126,707           -                       

Provision is made for benefits accruing to employees in respect of annual leave and long service leave for services rendered to the reporting date as an expense during the 
period the services are delivered.

Liabilities for annual leave and accrued days off are recognised in the provision for employee benefits as 'current liabilities' because Hesse Rural Health Service does not have 
an unconditional right to defer settlements of these liabilities.

Provisions are recognised when the Health Service has a present obligation, the future sacrifice of economic benefits is probable, and the amount of the provision can be 
measured reliably.

The amount recognised as a liability is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at reporting date, taking into account the risks and 
uncertainties surrounding the obligation. Where a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value 
of those cash flows, using a discount rate that reflects the time value of money and risks specific to the provision.

Depending on the expectation of the timing of settlement, liabilities for annual leave and accrued days off are measured at:

Unconditional LSL is disclosed in the notes to the financial statements as a current liability, even where the health service does not expect to settle the liability within 12 months 
because it will not have the unconditional right to defer the settlement of the entitlement should an employee take leave within 12 months. An unconditional right arises after a 
qualifying period.

Conditional LSL is disclosed as a non-current liability.  Any gain or loss followed revaluation of the present value of non-current LSL liability is recognised as a transaction, 
except to the extent that a gain or loss arises due to changes in estimations e.g. bond rate movements, inflation rate movements and changes in probability factors which are 
then recognised as other economic flows.

Termination benefits are payable when employment is terminated before the normal retirement date or when an employee decides to accept an offer of benefits in exchange for 
the termination of employment.

Provision for on-costs, such as payroll tax, workers compensation and superannuation are recognised separately from provisions for employee benefits.

Paid Contributions Contributions Outstanding

Employees of the Health Service are entitled to receive superannuation benefits and Hesse Rural Health contributes to defined contribution plans. 

Superannuation contributions paid or payable for the reporting period are included as part of employee benefits in the comprehensive operating statement of the Health 
Service. 

Defined contribution superannuation plans
In relation to defined contribution (i.e. accumulation) superannuation plans, the associated expense is simply the employer contributions that are paid or payable in respect of 
employees who are members of these plans during the reporting period. Contributions to defined contribution superannuation plans are expensed when incurred.
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HESSE RURAL HEALTH SERVICE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019

Note 4:   Key Assets to support service delivery

Structure
4.1  Investments and other financial assets
4.2  Property, plant & equipment
4.3  Depreciation
4.4  Investment properties

Note 4.1: Investments and other Financial Assets
2019 2018 2019 2018

CURRENT $ $ $ $
Loans and receivables
Term Deposit

Aust. Dollar Term Deposits > 3 months -                      3,061,948     -                       3,061,948        
TOTAL INVESTMENTS AND OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS -                      3,061,948     -                       3,061,948        

Represented by:
Accommodation Bonds (Refundable entrance fees) -                      3,061,948     -                       3,061,948        

-                      3,061,948     -                       3,061,948        

Investment Recognition

Derecognition of financial assets

• the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or 

• the Health Service has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset and either: 
(a) has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset; or 

Impairment of financial assets

Hesse Rural Health Service classifies its other financial assets between current and non-current assets based on the Board’s intention at balance date with respect to the 
timing of disposal of each asset.  Hesse Rural Health Service assesses at each balance sheet date whether a financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired.

Investments are recognised and derecognised on trade date where purchase or sale of an investment is under a contract whose terms require delivery of the investment within 
the timeframe established by the market concerned, and are initially measured at fair value, net of transaction costs. 

Hesse Rural Health Service's controlled entities manage their investments in accordance with their own investment policy as approved by their Board and their investments are 
consolidated into Hesse Rural Health Service for reporting purposes as it is the ultimate beneficiary of Winchelsea Hostel and Nursing Home Society Inc.

• the Health Service retains the right to receive cash flows from the asset, but has assumed an obligation to pay them in full without material delay to a third party under a 
‘pass through’ arrangement; or 

Operating Fund

At the end of each reporting period Hesse Rural Health assesses whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of financial asset is impaired. All financial 
instrument assets, except those measured at fair value through profit or loss, are subject to annual review for impairment.

The allowance is the difference between the financial asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the effective interest rate. In 
assessing impairment of statutory (non-contractual) financial assets, which are not financial instruments, professional judgement is applied in assessing materiality using 
estimates, averages and other computational methods in accordance with AASB 136 Impairment of Assets.

(b) has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.
Where the Health Service has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards or transferred control, the asset is recognised to the extent of the Health 
Service’s continuing involvement in the asset.

All financial assets, except for those measured at fair value through the Comprehensive Operating Statement are subject to annual review for impairment.

The health service controls infrastructure and other investments that are utilised in fulfilling its objectives and conducting its activities. They represent the key resources that 
have been entrusted to the health service to be utilised for delivery of those outputs.

Hesse Rural Health Service's investments must comply with Standing Direction 3.7.2 - Treasury Management, including Central Banking System. 

In the prior year, Investments were classified in the following categories:
- loans and receivables.

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is derecognised when: 

Consolidated
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HESSE RURAL HEALTH SERVICE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019

Note 4.2: Property, Plant & Equipment

Initial Recognition

Revaluations of Non-Current Physical Assets

Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

The Valuer-General Victoria (VGV) is Hesse Rural Health Service’s independent valuation agency.

Revaluation surplus is not normally not transferred to accumulated funds on derecognition of the relevant asset.

In accordance with FRD 103H Hesse Rural Health's non-current physical assets were assessed to determine whether revaluation of the non-current physical assets was 
required.  

Unobservable inputs shall be used to measure fair value to the extent that relevant observable inputs are not available, thereby allowing for situations in which there is little, if 
any, market activity for the asset or liability at the measurement date. However, the fair value measurement objective remains the same, i.e., an exit price at the measurement 
date from the perspective of a market participant that holds the asset or owes the liability. Therefore, unobservable inputs shall reflect the assumptions that market participants 
would use when pricing the asset or liability, including assumptions about risk.

Crown land is measured at fair value with regard to the property’s highest and best use after due consideration is made for any legal or physical restrictions imposed on the 
asset, public announcements or commitments made in relation to the intended use of the asset. 

Land and buildings are recognised initially at cost and subsequently measured at fair value less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment loss.

Theoretical opportunities that may be available in relation to the asset(s) are not taken into account until it is virtually certain that any restrictions will no longer apply. Therefore, 
unless otherwise disclosed, the current use of these non-financial physical assets will be their highest and best uses.

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured initially at cost and subsequently revalued at fair value less accumulated depreciation and impairment loss. Where an 
asset is acquired for no or nominal cost, the cost is its fair value at the date of acquisition. Assets transferred as part of a merger/machinery of government change are 
transferred at their carrying amounts.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.

Level 3 fair value inputs are unobservable valuation inputs for an asset or liability. These inputs require significant judgement and assumptions in deriving fair value for both 
financial and non-financial assets.

Identifying unobservable inputs (level 3) fair value measurements

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, Hesse Rural Health Service has determined classes of assets on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset and 
the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained below.

In addition, Hesse Rural Health Service determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level 
input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

• Level 1 – quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities; 
• Level 2 – valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable; and 
• Level 3 – valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable. 

The initial cost for non-financial physical assets under finance lease (refer to Note 6.1) is measured at amounts equal to the fair value of the leased asset or, if lower, the 
present value of the minimum lease payments, each determined at the inception of the lease.

Revaluation increases and revaluation decreases relating to individual assets within an asset class are offset against one another within that class but are not offset in respect 
of assets in different classes. 

Revaluation decrements are recognised in ‘other comprehensive income’ to the extent that a credit balance exists in the asset revaluation surplus in respect of the same class 
of property, plant and equipment. 

Revaluation increments are recognised in ‘other comprehensive income’ and are credited directly in equity to the asset revaluation surplus, except that, to the extent that an 
increment reverses a revaluation decrement in respect of that same class of asset previously recognised as an expense in net result, the increment is recognised as income in 
the net result.

Non-current physical assets are measured at fair value and are revalued in accordance with FRD103H Non-current physical assets .  This revaluation process normally occurs 
at least every five years, based upon the asset's Government Purpose Classification, but may occur more frequently if fair value assessments indicate material changes in 
values. Independent valuers are used to conduct these scheduled revaluations and any interim revaluations are determined in accordance with the requirements of the FRDs. 
Revaluation increments or decrements arise from differences between an asset's carrying value and fair value.

Valuation hierarchy
In determining fair values a number of inputs are used. To increase consistency and comparability in the financial statements, these inputs are categorised into three levels, 
also known as the fair value hierarchy. The levels are as follows: 
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Non-specialised land and non-specialised buildings

Specialised land and specialised buildings

Vehicles

Plant and equipment

There were no changes in valuation techniques throughout the period to 30 June 2019.

For all assets measured at fair value, the current use is considered to be the highest and best use.

Consideration of highest and best use (HBU) for non-financial physical assets
Judgements about highest and best use must take into account the characteristics of the assets concerned, including restrictions on the use and disposal of assets arising from 
the asset’s physical nature and any applicable legislative/contractual arrangements.

For non-specialised land and non-specialised buildings, an independent valuation was performed by the Valuer-General Victoria to determine the fair value using the market 
approach. Valuation of the assets was determined by analysing comparable sales and allowing for share, size, topography, location and other relevant factors specific to the 
asset being valued. An appropriate rate per square metre has been applied to the subject asset. The effective date of the valuation is 30 June 2019.

Non-specialised land and non-specialised buildings are valued using the market approach. Under this valuation method, the assets are compared to recent comparable sales 
or sales of comparable assets which are considered to have nominal or no added improvement value.

An independent valuation of Hesse Rural Health Services' specialised land and specialised buildings was performed by the Valuer-General Victoria.  The valuation was 
performed using the market approach adjusted for CSO.  The effective date of the valuation is 30 June 2019.

During the reporting period, Hesse Rural Health Services held Crown Land. The nature of this asset means that there are certain limitations and restrictions imposed on its use 
and/or disposal that may impact their fair value.

The market approach is used for specialised land and specialised buildings although it is adjusted for the community service obligation (CSO) to reflect the specialised nature 
of the assets being valued. Under this valuation method, the assets are compared to recent comparable sales or sales of comparable assets which are considered to have 
nominal or no added improvement value. Specialised assets contain significant, unobservable adjustments; therefore these assets are classified as Level 3 under the market 
based direct comparison approach.

Specialised land includes Crown Land which is measured at fair value with regard to the property’s highest and best use after due consideration is made for any legal or 
physical restrictions imposed on the asset, public announcements or commitments made in relation to the intended use of the asset. Theoretical opportunities that may be 
available in relation to the assets are not taken into account until it is virtually certain that any restrictions will no longer apply. Therefore, unless otherwise disclosed, the current 
use of these non-financial physical assets will be their highest and best use.

In accordance with paragraph AASB 13.29, Health Services can assume the current use of a non-financial physical asset is its HBU unless market or other factors suggest that 
a different use by market participants would maximise the value of the asset.

Plant and equipment (including medical equipment, computers and communication equipment and furniture and fittings are held at carrying amount (depreciated cost). When 
plant and equipment is specialised in use, such that it is rarely sold other than as part of a going concern, the depreciated replacement cost is used to estimate the fair value. 
Unless there is market evidence that current replacement costs are significantly different from the original acquisition cost, it is considered unlikely that depreciated 
replacement cost will be materially different from the existing carrying amount. 

The Health Service acquires new vehicles and at times disposes of them before completion of their economic life. The process of acquisition, use and disposal in the market is 
managed by the Health Service who set relevant depreciation rates during use to reflect the consumption of the vehicles. As a result, the fair value of vehicles does not differ 
materially from the carrying amount (depreciated cost).

For Hesse Rural Health Service, the depreciated replacement cost method is used for the majority of specialised buildings, adjusting for the associated depreciation. As 
depreciation adjustments are considered as significant and unobservable inputs in nature, specialised buildings are classified as Level 3 for fair value measurements.

The CSO adjustment is a reflection of the valuer’s assessment of the impact of restrictions associated with an asset to the extent that is also equally applicable to market 
participants. This approach is in light of the highest and best use consideration required for fair value measurement, and takes into account the use of the asset that is 
physically possible, legally permissible and financially feasible. As adjustments of CSO are considered as significant unobservable inputs, specialised land would be classified 
as Level 3 assets. 
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Consol'd Consol'd
Note 4.2(a): Property, plant and equipment -  Gross carrying amount and accumulated depreciation 2019 2018

$ $
Land
Land at fair value 2,816,000        2,605,339        
Total Land 2,816,000        2,605,339        

Buildings
Building Work in Progress at Cost -                       193,687           

Buildings at Fair Value 11,701,000      9,720,533        
Less: Accumulated Depreciation -                       (49,859)            

11,701,000      9,670,674        
Total Buildings 11,701,000      9,864,361        

Plant and Equipment
Plant and Equipment at fair value 1,263,012        1,163,639        

Less: Accumulated Depreciation (879,930)          (790,224)          
Total Plant and Equipment 383,082           373,415           

Motor Vehicles
Motor Vehicles at fair value 502,925           500,836           

Less: Accumulated Depreciation (288,271)          (255,147)          
Total Motor Vehicles 214,654           245,689           

Medical Equipment
Medical Equipment at fair value 104,998           90,740             

Less: Accumulated Depreciation (89,128)            (83,647)            
Total Medical Equipment 15,870             7,093               

Leased Assets
Share of SWARH Joint Venture Leased Assets at fair value 126,920           594,027           

Less: Accumulated Depreciation -                       (525,619)          
Total Leased Assets 126,920           68,408             

TOTAL 15,257,526      13,164,305      

Consolidated Motor Plant & Medical Leased Total
Land Buildings Vehicles Equipment Equipment Assets Consolidated

$ $ $ $ $ $ $
Balance at 1 July 2017 2,059,059    9,544,107            201,628        405,116          13,942          226,649           12,450,501      
Additions 24,774         124,361               85,443          64,138            -                    -                       298,716           
Disposals -                   -                           -                    -                      -                    (104,146)          (104,146)          
Revaluation Increments 521,506       864,088               -                    -                      -                    -                       1,385,594        
Depreciation Expense (Note 4.3) -                   (668,195)              (41,382)         (95,839)           (6,849)           (54,095)            (866,360)          
Balance at 1 July 2018 2,605,339    9,864,361            245,689        373,415          7,093            68,408             13,164,305      

Additions -                   298,043               44,639          102,373          14,258          107,929           567,242           
Disposals -                   -                           (28,351)         -                      -                    -                       (28,351)            
Revaluation Increments 210,661       2,208,789            -                    -                      -                    -                       2,419,450        
Depreciation Expense (Note 4.3) -                   (670,193)              (47,323)         (92,706)           (5,481)           (49,417)            (865,120)          
Balance at 30 June 2019 2,816,000    11,701,000          214,654        383,082          15,870          126,920           15,257,526      

Land and buildings carried at valuation

In compliance with FRD 103G, in the year ended 30 June 2018, the entity's management conducted an annual assessment of the fair value of buildings. To facilitate this, 
management obtained from the Department of Treasury and Finance the Valuer General Victoria indices for the financial year ended 30 June 2018. 

The latest indices required a managerial revaluation of land and buildings in 2018. The indexed value was then compared to individual assets written down book value as at 30 
June 2018 to determine the change in their fair values.  The Department of Health and Human Services approved a managerial revaluation of the land asset class of $521,506 
and buildings of $864,088.

Note 4.2(b): Property, plant and equipment - Reconciliations of the carrying amounts of each class of asset

The Valuer-General Victoria undertook to re-value all of Hesse Rural Health Services's owned and leased land and buildings to determine their fair value. The valuation, which 
conforms to Australian Valuation Standards, was determined by reference to the amounts for which assets could be exchanged between knowledgeable willing parties in an 
arm's length transaction. The valuation was based on independent assessments. The effective date of the valuation is 30 June 2019.
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Note 4.2 ( c); Property plant and equipment - fair value measurement hierarchy of assets

Balance at 30 June 2019 Level 1 (i) Level 2 (i) Level 3 (i)
$ $ $ $

Land at fair value
Non-specialised land 1,055,000       1,055,000        -                       
Specialised land 1,761,000       -                    -                       1,761,000        
Total of land at fair value 2,816,000       -                    -                       1,761,000        

Buildings at fair value
Non-specialised buildings 60,000            60,000             -                       
Specialised buildings 11,641,000     -                    -                       11,641,000      
Total of buildings at fair value 11,701,000     -                    -                       11,641,000      

Plant and equipment at fair value 383,082          -                    -                       383,082           

Motor Vehicles at fair value 214,654          -                    -                       214,654           

Medical equipment at fair value 15,870            -                    -                       15,870             

15,130,606     -                    -                       14,015,606      

Balance at 30 June 2018 Level 1 (i) Level 2 (i) Level 3 (i)
$ $ $ $

Land at fair value
Specialised land 2,605,339       -                    -                       2,605,339        
Total of land at fair value 2,605,339       -                    -                       2,605,339        

Buildings at fair value
Specialised buildings 9,670,674       -                    -                       9,670,674        
Total of buildings at fair value 9,670,674       -                    -                       9,670,674        

Plant and equipment at fair value 373,415          -                    -                       373,415           

Motor Vehicles at fair value 245,689          -                    -                       245,689           

Medical equipment at fair value 7,093              -                    -                       7,093               

12,902,210     -                    -                       12,902,210      
Note
(i) Classified in accordance with the fair value hierarchy, 

There is a transfer between non-specialised land and specialised land to reflect the correct fair value as per the managerial revaluation in 2019. There have been no transfers between levels during the prior year.

Consolidated 
carrying amount

Fair value measurement at end of reporting period 
using:

Consolidated 
carrying amount

Fair value measurement at end of reporting period 
using:
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Note 4.2 (d): Property, plant and equipment - Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurement

Consolidated Motor Vehicles
$ $ $ $ $

Balance at 1 July 2018 2,605,339     9,670,674       245,689        373,415           7,093               
Purchases (sales) -                    491,730          16,288          102,373           14,258             
Transfers in (out) of Level 3 (1,055,000)    (60,000)           -                       -                       
Gains or losses recognised in net result
- Depreciation -                    (670,193)         (47,323)        (92,706)            (5,481)              
Subtotal 1,550,339     9,432,211       214,654        383,082           15,870             

Items recognised in other comprehensive income
- Revaluation 210,661        2,208,789       -                    -                       -                       
Subtotal 210,661        2,208,789       -                       -                       
Closing Balance

Balance at 30 June 2019 1,761,000     11,641,000     214,654        383,082           15,870             

Consolidated Motor Vehicles
$ $ $ $ $

Balance at 1 July 2017 2,059,059     9,474,781       201,628        405,116           13,942             
Purchases (sales) 24,774          -                      85,443          64,138             -                       
Gains or losses recognised in net result
- Depreciation -                    (668,195)         (41,382)        (95,839)            (6,849)              
Subtotal 2,083,833     8,806,586       245,689        373,415           7,093               

Items recognised in other comprehensive income
- Revaluation 521,506        864,088          -                    -                       -                       
Subtotal 521,506        864,088          -                       -                       

Balance at 30 June 2018 2,605,339     9,670,674       245,689        373,415           7,093               

Note 4.2 (e): Property, plant and equipment - fair value determination

Asset class Fair 
value level

Non‑specialised buildings Level 2 

Vehicles Level 2

Consol'd Consol'd
2019 2018

Property, Plant & Equipment Revaluation Surplus
Balance at the beginning of the reporting period 4,952,360        3,566,766        
Revaluation Increments

 - Land 210,661           521,506           
 - Buildings 2,208,789        864,088           

Balance at the end of the reporting period 7,371,810        4,952,360        
Represented by:

 - Land 1,679,732        1,469,071        
 - Buildings 5,692,078        3,483,289        

7,371,810        4,952,360        

Depreciated replacement cost approach

Depreciated replacement cost approach

Non‑specialised land

Level 3

- Cost per unit; useful life
- Cost per unit
- Useful life

Land

Buildings

Buildings

Plant and 
equipment

Medical 
equipment

Level 2

Level 3

Level 3

Medical 
equipment

Land

Valuation approach

Market approach

Depreciated replacement cost approach

Significant inputs (Level 3 only)

Specialised Land (Crown / Freehold)

Note 4.2 (f): Property, plant and equipment - Revaluation Surplus

Specialised buildings 

Market approach

Market approach

n.a.

Community Service Obligations Adjustments 

n.a.
- Cost per  square metre
- Useful life

Plant and 
equipment

Plant and equipment 
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Note 4.3:   Depreciation Consol'd Consol'd
2019 2018

$ $
Buildings 670,193           668,195           
Plant & Equipment 92,706             95,839             
Motor Vehicles 47,323             41,382             
Medical Equipment 5,481               6,849               
Leased Equipment 49,417             54,095             
Total Depreciation 865,120           866,360           

Depreciation

The following table indicates the expected useful lives of non current assets on which the depreciation charges are based.

2019 2018
Buildings
 - Structure Shell Building Fabric 50 to 75 years 50 to 75 years
 - Site Engineering Services and Central Plant 30 to 40 years 30 to 40 years
Central Plant 
 - Fit Out 25 to 30 years 25 to 30 years
 - Trunk Reticulated Building Systems 30 to 40 years 30 to 40 years
Plant & Equipment 5 to 10 years 5 to 10 years
Medical Equipment 5 to 10 years 5 to 10 years
Computers & Communications 5 years 5 years
Furniture & Fittings 5 to 10 years 5 to 10 years
Motor Vehicles 5 to 10 years 5 to 10 years
Leasehold Improvements 5 to 10 years 5 to 10 years

As part of the Buildings valuation, building values were separated into components and each component assessed for its useful life which is represented above. 

Assets with a cost in excess of $1,000 are capitalised and depreciation has been provided on depreciable assets so as to allocate their cost or valuation over their estimated 
useful lives. 

All infrastructure assets, buildings, plant and equipment and other non-financial physical assets (excluding items under operating leases, assets held for sale, land and 
investment properties) that have finite useful lives are depreciated. Depreciation is generally calculated on a straight-line basis at rates that allocate the asset’s value, less any 
estimated residual value over its estimated useful life. 
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Note 4.4:   Investment properties

Consol'd Consol'd
Note 4.4(a): Movements in carrying value for investment properties as at 30 June 2019 2019 2018

$ $
Balance at Beginning of Period 1,050,000        -                       
Acquisition and capital expenditure -                       192,779           
Resident obligations recognised (note 5.2) -                       567,000           
Net Gain/(Loss) from Fair Value Adjustments (130,000)          290,221           
Balance at End of Period 920,000           1,050,000        

Note 4.4 (b): Fair value measurement hierarchy for investment properties

Level 1 (i) Level 2 (i) Level 3 (i)
$ $ $ $

Investment properties 920,000          -                    920,000           -                       
920,000          -                    920,000           -                       

Level 1 (i) Level 2 (i) Level 3 (i)
$ $ $ $

Investment properties 1,050,000       -                    1,050,000        -                       
1,050,000       -                    1,050,000        -                       

Note
(i) Classified in accordance with the fair value hierarchy, 

Investment properties

Carrying amount 
as at 30 June 

2019

Fair value measurement at end of reporting period 
using:

The fair value of the Health Service’s investment properties at 30 June 2019 have been arrived on the basis of an independent valuation carried out by the Valuer General. The 
valuation was determined by reference to market evidence of transaction process for similar properties with no significant unobservable adjustments, in the same location and 
condition.

For investment properties measured at fair value, the current use of the asset is considered the highest and best use.

Investment properties are initially recognised at cost. Costs incurred subsequent to initial acquisition are capitalised when it is probable that future economic benefits in excess 
of the originally assessed performance of the asset will flow to the Health Service.

Rental revenue from leasing of investment properties is recognised in the comprehensive operating statement in the periods in which it is receivable on a straight line basis 
over the lease term. 

Subsequent to initial recognition at cost, investment properties are revalued to fair value, determined annually by independent valuers. Fair values are determined based on a 
market comparable approach that reflects recent transaction prices for similar properties. Investment properties are neither depreciated nor tested for impairment.

Fair value measurement at end of reporting period 
using:

Hesse Rural Health has assets classified as investment property for the purposes of AASB140 Investment Property, including independent living units.  These assets are 
carried at amounts which represent fair value at balance date.

Carrying amount 
as at 30 June 

2018

There have been no transfers between levels during the period. There were no changes in valuation techniques throughout the period to 30 June 2019.

Investment properties represent properties held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both. Investment properties exclude properties held to meet service delivery 
objectives of the health services.
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Note 5: Other Assets and liabilities

This section sets out those assets and liabilities that arose from the health service's operations.

Structure
5.1  Receivables
5.2  Payables
5.3  Other liabilities

Note 5.1: Receivables Consol'd Consol'd
2019 2018

CURRENT $ $
Contractual
Patient and Resident Fees 231,714           176,090           
Trade Debtors 150,909           38,598             
Accrued Investment Income -                       9,366               
Less Allowance for impairment losses of contractual receivables
   Resident Fees (97,197)            (71,727)            

285,426           152,327           
Statutory
GST Receivable 39,799             36,264             
Commonwealth Subsidies 18,838             698                  
Accrued Revenue - Department of Health and Human Services 2,501               -                       

61,138             36,962             
TOTAL CURRENT RECEIVABLES 346,564           189,289           

NON-CURRENT
Statutory
 Long Service Leave - Department of Health and Human Services 454,910           376,623           
TOTAL NON-CURRENT RECEIVABLES 454,910           376,623           

TOTAL RECEIVABLES 801,474           565,912           

Note 5.1 (a): Movement in the Allowance for impairment losses of contractual receivables

Balance at beginning of year (71,727)            (46,812)            
Increase in allowance recognised in net result (25,470)            (24,915)            
Balance at end of year (97,197)            (71,727)            

Receivables consist of:

Impairment losses of contractual receivables

Trade debtors are carried at nominal amounts due and are due for settlement within 30 days from the date of recognition. 

In assessing impairment of statutory (non-contractual) financial assets, which are not financial instruments, professional judgement is applied in assessing materiality using 
estimates, averages and other computational methods in accordance with AASB 136 Impairment of Assets.

• Contractual receivables, which consists of debtors in relation to goods and services and accrued investment income. These receivables are classified as financial instruments 
and categorised as ‘financial assets at amortised costs’. They are initially recognised at fair value plus any directly attributable transaction costs. Hesse Rural Health Service 
holds the contractual receivables with the objective to collect the contractual cash flows and therefore subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest 
method, less any impairment. 

Receivables recognition

• Statutory receivables, which predominantly includes amounts owing from the Victorian Government and Goods and Services Tax (GST) input tax credits recoverable. 
Statutory receivables do not arise from contracts and are recognised and measured similarly to contractual receivables (except for impairment), but are not classified as 
financial instruments for disclosure purposes. Hesse Rural Health Service applies AASB 9 for initial measurement of the statutory receivables and as a result statutory 
receivables are initially recognised at fair value plus any directly attributable transaction cost.

Refer to Note 7.1 ( c) Contractual receivables at amortised costs for Hesse Rural Health Service’s contractual impairment losses.

Hesse Rural Health Service is not exposed to any significant credit risk exposure to any single counterparty or any group of counterparties having similar characteristics. Trade 
receivables consist of a large number of customers in various geographical areas. Based on historical information about customer default rates, management consider the 
credit quality of trade receivables that are not past due or impaired to be good.
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Note 5.2:   Payables Consol'd Consol'd
2019 2018

CURRENT $ $
Contractual
Trade Creditors 303,689           128,798           
SWARH Payables 108,718           120,514           
Accrued Salaries and Wages 284,812           247,592           
Accrued Expenses -                       -                       
Inter-hospital creditors 5,518               -                       

702,737           496,904           
Statutory
Department of Health and Human Services -                       131,187           
Commonwealth subsidies 11,753             4,404               

11,753             135,591           
Total Current 714,490           632,495           
TOTAL PAYABLES 714,490           632,495           

Payables consist of:

Maturity analysis of payables
Please refer to Note 7.1(b) for the maturity analysis of payables.

Note 5.3:   Other Liabilities Consol'd Consol'd
CURRENT 2019 2018

$ $
Patient monies held in trust 160,042           117,886           
Refundable accommodation bonds 6,509,612        6,065,245        
Resident loan obligations - independent living units 331,200           567,000           
Total Other Liabilities 7,000,854        6,750,131        

Other Liabilities:
Represented by the following assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents (refer to Note 6.2) 3,716,723        600,886           
Term Deposits (refer to Note 4.1) -                       2,629,314        
Land and Buildings - Residential Aged Care 2,952,931        2,952,931        
Investment properties - independent living units 331,200           567,000           
TOTAL 7,000,854        6,750,131        

Payables

The normal credit terms are usually Net 30 days. 

• contractual payables which consist predominantly of accounts payable representing liabilities for goods and services provided to the Health Service prior to the end of the 
financial year that are unpaid, and arise when the health service becomes obliged to make future payments in respect of the purchase of those goods and services.  

• statutory payables, that are recognised and measured similarly to contractual payables, but are not classified as financial instruments and not included in the category of 
financial liabilities at amortised cost, because they do not arise from contracts. 
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Note 6: How we Finance our Operations

Structure
6.1  Borrowings
6.2  Cash and cash equivalents
6.3  Commitments for expenditure

Note 6.1:   Borrowings Consol'd Consol'd
2019 2018

Current $ $
- Finance Lease Liability (i) 29,408             74,975             
Total Current 29,408             74,975             

Non-Current
- Finance Lease Liability (i) 44,729             -                       
Total Non-Current 44,729             -                       

TOTAL BORROWINGS 74,137             74,975             

(i)  Hesse Rural Health's share of finance lease liabilities undertaken by the SWARH joint arrangement (refer to Note 8.8)

Maturity analysis of borrowings
Please refer to Note 7.1 (b) for the maturity analysis of borrowings.

Defaults and breaches
During the current and prior year, SWARH have not reported any defaults and breaches of any of the borrowings.

(a) Finance Lease liabilities
Consol'd Consol'd

2019 2018
Share of SWARH finance lease liabilities (refer to Note 8.8) $ $
Not longer than one year 30,149             76,864             
Longer than one year but not longer than five years 44,729             -                       
Minimum Lease Payments 74,878             76,864             
Less Future Finance Charges 741                  1,889               
Total Finance Lease liabilities 74,137             74,975             

Borrowings recognition

Finance Leases - Entity as lessee

Note 6.2:   Cash and Cash Equivalents

Consol'd Consol'd
2019 2018

$ $
Cash on Hand (excluding monies held in trust) (622)                 (622)                 
Cash at Bank (excluding monies held in trust) 70,292             275,760           
Deposits at Call (excluding monies held in trust) 1,522,376        1,038,032        
Cash at Bank (Monies held in trust) 160,042           194,281           
Deposits at Call (Monies held in trust) 3,556,681        406,605           
Total Cash and Cash Equivalents 5,308,769        1,914,056        

Cash and cash equivalents recognised on the balance sheet comprise cash on hand and cash at bank, deposits at call and highly liquid investments (with an original maturity 
of three months or less), which are held for the purpose of meeting short term cash commitments rather than for investment purposes, which are readily convertible to known 
amounts of cash and are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.

The cash flow statement includes monies held in trust.

Leases of property, plant and equipment are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the 
lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases (refer note 6.3).

Finance leases are recognised as assets and liabilities at amounts equal to the fair value of the lease property or, if lower, the present value of the minimum lease payment, 
each determined at the inception of the lease. The lease asset is depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset or the term of the lease. Minimum lease 
payments are apportioned between reduction of the outstanding lease liability, and the periodic finance expense which is calculated using the interest rate implicit in the lease, 
and charged directly to the comprehensive operating statement. Contingent rentals associated with finance leases are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are 
incurred.

A lease is a right to use an asset for an agreed period of time in exchange for payment. Leases are classified at their inception as either operating or finance leases based on 
the economic substance of the agreement so as to reflect the risks and rewards incidental to ownership.

This section provides information on the sources of finance utilised by the hospital during its operations, along with interest expenses (the cost of borrowings) and other 
information related to financing activities of the hospital.

This section includes disclosures of balances that are financial instruments (such as borrowings and cash balances).  Note: 7.1 provides additional, specific financial instrument 
disclosures.

 Minimum future lease 
payments (i) 
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Note 6.3:   Commitments for Expenditure Consol'd Consol'd
2019 2018

$ $
Non-cancellable Operating Lease Commitments
Less than 1 year 93,584             167,580           
Longer than 1 year but not longer than 5 years 133,094           8,785               
Total Non-cancellable Operating Lease Commitments 226,678           176,365           

TOTAL COMMITMENTS FOR EXPENDITURE (exclusive of GST) 226,678           176,365           

Future finance lease payments are recognised on the balance sheet, refer to Note 6.1 Borrowings.

Commitments

Commitments for future expenditure include operating and capital commitments arising from contracts. These commitments are disclosed by way of a note at their nominal 
value and are inclusive of the GST payable. In addition, where it is considered appropriate and provides additional relevant information to users, the net present values of 
significant individual projects are stated. These future expenditures cease to be disclosed as commitments once the related liabilities are recognised on the balance sheet.

Hesse Rural Health has entered into commercial leases on motor vehicles used primarily for district nursing services provided by the Health Service with the lease terms of 
three to five years, photocopiers with lease terms of 5 years, and rental of property and office space for the delivery of community health services in Moriac and Bannockburn 
with lease term of 5 years and 3 years respectively:
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Note 7: Risks, Contingencies & Valuation Uncertainties

Introduction

Structure
7.1  Financial instruments
7.2  Contingent assets and contingent liabilities

Note 7.1:   Financial Instruments

Note 7.1(a ) Financial Instruments: categorisation

Consolidated
2019

$
Financial Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents 5,308,769       -                    5,308,769        
Receivables

- Trade Debtors 285,426          -                    285,426           
Total Financial Assets (i) 5,594,195       -                    5,594,195        
Financial Liabilities
Payables -                      702,737        702,737           
Borrowings -                      74,137          74,137             
Other Financial Liabilities

- Accommodation bonds -                      6,509,612     6,509,612        
- Resident loan obligations - independent living units -                      331,200        331,200           
- Resident monies held in trust -                      160,042        160,042           

Total Financial Liabilities (i) -                      7,777,728 7,777,728        

Consolidated
2018

$ $ $
Financial Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents 1,914,056       -                    1,914,056        
Receivables

- Trade Debtors 142,961          -                    142,961           
- Other receivables 9,366              -                    9,366               

Other Financial Assets
- Term deposits 3,061,948       -                    3,061,948        

Total Financial Assets (i) 5,128,331       -                    5,128,331        
Financial Liabilities
Payables -                      496,904        496,904           
Borrowings -                      74,975          74,975             
Other Financial Liabilities

- Accommodation bonds -                      6,065,245     6,065,245        
- Resident loan obligations - independent living units -                      567,000        567,000           
- Resident monies held in trust -                      117,886        117,886           

Total Financial Liabilities (i) -                      7,322,010 7,322,010        

Contractual 
Financial Assets - 

Loans and 
receivables and 

cash

Contractual 
Financial 

Liabilities at 
Amortised Cost Total

Financial Assets 
at Amortised 

Cost

Contractual 
Financial 

Liabilities at 
Amortised Cost

Financial instruments arise out of contractual agreements that give rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity. Due to the 
nature of Hesse Rural Health Service's activities, certain financial assets and financial liabilities arise under statute rather than a contract. Such financial assets and financial 
liabilities do not meet the definition of financial instruments in AASB 132 Financial Instruments: Presentation.  

The hospital is exposed to risk from its activities and outside factors. In addition, it is often necessary to make judgements and estimates associated with recognition and 
measurement of items in the financial statements. This section sets out financial instrument specific information, (including exposures to financial risks) as well as those items 
that are contingent in nature or require a higher level of judgement to be applied, which for the hospital is related mainly to fair value determination.

Total

(i) The carrying amount excludes statutory receivables (i.e. GST receivable and DHHS receivable) and statutory payables (i.e. Revenue in Advance and DHHS payable).
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Note 7.1:   Financial Instruments (cont'd)

Categories of financial assets previously under AASB 139:

Loans and receivables and cash 

 - Payables (excluding statutory payables)
 - Borrowings (SWARH finance leases)
 - Other liabilities

Derecognition of financial assets

Derecognition of financial liabilities

Note 7.1 (b) Maturity Analysis of financial liabilities as at 30 June

Consolidated
Financial Liabilities Carrying Nominal Less than 1-3 3 Months - 1-5 Over 5
At amortised cost Note Amount Amount 1 Month Months 1 Year Years Years
2019 $ $ $ $ $ $ $
Payables 5.2        702,737 702,737               702,737        -                    -                       -                       
Borrowings 6.1          74,137 74,137                 -                    -                      74,137          -                       -                       
Other Financial Liabilities 5.3

- Accommodation bonds     6,509,612 6,509,612            -                    -                      1,900,000     4,609,612        -                       
- Resident loan obligations - independent living units        331,200 331,200               -                    -                      -                    331,200           -                       
- Resident monies held in trust        160,042 160,042               160,042        -                      -                    -                       -                       

Total Financial Liabilities     7,777,728             7,777,728         862,779                      -       1,974,137          4,940,812                        -  

2018
Payables 5.2        496,904 496,904               496,904        -                    -                       -                       
Borrowings 6.1          74,975 74,975                 -                    -                      74,975          -                       -                       
Other Financial Liabilities 5.3

- Accommodation bonds     6,065,245 6,065,245            -                    -                      1,900,000     4,165,245        -                       
- Resident loan obligations - independent living units        567,000 567,000               -                    -                      -                    567,000           -                       
- Resident monies held in trust        117,886 117,886               117,886        -                      -                    -                       -                       

Total Financial Liabilities     7,322,010             7,322,010         614,790                      -       1,974,975          4,732,245                        -  

(i) Maturity analysis of financial liabilities excludes statutory financial liabilities (i.e. GST payable)

Maturity Dates

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or expires.

Financial assets are measured at amortised costs if both of the following criteria are met and the assets are not designated as fair value through net result:
• the assets are held by Hesse Rural Health Service to collect the contractual cash flows, and
• the assets’ contractual terms give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interests.

These assets are initially recognised at fair value plus any directly attributable transaction costs and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest 
method less any impairment. 
The health service recognises the following assets in this category:
• cash and deposits;
• receivables (excluding statutory receivables); and
• term deposits.

Loans and receivables and cash are financial instrument assets with fixed and determinable payments that are not quoted on an active market. These assets and liabilities are 
initially recognised at fair value plus any directly attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial measurement, loans and receivables are measured at amortised cost using 
the effective interest method (and for assets, less any impairment). Hesse Rural Health Service recognises the following assets in this category:
• cash and deposits
• receivables (excluding statutory receivables); and
• term deposits.

From 1 July 2018, Hesse Rural Health Service applies AASB 9 and classifies all of its financial assets based on the business model for managing the assets and the asset’s 
contractual terms. 

Categories of financial assets under AASB 9:

Financial assets at amortised cost

The following table discloses the contractual maturity analysis for Hesse Rural Health Service’s financial liabilities. For interest rates applicable to each class of liability refer to 
individual notes to the financial statements.

The allowance is the difference between the financial asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the effective interest rate. In 
assessing impairment of statutory (non-contractual) financial assets, which are not financial instruments, professional judgement is applied in assessing materiality using 
estimates, averages and other computational methods in accordance with AASB 136 Impairment of Assets.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost are initially recognised on the date they are originated. They are initially measured at fair value plus any directly attributable transaction 
costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, these financial instruments are measured at amortised cost with any difference between the initial recognised amount and the 
redemption value being recognised in profit and loss over the period of the interest-bearing liability, using the effective interest rate method.

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the 
asset have expired.

Hesse Rural Health recognises the following liabilities in this category:

Impairment of financial assets: At the end of each reporting period, Hesse Rural Health Service assesses whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or group 
of financial assets is impaired. All financial instrument assets, except those measured at fair value through profit or loss, are subject to annual review for impairment.
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Note 7.1(c) Contractual receivables at amortised cost

Less than 1-3 3 Months - 1-5 Impaired
1 Month Months 1 Year Years Total

$ $ $ $ $ $
Expected loss rate 0% 4% 29% 26% 100%
Gross carrying amount of contractual receivables 31,841                 54,043          21,707            71,750          44,713             224,054           
Loss allowance -                           2,078            6,234              18,702          44,713             71,727             

Less than 1-3 3 Months - 1-5 Impaired
1 Month Months 1 Year Years Total

$ $ $ $ $ $
Expected loss rate 0% 4% 3% 34% 100%
Gross carrying amount of contractual receivables 45,175                 53,159          146,975          65,587          71,727             382,623           
Loss allowance -                           2,078            4,293              22,500          71,727             97,197             

Impairment of financial assets under AASB 9 – applicable from 1 July 2018

Reconciliation of the movement in the loss allowance for contractual receivables 2019 2018
$ $

Balance at beginning of the year (71,727)            (46,812)            
Opening Loss Allowance (71,727)            (46,812)            
Increase in provision recognised in net result (25,470)            (24,915)            
Balance at end of the year (97,197)            (71,727)            

(i) The change to AASB9 was insignificant, therefore it has not been brought to account at 1 July 2018.

Note 7.2:   Contingent Assets and Contingent Liabilities

Financial guarantee
Hesse Rural Health Service has provided a financial guarantee of $100,000 in relation to payroll services.

Contingent assets and contingent liabilities are not recognised in the balance sheet, but are disclosed by way of note and, if quantifiable, are measured at nominal value. 
Contingent assets and contingent liabilities are presented inclusive of GST receivable or payable respectively.

Credit loss allowance is classified as other economic flows in the net result. Contractual receivables are written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery and 
impairment losses are classified as a transaction expense. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited against the same line item.

In prior years, a provision for doubtful debts is recognised when there is objective evidence that the debts may not be collected and bad debts are written off when identified. A 
provision is made for estimated irrecoverable amounts from the sale of goods when there is objective evidence that an individual receivable is impaired. Bad debts considered 
as written off by mutual consent. 

Statutory receivables at amortised cost [AASB2016-8.4]

Hesse Rural Health Service’s non-contractual receivables arising from statutory requirements are not financial instruments. However, they are nevertheless recognised and 
measured in accordance with AASB 9 requirements as if those receivables are financial instruments. 

Hesse Rural Health Service also had investments in term deposits during the year.

The statutory receivablesare considered to have low credit risk, taking into account the counterparty’s credit rating, risk of default and capacity to meet contractual cash flow 
obligations in the near term. As the result, the loss allowance recognised for this financial asset during the period was limited to 12 months expected losses. No loss allowance 
recognised at 30 June 2018 under AASB 139. No additional loss allowance was required upon transition into AASB 9 on 1 July 2018.

On this basis, Hesse Rural Health Service determines the opening loss allowance on initial application date of AASB 9 and the closing loss allowance at end of the financial 
year as disclosed above.

From 1 July 2018, Hesse Rural Health Service has been recording the allowance for expected credit loss for the relevant financial instruments, replacing AASB 139’s incurred 
loss approach with AASB 9’s Expected Credit Loss approach. Subject to AASB 9 impairment assessment include Hesse Rural Health Service’s contractual receivables and 
statutory receivables.

While cash and cash equivalents are also subject to the impairment requirements of AASB 9, the identified impairment loss was immaterial. 

Contractual receivables at amortised cost

Hesse Rural Health Service applies AASB 9 simplified approach for all contractual receivables to measure expected credit losses using a lifetime expected loss allowance 
based on the assumptions about risk of default and expected loss rates.Hesse Rural Health Service has grouped contractual receivables on shared credit risk characteristics 
and days past due and select the expected credit loss rate based on past history, existing market conditions, as well as forward looking estimates at the end of the financial 
year. 

30/06/2019 Current

1/07/2018 Current
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Note 8:  Other Disclosures

Structure
8.1  Reconciliation of net result for the year to net cash inflow / (outflow) from operating activities
8.2  Responsible persons disclosures
8.3  Remuneration of Executive officers
8.4  Related parties
8.5  Remuneration of auditors
8.6  Events occurring after the balance sheet date
8.7  Controlled entities
8.8  Jointly Controlled Operations
8.9  Economic Dependency
8.10  Changes in Accounting Policy
8.11  AASBs issued that are not yet effective

Consol'd Consol'd

2019 2018
$ $

Net Result for the Year (506,303)          (651,204)          

Non-Cash Movements
Depreciation 865,120           866,360           
Revaluation of LSL provision 47,126             (11,698)            
Movements included in investing and financing activities
Net (gain)/loss from disposal of non financial physical assets 2,896               (1,000)              
Net (gain) / loss on revaluation of independent living units 53,659             (290,221)          
Movements in assets and liabilities:
Change in Operating Assets & Liabilities

Increase/(Decrease) in Payables 81,995             (713,327)          
Increase/(Decrease) in Employee Entitlements 280,667           132,881           
(Increase)/Decrease in Receivables (235,562)          850,191           
(Increase)/Decrease in Other Liabilities (47,126)            (519,455)          
(Increase)/Decrease in Prepayments 5,854               (24,864)            

Net Cash Inflow From Operating Activities 548,326           (362,337)          

Note 8.2:  Responsible Persons Disclosures

From To
Responsible Ministers:
The Honourable Jill Hennessy, Minister for Health, Minister for Ambulance Services 1/07/2018 29/11/2018
The Honourable Jenny Mikakos, Minister for Health, Minister for Ambulance Services 29/11/2018 30/06/2019
The Honourable Martin Foley, Minister for Mental Health 1/07/2018 29/11/2018
The Honourable Martin Foley, Minister for Housing, Disability and Ageing 1/07/2018 29/11/2018
The Honourable Luke Donnellan Minister for Child Protection, Minister for Disability, Ageing and Carers 29/11/2018 30/06/2019

Governing Board
K. Taylor 1/07/2018 30/06/2019
N. Hutton 1/07/2018 30/06/2019
S. Ni Chuinneagain 1/07/2018 30/06/2019
T. O'Loughlin 1/07/2018 30/06/2019
M. Stocks 1/07/2018 30/06/2019
A. Bennett 1/07/2018 30/06/2019
M. Dean 1/07/2018 30/06/2019
P. Nemtsas 1/07/2018 30/06/2019
J. Sutherland 1/07/2018 30/06/2019
L. Wong 1/07/2018 30/06/2019
M. Arnott 1/07/2018 30/06/2019

Accountable Officers
P. Birkett (Chief Executive Officer) 1/07/2018 30/06/2019

Note 8.1:   Reconciliation of Net Result for the Year to Net Cash Inflow / (Outflow) from 
Operating Activities

This section includes additional material disclosures required by accounting standards or otherwise, for the understanding of this financial report.

Period
In accordance with the Ministerial Directions issued by the Assistant Treasurer under the Financial Management Act 1994, the following 
disclosures are made regarding responsible persons for the reporting period.
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Remuneration of Responsible Persons

Consol'd Consol'd
Income Band reported in $'000 2019 2018
$0 - $9,999 11 11                    
$230,000 - $239,999 -                       1                       
$240,000 - $249,999 1 -                       
Total Numbers 12                    12                    

2019 2018
$'000 $'000

$274 $237

Note 8.3: Remuneration of Executives

Remuneration of Executives

Consol'd Consol'd
Remuneration of executive officers 2019 2018
Short-term benefits 143,451 137,634
Post-employment benefits 21,958 21,417
Other long-term benefits 4,188 3,828
Termination benefits 46,000             -                       
Total Remuneration 215,597 162,880
Total number of executives 1 1

1 1

(ii) Annualised employee equivalent is based on the time fraction worked over the reporting period.

Note 8.4:   Related parties

·        all key management personnel and their close family members;
·        all cabinet ministers and their close family members; and

·        all hospitals and public sector entities that are controlled and consolidated into the whole of state consolidated financial statements.

All related party transactions have been entered into on an arm’s length basis.

(i) The total number of executive officers includes persons who meet the definition of Key Management Personnel (KMP) of Hesse Rural Health Service under AASB 124 
Related Party Disclosures and are also reported within Note 8.4 Related Parties. 

Remuneration comprises employee benefits in all forms of consideration paid, payable or provided in exchange for services rendered, and is disclosed in the following 
categories. 

The number of executive officers, other than Ministers and Accountable Officers, and their total remuneration during the reporting period are shown in the table below. Total 
annualised employee equivalent provides a measure of full time equivalent executive officers over the reporting period.

Post-employment benefits include pensions and other retirement benefits paid or payable on a discrete basis when employment has ceased.

Short-term employee benefits include amounts such as wages, salaries, annual leave or sick leave that are usually paid or payable on a regular basis, as well as non-
monetary benefits such as allowances and free or subsidised goods or services.

Amounts relating to Responsible Ministers are reported within the Department of Parliamentary Services’ Financial Report. 

On this basis, Hesse Rural Health Service determines the opening loss allowance on initial application date of AASB 9 and the closing loss allowance at end of the financial 
year as disclosed above.

Total remuneration received or due and receivable by Responsible Persons from the 
reporting entity amounted to:

Amounts relating to the Governing Board Members and Accountable Officer are disclosed in Hesse Rural Health Service’s controlled entities financial statements.

Other long-term benefits include long service leave, other long-service benefit or deferred compensation.

Termination benefits include termination of employment payments, such as severance packages.

.        Controlled entities - Winchelsea Hostel and Nursing Home Society Inc.; and

KMPs are those people with the authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the Health Service and its controlled entities, directly or 
indirectly. 
The Board of Directors and the Executive Directors of Hesse Rural Health Service and it’s controlled entities are deemed to be KMPs.

Total annualised employee equivalent (AEE)

.        jointly Controlled Operation - A member of the SWARH IT alliance; and

The health service is a wholly owned and controlled entity of the State of Victoria. Related parties of the health service include:
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Entity KMP's Position Title
Hesse Rural Health K. Taylor Chair of the Board
Hesse Rural Health N. Hutton Board member
Hesse Rural Health S. Ni Chuinneagain Board member
Hesse Rural Health T. O'Loughlin Board member
Hesse Rural Health M. Stocks Board member
Hesse Rural Health A. Bennett Board member
Hesse Rural Health M. Dean Board member
Hesse Rural Health P. Nemtsas Board member
Hesse Rural Health J. Sutherland Board member
Hesse Rural Health L. Wong Board member
Hesse Rural Health M. Arnott Board member
Hesse Rural Health P. Birkett Chief Executive Officer
Hesse Rural Health A. Coles Director of Nursing

Winchelsea Hostel and Nursing Home Society Inc. K. Taylor Chair of the Board
Winchelsea Hostel and Nursing Home Society Inc. N. Hutton Board member
Winchelsea Hostel and Nursing Home Society Inc. S. Ni Chuinneagain Board member
Winchelsea Hostel and Nursing Home Society Inc. T. O'Loughlin Board member
Winchelsea Hostel and Nursing Home Society Inc. M. Stocks Board member
Winchelsea Hostel and Nursing Home Society Inc. A. Bennett Board member
Winchelsea Hostel and Nursing Home Society Inc. M. Dean Board member
Winchelsea Hostel and Nursing Home Society Inc. P. Nemtsas Board member
Winchelsea Hostel and Nursing Home Society Inc. J. Sutherland Board member
Winchelsea Hostel and Nursing Home Society Inc. L. Wong Board member
Winchelsea Hostel and Nursing Home Society Inc. M. Arnott Board member
Winchelsea Hostel and Nursing Home Society Inc. P. Birkett Secretary

Consol'd Consol'd
Compensation 2019 2018
Short term employee benefits 375,726           331,557           
Post-employment benefits 57,165             58,259             
Other long-term benefits 10,655             9,830               
Termination benefits 46,000             -                       
Total 489,546           399,646           

Significant transactions with government related entities

- Payroll processing charges paid to Colac Area Health.
- Patient transport fees paid to Ambulance Victoria
- Purchase of drugs and medical supplies from Colac Area Health and South West Healthcare.
- Provision of District Nursing services to Barwon Health, Colac Area Health, Ballarat Health Service and the Alfred Hospital.

Transactions with key management personnel and other related parties

Other Transactions of Responsible Persons and their Related Entities

Note 8.5:   Remuneration of Auditors Consol'd Consol'd
2019 2018

Victorian Auditor-General's Office $ $
Audit of financial statement 35,500             14,313             

35,500             14,313             
Note 8.6:  Events Occurring after the Balance Date

There are no events occurring since the balance date to the date of this report that would have a material effect on the operations of the health service.

The Chief Financial Officer, Stephen Wight, is a director of Davidsons Accountants and Business Consultants, which provided accounting, bookkeeping and consulting 
services to Hesse Rural Health Service on normal commercial terms and conditions.  Total payments made to Davidsons Accountants and Business Consultants in the 
financial year were $104,475 (2018 $120,131).

Outside of normal citizen type transactions with Hesse Rural Health Service, there were no related party transactions that involved key management personnel, their close 
family members and their personal business interests, except for the transactions listed below. No provision has been required, nor any expense recognised, for impairment of 
receivables from related parties. There were no related party transactions with Cabinet Ministers required to be disclosed in 2019.

- Professional medical indemnity insurance and other insurance products are obtained from a Victorian Public Financial Corporation.

There were no related party transactions required to be disclosed for the Hesse Rural Health Service Board of Directors, Chief Executive Officer and Executive Directors in 
2019.

Given the breadth and depth of State government activities, related parties transact with the Victorian public sector in a manner consistent with other members of the public e.g. 
stamp duty and other government fees and charges. Further employment of processes within the Victorian public sector occur on terms and conditions consistent with the 
Public Administration Act 2004 and Codes of Conduct and Standards issued by the Victorian Public Sector Commission. Procurement processes occur on terms and conditions 
consistent with the Victorian Government Procurement Board requirements. 

Key management personnel of Hesse Rural Health

Hesse Rural Health received funding from the Department of Health and Human Services of $4.1 million (2018: $3.5 million). 
  
During the year, Hesse Rural Health had the following government-related entity transactions which are undertaken on a normal commercial basis: 
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Note 8.7:  Controlled Entities
Equity

Name of Entity Country of Incorporation Holding
Winchelsea Hostel and Nursing Home Society Inc. 100%

Control is established due to both entities having common Board of Management.

Controlled Entities contribution to the consolidated results
2019 2018

$ $
Net Result for the year $'000 $'000

Winchelsea Hostel and Nursing Home Society Inc. 1,281               (136)                 

Note 8.8:  Jointly Controlled Operations and Assets

Interest in Jointly Controlled Operations Principal Activity 2019 2018
% %

South West Alliance of Rural Health (SWARH) Information Technology 2.13% 2.00%

2019 2018
Current Assets $ $
Cash and Cash Equivalents 30,731             147,374           
Receivables 150,042           37,731             
Other Assets 11,483             3,320               
Total Current Assets 192,256           188,425           
Non-Current Assets
Property, Plant & Equipment 126,920           78,659             
Total Assets 319,176           267,084           

Current Liabilities
Payables 108,718           120,514           
Finance lease liabilities 29,408             74,975             
Employee Benefits 36,588             31,560             
Total Current Liabilities 174,714           227,049           
Non-Current Liabilities
Finance lease liabilities 44,729             -                       
Employee Benefits 5,253               5,829               
Total Non Current Liabilities 49,982             5,829               
Total Liabilities 224,696           232,878           
Net Assets 94,480             34,206             

Revenues
Revenue from Operating Activities 411,004           465,092           
Capital Purpose Income -                       12,187             
Total Revenue 411,004           477,279           

Expenses
Employee Benefits 170,521           158,010           
Maintenance Contract and IT Support 52,144             101,689           
Operating Lease Costs -                       3,229               
Other Expenses from Ordinary Activities 93,168             152,139           
Finance Costs 6,803               4,249               
Depreciation 49,417             54,095             
Total Expenses 372,053           473,411           
Net Result 38,951             3,868               

Note 8.9:  Economic dependency

Note 8.10:  Changes in Accounting Policy

(b) financial assets and provision for impairment have not been reclassified and/or restated in the comparative period.

Changes to classification and measurement

Apart from the above classification there has been no impact of first time adoption of AASB 9 on the balance sheet

Australia

Hesse Rural Health has elected to apply the limited exemption in AASB 9 paragraph 7.2.15 relating to transition for classification and measurement and impairment, and 
accordingly has not restated comparative periods in the year of initial application. As a result:

(a) any adjustments to carrying amounts of financial assets or liabilities are recognised at beginning of the current reporting period with difference recognised in opening 
retained earnings; and

On initial application of AASB 9 on 1 July 2018, Hesse Rural Health 's management has assessed for all financial assets based on the Health Service 's business models for 
managing the assets. Refer to Note 7.1(a) for the changes in the classification of Hesse Rural Health’s financial assets.

The Health Service interest in revenues and expenses resulting from jointly controlled operations and assets is detailed below, based on 
unaudited figures:

The Health Service interest in assets employed in the above jointly controlled operations and assets is detailed below. The 
amounts are included in the financial statements under their respective asset categories:

Hesse Rural Health is dependent on the Department of Health and Human Services for the majority of its revenue used to operate the entity. At the date of this report, the 
Board of Directors has no reason to believe the Department will not continue to support Hesse Rural Health.
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Note 8.11:  AASBs issued that are not yet effective

Standard / Interpretation Applicable for 
annual reporting 

periods 
beginning on 

AASB 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers 1 Jan 2019

AASB 2016-8 Amendments to Australian Accounting 
Standards – Australian Implementation Guidance for 
Not for-Profit Entities

1 Jan 2019

AASB 16 Leases 1 Jan 2019

AASB 2018-8 Amendments to Australian Accounting 
Standards – Right of Use Assets of Not-for-Profit 
entities

1 Jan 2019

Certain new accounting standards have been published that are not mandatory for 30 June 2019 reporting period. DTF assesses the impact of all these new standards and 
advises the Health Service of their applicability and early adoption where applicable. 

As at 30 June 2019, the following standards and interpretations had been issued by AASB but were not yet effective.  They become effective for the first financial statements 
for reporting periods commencing after the stated operative dates as detailed in the table below.  Hesse Rural Health has not and does not intend to adopt these standards 
early.

The core principle of AASB 15 requires an entity to recognise revenue when 
the entity satisfies a performance obligation by transferring a promised good 
or service to a customer. Note that amending standard AASB 2015 8 
Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Effective Date of AASB 
15 has deferred the effective date of AASB 15 to annual reporting periods 
beginning on or after 1 January 2018, instead of 1 January 2017 for Not-for-
Profit entities.

The key changes introduced by AASB 16 include the recognition of most 
operating leases (which are current not recognised) on balance sheet.

This standard amends various other accounting standards to provide an 
option for not-for-profit entities to not apply the fair value initial measurement 
requirements to a class or classes of right of use assets arising under leases 
with significantly below-market terms and conditions principally to enable the 
entity to further its objectives. This Standard also adds additional disclosure 
requirements to AASB 16 for not-for-profit entities that elect to apply this 
option.

Impact on public sector entity financial statements

The changes in revenue recognition requirements in 
AASB 15 may result in changes to the timing and amount 
of revenue recorded in the financial statements. Revenue 
from grants that are provided under an enforceable 
agreement that have sufficiently specific obligations, will 
now be deferred and recognised as the performance 
obligations attached to the grant are satisfied.  There is 
not expected to be a significant impact arising from this 
change.

The assessment has indicated that most operating leases, 
with the exception of short term and low value leases will 
come on to the balance sheet and will be recognised as 
right of use assets with a corresponding lease liability.  In 
the operating statement, the operating lease expense will 
be replaced by depreciation expense of the asset and an 
interest charge.  Initial assessment indicate that there will 
be a right of use asset and corresponding liability taken up 
at 1 July 2019 of $126,150.  The net profit and loss impact 
will be immaterial.

Under AASB 1058, not-for-profit entities are required to 
measure right-of-use assets at fair value at initial 
recognition for leases that have significantly below-market 
terms and conditions. 
For right-of-use assets arising under leases with 
significantly below market terms and conditions principally 
to enable the entity to further its objectives (peppercorn 
leases), AASB 2018-8 provides a temporary option for Not-
for-Profit entities to measure at initial recognition, a class 
or classes of right-of-use assets at cost rather than at fair 
value and requires disclosure of the adoption. 
The State has elected to apply the temporary option in 
AASB 2018-8 for not-for-profit entities to not apply the fair 
value provisions under AASB 1058 for these right-of-use 
assets. 
In making this election, the State considered that the 
methodology of valuing peppercorn leases was still being 
developed.

AASB 2016-8 inserts Australian requirements and authoritative 
implementation guidance for not-for-profit-entities into AASB 9 and AASB 
15. 
This Standard amends AASB 9 and AASB 15 to include requirements to 
assist not-for-profit entities in applying the respective standards to particular 
transactions and events

This standard clarifies the application of AASB 15 and 
AASB 9 in a not-for-profit context. The areas within these 
standards that are amended for not-for-profit application 
include:
AASB 9 
• Statutory receivables are recognised and measured 
similarly to financial assets. 
AASB 15
• The ‘customer’ does not need to be the recipient of 
goods and/or services;
• The “contract” could include an arrangement entered into 
under the direction of another party;
• Contracts are enforceable if they are enforceable by 
legal or ‘equivalent means’;
• Contracts do not have to have commercial substance, 
only economic substance; and
• Performance obligations need to be ‘sufficiently specific’ 
to be able to apply AASB 15 to these transactions.

STATEMENT
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Note 8.11:  AASBs issued that are not yet effective

Standard / Interpretation Applicable for 
annual reporting 

periods 
beginning on 

AASB 1058 Income of Not-for-Profit Entities 1 Jan 2019

AASB 2018-7 Amendments to Australian Accounting 
Standards – Definition of Material

1 Jan 2020

AASB 2018-5 Amendments to Australian Accounting 
Standards – Deferral of AASB 1059

1 January 2020
(The State is 
intending to early 
adopt AASB 1059 
for annual 
reporting periods 
beginning on or 
after 1 January 
2019)

•      AASB 2017-1 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Transfers of Investment Property, Annual Improvements 2014-2016 Cycle and Other Amendments
•      AASB 2017-6 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation
•      AASB 2017-7 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures
•      AASB 2018-1 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Annual Improvements 2015 – 2017 Cycle
•      AASB 2018-2 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Plan Amendments, Curtailment or Settlement
•      AASB 2018-3 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Reduced Disclosure Requirements
•      AASB 2018-6 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Definition of a business

The following accounting pronouncements are also issued but not effective for the 2018‑19 reporting period. At this stage, the preliminary assessment suggests they may have insignificant 
impacts on public sector reporting.

AASB 1058 standard will replace the majority of income recognition in 
relation to government grants and other types of contributions requirements 
relating to public sector not-for-profit entities, previously in AASB 1004 
Contributions. 
The restructure of administrative arrangement will remain under AASB 1004 
and will be restricted to government entities and contributions by owners in a 
public sector context.
AASB 1058 establishes principles for transactions that are not within the 
scope of AASB 15, where the consideration to acquire an asset is 
significantly less than fair value to enable not-for-profit entities to further their 
objective.

This standard defers the mandatory effective date of AASB 1059 from 1 
January 2019 to 1 January 2020.

This standard defers the mandatory effective date of 
AASB 1059 for periods beginning on or after 1 January 
2019 to 1 January 2020. As the State has elected to early 
adopt AASB 1059, the financial impact will be reported in 
the financial year ending 30 June 2019, rather than the 
following year.

This Standard principally amends AASB 101 Presentation of Financial 
Statements and AASB 108 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting 
Estimates and Errors. The amendments refine and clarify the definition of 
material in AASB 101 and its application by improving the wording and 
aligning the definition across AASB Standards and other publications. The 
amendments also include some supporting requirements in AASB 101 in the 
definition to give it more prominence and clarify the explanation 
accompanying the definition of material.

The standard is not expected to have a significant impact 
on the public sector.

STATEMENT Impact on public sector entity financial statements

Grant revenue is currently recognised up front upon 
receipt of the funds under AASB 1004 Contributions.
The timing of revenue recognition for grant agreements 
that fall under the scope of AASB 1058 may be deferred. 
For example, revenue from capital grants for the 
construction of assets will need to be deferred and 
recognised progressively as the asset is being 
constructed.
The impact of this change is re-statement of retained 
earnings as at 1 July 2019, and the recording of deferred 
revenue of $220,750  relating to the un-expended portion 
of Significant Refurbishment funding received for RACS, 
and deferred revenue of $15,294 relating to the un-
expended portion of rural infrastructure funding received in 
2018/19.
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Hesse Rural Health acknowledges Victoria’s 
Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander communities 

and their rich culture. We pay respect to the Ancestors, Elders 
and Communities of Wathaurong people of the Kulin Nation, the 
custodians of the land on which we deliver our health care services. 
We seek to ensure the facilities, environment and services we manage 
are welcoming and inclusive for all people. 

Hesse Rural Health Service (Hesse) is a public 
hospital operating under the Health Services Act 
1988 and relevant amendments, and is governed by 
a Board of Directors appointed by the Governor 
in Council by the recommendation of the Victorian 
State Minister for Health. 

As an innovative rural health service, Hesse provides 
acute, aged and community based services across 
parts of the municipalities of Colac Otway, Golden 
Plains and the Surf Coast. Hesse partners with the 
Winchelsea Hostel and Nursing Home Society 
Inc., a not-for-profit entity and Commonwealth 
Residential Aged Care Service  (RACS) provider, 
whose charter it is to plan, provide and develop 
appropriate services for the local community.

Mission

Hesse is dedicated to providing and facilitating 
access to best practice health, aged and community 
based services that strive for rural wellbeing.

INCLUSIVENESS
Welcoming everyone

INTEGRITY
Accountable, transparent practice

EXCELLENCE
Committed to being the best we can

CREATIVITY
Leading into the future

PERSON CENTREDNESS
Finding what’s important to the individual

WHO ARE WE?
Our Annual Report is internally produced and 
designed, and reflects real stories provided 
by our staff, consumers and their families. The 
Report aims to inform Government, interested 
stakeholders and members of the public about 
the range and quality of our services and Hesse 
Rural Health’s financial performance over the year.

Pictured
Front Cover: Peg Hulonce, thriving at Hesse (p. 65)
Below Left: Shane Soutar, Adams Print (printing)
Below Right: Katherine LeFevre (photography)

To Access Hesse’s Services:
Phone: (03) 5267 1200

Mail: 8 Gosney Street

Winchelsea VIC 3241

E-mail: reception@hesse.vic.gov.au

Website: www.hesseruralhealth.org.au
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